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Parkson Retail Group Limited (the "Company") is one of
the few nationwide department store chain operators in
the People's Republic of China (“the PRC"). The Parkson
brand was introduced to the Beijing market in the
early 1990's and has now expanded to cover 34 major
cities across the PRC market. Through the Company's
subsidiaries, a joint venture and associates (hereinafter
collectively refer to as the "Group"), the Group now
operates and manages 59 stores.

Localisation and consistent market positioning is the
key strategy for the continuous growth and success of
Parkson. We are tailoring our merchandise assortments,
brand mix and floor space allocation on a store-by-store
basis to better serve our targeted middle to middle-
upper end consumers in every city that we operate. The
Group offers a wide range of internationally renowned
ands of fashion and lifestyle related merchandises
ing on four main categories of merchandise
ashion & Apparel, Cosmetics & Accessories,
t Electrical, and Groceries & Perishables,

ng and contemporary market.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

2015 was a significant year for Parkson, as our journey of transforming into
a lifestyle concept retail business began to gain momentum. Our vision is
to build a healthy retail ecosystem that provides quality lifestyle offerings
and experiences to China's discerning middle to middle-upper class
consumers. Our core values are innovation, commitment and openness, as
well as the relentless pursuit of commercial opportunities and an optimal
capital structure.

In this statement, some of the initiatives we have undertaken to deepen
the transformation and to create value will be highlighted. We are grateful
to our shareholders, partners and employees for supporting us in these
initiatives with patience and trust.

STAYING IN THE GAME

2015 was a difficult year for retailers in China, as Gross Domestic Product
("GDP") growth slowed to 6.9%. Against this backdrop, our Gross Sales
Proceeds ("GSP") recorded a decline of 6.9% to RMB18,099.8 million,
against an 8.0% reduction in Same Store Sales ("SSS").

Although GDP growth is at a 25-year low, the Chinese government is
committed to transitioning from an export and sales driven economy to
a domestic demand driven service and consumer market. Parkson, as a
seasoned retailer that has weathered cyclical ups and downs, has adapted
to changes in China over the past 21 years. We are confident in riding
through the current challenges. We are also cautious with our investments
in these challenging circumstances and are systematically deploying several
key transformation strategies in multiple dimensions that strengthen and
broadens our business.
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The Group continued to foster close business partnerships with leading
sector players. With a track record of over 20 years in China, Parkson
enjoys the advantages of scale, an extensive network of stores, knowledge
of consumer behaviour and financial stability and flexibility. We have
carefully selected partners to leverage each other's sector know-how, hence
we are able to unlock greater value. In August 2015, Parkson together with
Korea's Eeland Group, invested RMB100 million to form a joint-venture
in Shanghai, enabling Parkson to tap into the City Lifestyle Mall market.
The Group officially unveiled China's first Korean city lifestyle mall, the
Parkson Newcore Citymall (the "Citymall") in January 2016. The Citymall,
situated at a prime location in Changning District, Shanghai is designed to
bring Korean lifestyle experiences to Chinese consumers through a range
of brands, F&B and leisure services with Korean elements. Having learned
from this pilot project, the Group aims to introduce the concept to other
cities in China.

For food and beverage ("F&B"), in January 2015 we formed a strategic
partnership with AUM Hospitality, a company with rich sector experience
to develop F&B business in China. During 2015, we signed four master
franchise agreements with renowned F&B brand owners to introduce a
wide range of dining options to local food lovers. Brands signed include
French-Japanese casual dining restaurant Franco, American diner Johnny
Rockets, cafe The Library Coffee Bar and sandwich restaurant Quiznos.

The Group is also forming strategic alliances with landlords across our
network of stores to work out the best approach to optimize our store lease
arrangements; so as to achieve a better financial position for both parties.
The Group is conducting a complete review of the current store portfolio
and closed three underperforming stores in 2015. We will continue with
this exercise and are prepared for more closure of stores that cannot be
revived, to enhance the overall store network profitability and efficiency.
Having said that, we remain open-minded to properties at strategic
locations that would benefit the Group in the long term.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

To broaden the Group's business, we have worked hard to expand our
brand and merchandise offerings in 2015. The Group has built a strong
team of buyers to hand pick brands worldwide for consumers in China.
From only a handful of private labels and agency brands at the beginning
of 2015, the Group has expanded to close to 30 brands at the end of the
year. New international additions to the Group's agency brands list include
Bonia, French Connection, Cocorose London, JAC (a ladies fashion from
Canada), and Tom Tailor (a fast fashion brand from Germany). During the
year, the Group also launched three new private labels: Zie Zac, a themed
fast fashion brand with mens, ladies and kids collections; Serena, a basic
womens wear brand; and Style Unlimited, which sells elegant womens wear.
Beyond standalone single brand outlets, the Group has also rolled out a
number of multi-brand stores including Bombon Fashion, Bombon shoes,
XPOXR, Parkson Outlet and SACCHA; to cater to an increasingly fragmented
customer groups. As at the end of 2015, the Group had opened more than
100 outlets for these brands within Parkson's network of stores. For F&B,
we have also launched two house brands, Zie Zac Café and Ji Hui ("ZE&")
to sit alongside our franchised brands. With the increase in self owned
offerings, Parkson is able to leverage these exclusive franchises and private
labels to offer unique products at the best prices to customers. The brand
enrichment strategy will in the medium to long term give the Group a
competitive edge over its competitors and improve profitability.

Echoing China's national initiative for the Internet of Things, the Group is
embracing digital integration to enhance our business operations. Most of
our marketing and interaction with customers are now done through social
media platforms, to foster closer ties and increase customer loyalty. We
have launched an E-loyalty card to improve convenience. All of our F&B
outlets are equipped with a smart ordering system that allow seamless
communication between the dining area and back kitchen. Our management
team is able to access real time sales data from our restaurants through a
smart phone application. Alongside this, the Group continues to build its
own "big data" database and improve on its business intelligence system.
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SAILING THROUGH THE WAVES

As the Chinese market matures, we expect ever increasing demand for
good quality merchandise and lifestyle products from consumers. Whilst
market headwinds are likely to remain strong in the coming year, we
believe that retail in China remains one of the most promising global
business opportunity. The country already has around 300 million middle
class consumers and within a decade that figure is projected to reach 500
million. The growing purchasing power of the Chinese middle class will
fuel future growth for the retail segment and rapid urbanization will create
needs for quality retail businesses in lower tier cities.

In order to strengthen our existing strategies and to shelter against market
headwinds whilst being prepared for the future market, we will continue
to enhance our three key strategic pillars:

° Retail format and network optimization,
° Product and service offerings enhancement,
° Cross-platform customer engagement.

We will continue to surprise the industry with retail formats that are new
and innovative. New sub-brands with different market positioning under
the Parkson brand name will be launched in selected stores to strengthen
our brand image in each market segment.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

Following detailed monitoring of individual store's performance, we will
convert a number of stores to the Elite, Parkson and Centro brands based
on their respective target customers. Standalone specialty stores will be
launched for departments that can crystalize the Group's strength into
financial prospects; for example, supermarket stores. In 2016, we will mark
a significant milestone for the Group's venture into shopping malls with
the launch of the Qingdao Lion Mall scheduled for the first half of the year.
Furthermore, the Group will further cultivate product and service offerings
in 2016. Having paved the way for our enriched lifestyle portfolio and F&B,
we will focus on fine-tuning operational efficiency and increasing sales of
new business ventures to drive better financial performance.

In parallel, the Group places utmost importance on customer engagement
and continues to build its proprietary customer engagement model to
create cross-platform connections across the Parkson business. We are
working with experts and partners to research customer tastes and media
preferences in different demographics. We will also leverage our wide
customer base to develop cutting-edge solutions. Parkson will continue
cooperation with mobile carriers and online payment providers to offer
more mobile payment options. This will not only enhance customer
convenience, but also lower payment costs for the Group.

We believe, with patience, focused deployment of our strategies, dedication
to getting closer to and better understanding our customers, we will
create value for our shareholders over the next few years. Finally and
very importantly, we would like to thank all of our employees, customers,
shareholders, suppliers and partners for their efforts and contributions
over the past year.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MR

Operating Result (RMB'000) e (NRETT)
Gross sales proceeds' HEMGRAEE 16,426,172 16756914 17,481,185 16741880 15,592,728 -6.9%
Operating revenue L 4938309 5034901 5110390 5015078 4,738,679 -5.5%
Profit from operations Sl 1508929 1,079327 543,377 324,956 (94,472)° -129.1%
Profit for the year ERFE 1,152,754 879,704 372,602 245773 (182,635) -174.30
Profit attributable to the Group ~ NEEIE(LFIE 1,122,929 850,774 353,646 235032 (186,154) -179.2%
Basic earnings per share (RMB)?  BRREARF| (ARE)? 0.400 0.303 0.126 0.085 (0.069) -181.20
Interim dividends per share BROHRE 0.070 0.070 0.050 0.040 0.040 -
Final dividends per share BRABRE 0.110 0.070 0.010 0.010 0.010 -
Full year dividends per share BRE2ERE 0.180 0.140 0.060 0.050 0.050 -
Gross sales proceeds Operating revenue
SHEMSRIEATE RMB'000 ARME T 7T e AMB'000 A R T 5
17,481,185 5,034,901 3110390 ¢ 1079
16,756,914 16,741,880 4,938,309 e 1D,
16,426,172 A
e ,738,679
15,592,728 47 /

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Profit from operations Profit attributable to the Group
48 #E R RMB'000 AR FIT 7N & B FE L RS RMB'000 A R¥F 7T

1,122,929
1,508,929
850,774
1,079,327
543,377 353,646
235,032
324,956
(186,154)
(94,472) l
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
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Summary of statement of ~ BAFSAR I R 2

financial position (AR®TT)

(RMB'000)
Non-current assets EREEE 5,942,426 6,306,884 7,183,754 7,854,692 8,604,328
Current assets AR 6,120,252 6,287,936 6,521,974 6,084,192 4,621,223
Total assets BEE 12,062,678 12,594,820 13,705,728 13,938,884 13,225,551
Current liabilities mEAE 3,882,002 6,452,661 4,240,760 4,319,752 3,788,053
Non-current liabilities EmEAaE 2,840,083 480,799 3,782,967 3,960,214 4,398,184
Net assets BEFE 5,340,593 5,661,360 5,682,001 5,658,918 5,039,314
Represented by A TFHIRIERT
Equity attributable to [SYNCIET S PN

owners of the parent JE(E iR 5,268,085 5,584,031 5,597,187 5,586,952 4,972,268
Non-controlling interests  JEFEAR AR B A 25 72,508 77,329 84,814 71,966 67,046
Total equity B 5,340,593 5,661,360 5,682,001 5658918 5,039,314
NOTES: B

1.

Gross sales proceeds (excluded value-added tax) represent the sum of sales
proceeds from direct sales and concessionaire sales, income from providing
consultancy and management services, rental income and other operating
revenues.

HEMSREARE (T2EER) BEXRA
ERHEREHEBEHEENHEEMSER
I AR REERB WA - HeW
AR EAD SRR AR ©

2. The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2.  EZE—RAF+ZA=T—HLEFE
2015 is based on the net loss attributable to equity shareholders of the NERERNBRIIIBRBEFALRR A RE
Company for the year of approximately RMB186,154,000 and the weighted HHE AEREEFEN AR 186,154,000
average number of 2,705,494,000 shares in issue during the year. TERFRNEBITNEFHRMEER

2,705,494,00008 51 & °
The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December ( EZE-mOF+ZA=T—HLEFE
2014 is based on the net profit attributable to equity shareholders of the HERERBNIREFANRRD AR
Company for the year of approximately RMB235,032,000 and the weighted A A AL AR 49 A R 235,032,000
average number of 2,776,805,000 shares in issue during the year. TREFRNEBITNEFHRMDER
2,776,805,0000% 51 & °
3. The Group incurred a loss from operations of RMB94.5 million for FY2015. 3. RZE—AUBFE  ~EEEELE

Such loss was mainly attributable to (i) a one-off litigation loss in respect
of the arbitral award arising from the disputes on the Beijing Metro City
Shopping Plaza's Tenancy Agreement which amounted to RMB140.9 million;
(i) cost incurred by new business ventures and new stores during their
ramp up period; and (iii) increasingly competitive landscape of the retail
sector which has led to drops in both sales and gross profit. Without taking
into account the aforesaid one-off litigation loss, the Group would have
recorded a profit from operations of RMB46.4 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEREFWE D

TOTAL GROSS SALES PROCEEDS AND OPERATING REVENUES
Financial Review

Gross Sales Proceeds ("GSP") and merchandise gross margin continued to
be under pressure with challenging market environment, weak consumer
sentiment and intensifying competition. GSP (consists of direct sales,
sales proceeds from concessionaire sales, rental incomes, consultancy and
management service fees and other operating revenues) decreased by 6.9%
to RMB18,099.8 million (inclusive of value-added tax) in the financial year
of 2015 ("FY2015") Year On Year ("YOY"). SSS declined by 8.0%.

TOTAL SALES PROCEEDS
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Total sales proceeds (RMB'000)

BRTHEMBHE (ARETIT)

Direct sales BHIEHE 1,645,004 1,638,052
Concessionaire sales BIFHIENE 14,281,837 13,109,347
Total sales proceeds BEHHE IS HIE 15,926,841 14,747,399

Total merchandise sales totalled to approximately RMB14,747.4 million (net
of value-added tax) in FY2015. Concessionaire sales continued to be the
key sales driver and had contributed approximately 88.9% of merchandise
sales for FY2015. The balance of 11.19% came from direct sales. Merchandise
mix remained stable with the Fashion & Apparel category contributing
approximately 47.4% of the total merchandise sales, the Cosmetics &
Accessories category contributing approximately 43.4%, the Household
& Electrical category contributing approximately 3.9% and the balance of
approximately 5.3% contributed by the Groceries and Perishables category.

Group's merchandise gross margin (a combination of concessionaire
commission rate and the direct sales margin) decreased by 0.7% to 16.8%
in FY2015 due to promotions and discounts offered during the year. 2015
had been a highly promotional year for retailers of different formats due
to weak consumer sentiments. To maintain market share, discounts and
promotional activities were launched more frequently at higher rates
compared to 2014.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Total operating revenues of the Group decreased by RMB276.4 million or
5.5% to RMB4,738.7 million in FY2015 due to the decline in commissions
from concessionaire sales of RMB299.7 million. Attributed to performance
of the cosmetics department, direct sales of RMB1,638.1 million remained
resilience to market pressure and were almost unchanged compared
to the sale figures last year. Rental income continued to grow in 2015
and had increased by 5.9% to RMB327.3 million as a result of the
Group's transformation programme in allocating more operating area for
complementary services.

Operating Expenses
Purchase of goods and change in inventories

The purchase of goods and change in inventories refer to the cost of sales
for the direct sales. In line with the fluctuation in direct sales, cost of sales
in 2015 of RMB1,409.3 million remained almost unchanged compared to
2014.

Staff costs

Staff costs increased by 11.4% YOY to RMB688.2 million. The increase
was primarily attributable to contribution from new stores, additional
headcount from new ventures and salary adjustment in July 2014 to retain
talents during the current challenging time. On a same store basis, staff
cost increased by 7.9%. To cope with the increase in cost, programs and
training had been rolled out to increase staff productivity.

As a percentage to GSP, the staff cost ratio increased from 3.7% to 4.4%.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization increased marginally by 0.4% YOY to
RMB405.6 million. On a same store basis, the depreciation and amortization
cost decreased by 3.8%. The decrease was primarily attributable to the
increase in number for stores with assets that has been fully depreciated.

As a percentage to GSP, depreciation and amortization cost ratio increased
to 2.6% from 2.4%.

Rental Expenses

Rental expenses increased by 13.8% to RMB1,219.6 million, mainly due to
a one-off litigation loss in respect of the arbitral award arising from the
disputes on the Beijing Metro City Shopping Plaza's Tenancy Agreement
of RMB138.3 million and inclusion of rental cost of new stores opened
in second half of 2014 and during 2015. On a same store basis, rental
expenses declined by 4.0%. The decrease is due to the management's
success in lease contract renegotiation of a few stores within the Group.

Due to the aforesaid reasons, as a percentage to GSP, the rental expenses
ratio increase from 6.4% to 7.8%.
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Other Operating Expenses

Other operating expenses which consist of (a) utilities cost; (o) marketing,
promotional and selling expenses; (c) property management expenses;
and (d) general administrative expenses decreased to RMB1,110.4 million,
a decrease of 6.1% or RMB72.7 million due to management's effort to
rationalize cost within the Group. On a same store basis, other operating
expenses decreased by 10.1%.

As a percentage to GSP, other operating expenses ratio remained unchanged
as the financial year of 2014 (“FY2014") at 7.19%.

(Loss)/Profit from Operations

The Group incurred a loss from operations of RMB94.5 million for FY2015.
Such loss was mainly attributable to (i) a one-off litigation loss in respect
of the arbitral award arising from the disputes on the Beijing Metro City
Shopping Plaza's Tenancy Agreement which amounted to RMB140.9 million;
(ii) cost incurred by new business ventures and new stores during their
ramp up period; and (iii) increasingly competitive landscape of the retail
sector which has led to drops in both sales and gross profit. Without taking
into account the aforesaid one-off litigation loss, the Group would have
recorded a profit from operations of RMB46.4 million.

As a percentage to GSP, the profit from operations declined marginally
from 1.9% last year to (0.6%) in FY2015. On a same store basis, profit from
operations declined by 38.2%.

Finance (Costs)/Incomes, net

The Group incurred net finance expense of RMB36.1 million in FY2015 as
opposed to a net finance income of RMB21.1 million in 2014. The decrease
in net finance income was due to the combined effect of decreased in
finance income of RMB40.2 million and increased finance cost of RMB17.0
million. Decrease in finance income of 23.6% in FY2015 was mainly due to
decrease in interest rates and cash balances. Increased finance cost was in
line with the increase in off-shore bank loans drawn down for distribution
of dividend.

Share of Profit from a Joint Venture

This is the share of profit from Xinjiang Youhao Parkson Development
Co., Ltd., a joint venture of the Company. The share of profit decreased to
RMB24.0 million from RMB30.8 million recorded in FY2014 due to softening
of merchandise sales attributable to subdued consumer sentiment around
that region and remodeling work carried out in the store during the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Share of (Loss)/Profit from Associates

This is the share of results from i) Shanghai Nine Sea Lion Properties
Management Co. Ltd, ii) Parkson Newcore Retail Shanghai Ltd and iii) Rite
BOS Sdn. Bhd. The share of loss is mainly attributable to pre-operating
costs incurred by Parkson Newcore Retail Shanghai Ltd during its revamp
period.

(Loss)/Profit from operations before income tax ("PBT")

Due to the aforesaid reasons, the Group incurred a loss before tax of
RMB118.7 million. As a percentage to GSP, PBT ratio decreased from 2.3%
to (0.8%).

Income Tax Expenses

In line with the decline of results before tax, the Group's income tax
expenses reduced by 51.3% to RMB63.9 million. The Group continued
to incur tax expenses even though it has a loss before tax as the Group
is subjected to income tax on an entity basis. Offshore finance expenses
which are not tax deductible and tax losses from new stores are the main
reasons for the higher effective tax rates.

Net (Loss)/Profit for the year

The Group incurred a net loss of RMB182.6 million for FY2015, a reduction
of RMB428.4 million or 174.3% as compared to 2014. As a percentage to
GSP, the net profit margin declined from 1.5% to (1.2%).

(Loss)/Profit Attributable to the Group

Loss attributable to the Group was RMB186.2 million in FY2015, a decline
of RMB421.2 million or 179.2% from 2014.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2015, the cash and cash equivalents of the Group
(aggregate of principal guaranteed investment deposit, time deposits and
cash and bank balances deposited with licensed banks) stood at RMB3,353.4
million, representing a decrease of 31.3% from balance as at 31 December
2014 of RMB4,884.6 million. The decrease was primarily due to (i) net
cash outflow from operating activities amounted to RMB372.3 million;
(i) net cash outflow from investing activities amounted to RMB819.2
million; and (i) net cash outflow from financing activities amounted to
RMB339.7 million.

Total debt to total assets ratio of the Group was 30.4% as at 31 December 2015.
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Current Assets and Net Assets

The Group's current assets as at 31 December 2015 was approximately
RMB4,621.2 million, a decrease of 24.0% or RMB1,463.0 million YOY.
Net assets of the Group as at 31 December 2015 decreased by 11.0% to
RMB5,039.3 million.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has onshore pledged deposits of
RMB816.0 million to secure short-term bank loans. Other than the
aforesaid, no other asset is pledged to any bank or lender.

Segmental Information

Over 90% of the Group's turnover and contribution to the operating profit
is attributable to the operation and management of department stores
and over 90% of the Group's turnover and contribution to the operating
profit is attributable to customers in the PRC and over 90% of the Group's
operating assets are located in the PRC. Accordingly, no analysis of segment
information is presented.

Employees

As at 31 December 2015, total number of employees for the Group was
9,071. The Group ensures that all levels of employees are paid competitively
within the standard in the market and employees are rewarded on
performance related basis within the framework of the Group's salary,
incentives and bonus scheme.

Contingent Liabilities

A subsidiary of the Group located in the PRC is a plaintiff in a lawsuit
whereby the subsidiary has raised objection to a claim brought by a third
party claiming that the lease contract had expired and the subsidiary
should vacate the premises. The third party later filed a counterclaim
against the subsidiary, alleging the subsidiary to vacate the premises
and bear a certain amount of occupying penalty. The directors, based on
the advice from the legal counsel, believe that the subsidiary has a valid
defence against the allegation.

Treasury Policies

The business transactions of the Group were mainly denominated in
Renminbi. Therefore, except for the capital market transactions for
funding needs, there is limited exposure in foreign exchange risk. Hedging
instruments including swaps and forwards have been used in the past
and would be used in the future, if necessary, to ensure that the Group's
exposure to the foreign exchange rate fluctuation and the interest rate
fluctuation is minimized.
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Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem, aged 73, is an Executive Director and Chairman
of the Company. Tan Sri Cheng is also the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company.
He has more than 40 years of experience in the business operations of
the Lion Group of Companies ("the Lion Group") encompassing retail,
branding, credit financing, property development, mining, steel, tyre, motor,
agriculture and computer. He oversees the operation of the Lion Group and
is responsible for the formulation and monitoring of the overall corporate
strategic plans and business development of the Lion Group.

Tan Sri Cheng was the President of The Associated Chinese Chambers of
Commerce and Industry of Malaysia ("ACCCIM") and The Chinese Chamber
of Commerce and Industry of Kuala Lumpur and Selangor ("KLSCCCI") from
2003 to 2012. He is now a Life Honorary President of ACCCIM, KLSCCCI
and the President of Malaysia Retailers Association and Malaysia Steel
Association.

Tan Sri Cheng's directorships in public companies are as follows:

- Chairman and Managing Director of Lion Corporation Berhad and
Parkson Holdings Berhad ("PHB")

- Chairman of Lion Diversified Holdings Berhad, Lion Forest Industries
Berhad, Lion AMB Resources Berhad and ACB Resources Berhad

- Director of Lion Asiapac Limited

- Executive Chairman of Parkson Retail Asia Limited

- A Founding Trustee of The Community Chest, a company limited by
guarantee incorporated for charity purposes

Save for Lion AMB Resources Berhad, ACB Resources Berhad and The
Community Chest, all the above companies are public listed companies in
Malaysia whilst Lion Asiapac Limited and Parkson Retail Asia Limited are
public listed companies in Singapore.

Tan Sri Cheng is the father of Juliana Cheng San San, the Executive Director
of the Company and the Brand Director of the new branding division of
Parkson China.
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Chong Sui Hiong, Shaun, aged 48, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company on 13 November 2014, and he is currently the Chief
Executive Officer ("CEQ") of the Group. Mr Chong graduated with a Diploma
in Civil Engineering from University of Technology Malaysia, Bachelor of
Science in Industrial and Systems Engineering from University of Southern
California and a Master of Business Administration from Rutgers, the State
University of New Jersey. Mr Chong has extensive experience in retail
operation. He has 20 years of experience in the PRC retail industry. He
joined the Group in 1994.

Juliana Cheng San San, aged 46, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company on 28 August 2015. Ms Cheng started her career with
the Lion Group in 1995 with stints in Singapore and Malaysia. During her
tenure from 1995 to 2004 she held various positions in finance, human
resource, administration and business development. In 2004, she was
seconded to Parkson China as Cosmetics Manager, thus beginning her
career in the retail industry. She left Parkson China in May 2006 and joined
Chanel (China) Co Ltd as the National Accounts Manager for business
development in the PRC. In June 2010, she re-joined Parkson China as
Regional Director overseeing retail operations in China. Since 2014 until
now, Ms Cheng is heading the new branding division of Parkson China as
Brand Director. During her 20 years with Lion Group, Parkson China and
Chanel (China) Co Ltd, she has accumulated vast experience and knowledge
of the retail and branding industry which will enable her to contribute to
the Board of the Company.

Ms Cheng graduated in 1994 from University of Western Sydney, Australia
with a Bachelor's Degree in Commerce (Management) and completed a
Program for Global Leadership from Harvard Business School in year 2000.

Ms Cheng is a daughter of Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem, the Executive Director
and Chairman of the Company. Ms Cheng was an alternate to Tan Sri
Cheng, director of LTC Corporation Limited (formerly known as “Lion
Teck Chiang Limited") from 24 May 2002 to 30 June 2014, a public listed
company in Singapore, of which Tan Sri Cheng has ceased to be a director
since 30 October 2014.
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Datuk Lee Kok Leong, aged 41, was appointed as a Non-executive Director
of the Company on 1 September 2014, and was appointed as a member
of the Audit Committee of the Company on 13 November 2014. He has
been serving as Personal Assistant to Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem, Group
Executive Chairman of the Lion Group since 2010 and assists the Executive
Chairman in the retail, branding and property divisions in the Group. He
graduated from the University of Kentucky, USA with a Bachelor of Science
in Mathematics and minor in Economics.

Datuk Lee has accumulated vast experience and intimate knowledge
of the retail and branding industry with over 15 years in this business.
He has worked in Padini, the largest branded clothing and accessories
company in Malaysia. This was followed by his stint in Aktif Lifestyle store
(formerly Yaohan) as store manager before the company was acquired
by Parkson Corporation. During his service in Aktif Lifestyle store and
Parkson Corporation, he was assigned to supervise various Parkson stores
throughout Malaysia, handling the day to day operations including the
best performing Parkson Suria KLCC store with RM100 million annual
sales turnover. Apart from handling the retail operations, he was also
involved in the merchandising function upon his promotion to the rank
of divisional merchandizing manager in Parkson Malaysia. For the past 3
years, he has been visiting and studying the Parkson stores operations in
the various countries Parkson is in, to assist the Group Executive Chairman
in overseeing the retail and branding business and identifying business
opportunities.

Datuk Lee is currently a non-executive director of Parkson Retail Asia
Limited, a public listed company in Singapore.

Dato' Dr. Hou Kok Chung, aged 53, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director and a member of the Audit Committee of the Company on 13
November 2014. Dato' Dr. Hou was a Member of Parliament and the Deputy
Minister of Higher Education Malaysia from 2008 to 2013. He holds the
Bachelor and Master of Arts from University of Malaya, while his Ph.D
was received from the School of Oriental and African Studies, University
of London.

Dato' Dr. Hou served at University of Malaya from 1990 to 2008 as a lecturer
and lastly as Associate Professor. During his tenure in the university, he had
been appointed and held positions as Head of Department of East Asian
Studies, and Director of Institute of China Studies.

Dato' Dr. Hou is currently a member of the Senate in the Parliament of
Malaysia, Vice President of the Malaysian Chinese Association (MCA),
Chairman of the Institute of Strategic Analysis & Policy Research (INSAP),
director of both University Tunku Abdul Rahman (UTAR) and Tunku Abdul
Rahman University College (TAR UC) and a Guest Professor at Xiamen
University China.
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Dato’ Fu Ah Kiow, aged 67, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director on 13 November 2014. Dato' Fu was appointed as
Chairman of the Audit Committee on 29 February 2016 and is a member
of the Nomination Committee of the Company. Dato’ Fu has 13 years
of distinguished service since 1995 in the Parliament and Malaysian
Government as member of the Parliament, Parliamentary Secretary and
Deputy Minister. Before joining the Government, Dato’ Fu has worked in
multinational companies such as Intel Malaysia and Singer Industries in
the capacities of Quality Control engineer, Production Section Head and
Departmental Manager. Later he founded his own companies in construction
and Mechanical & Electrical Engineering Services. After retirement from
politics in Year 2008, Dato' Fu was appointed as independent director
cum chairman in several listed companies namely, Tiong Nam Logistics
Holdings Berhad, Hirotako Holdings Berhad (privatized and voluntarily
delisted in 2012) and NV Multi Corporation Berhad (privatized in 2012).
He was also appointed as Chairman of Future NRG Sdn Bhd since 2008, a
wholly owned subsidiary company of listed entity Fitters Diversified Berhad.
Dato' Fu holds a Master Degree in Industrial Engineering specializing in
Management Science, Post Graduate Diploma in Education and a B.Sc.
(Hons) degree in Physics.

Dato' Fu is currently a non-executive director of Nirvana Asia Ltd., which
shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He is also
an independent non-executive chairman of Tiong Nam Logistics Holding
Berhad, STAR Media Group Berhad (formerly known as "STAR Publications
(Malaysia) Berhad") and Fitters Diversified Berhad respectively, all public
listed companies in Bursa Malaysia Berhad.

Ko Tak Fai, Desmond, aged 47, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director, member of the Audit Committee and member of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company on 9 November 2005. Mr Ko has
been the Audit Committee Chairman of the Company since 22 November
2006 and had stepped down as the Chairman of the Audit Committee
on 29 February 2016. He remains as a member of the Audit Committee
of the Company. Mr Ko became a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales in 1994. Mr Ko is a businessman.

Yau Ming Kim, Robert, aged 77, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director on 1 January 2007, and is the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr Yau was the Chief Executive
or Managing Director of many major international and local apparel
companies since 1971. From 1998 to 2004, he was appointed as the Vice
Chairman of Hong Kong Exporters' Association, a member of the Executive
Committee of The Hong Kong Shippers' Council and the Garment Advisory
Committee of The Hong Kong Trade Development Council.
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Mr Yau is currently an independent non-executive director of Alltronics
Holdings Limited and Tungtex (Holdings) Company Limited respectively,
which shares are both listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange").

Subsequent to publication of the 2015 Interim Report of the Company,
notifications were received regarding the following changes of Directors'
information, which are required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51(2),
Rule 13.51B(1) and Rule 13.51B(2) of the Listing Rules.

1. With effect from 28 August 2015, Ms Juliana Cheng San San has
been appointed as an Executive Director of the Company.

2. With effect from 29 February 2016, Mr Ko Tak Fai, Desmond has
stepped down as the Chairman of the Audit Committee and Dato' Fu
Ah Kiow, an Independent Non-executive Director and member of the
Nomination Committee has been appointed as the new Chairman
of the Audit Committee.

Chong Sui Hiong, Shaun, aged 48, was appointed as the CEO of the Group
since 16 May 2014. Mr Chong is an Executive Director of the Company.
His biographical details are set out under the paragraph headed "Executive
Directors" above.

Low Kim Tuan, aged 60, is the Chief Operating Officer of the Group.
Mr Low holds Executive Diploma in Management Studies from Curtin
University of Technology, Australia and has completed an EMBA course at
Chung Yuan Christian University, Taiwan, and attended retail management
and senior management courses conducted in the USA and Taiwan. He
has more than 20 years of experience in the retail industry and more than
15 years of experience working in the PRC retail market. He was with the
Emporium Group before joining The Lion Group in 1987 as a regional
manager and was promoted to the position of Head Office Merchandising
Manager in 1990. He joined the Group upon the establishment of the Group
and headed the merchandising department in Beijing.

Juliana Cheng San San, aged 46, was appointed as the Brand Director
of the new branding division of the Group since 2014. Ms Cheng is an
Executive Director of the Company. Her biographical details are set out
under the paragraph headed "Executive Directors" above.

Ms Cheng is a daughter of Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem, the Executive Director
and Chairman of the Company.
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Wong Chee Keong, aged 50, is the Director of Human Resource Department
of the Group. Mr Wong obtained his Bachelor of Science from Campbell
University of North Carolina, USA. He joined The Lion Group's MIS
Department in August 1991, and travelled extensively to the PRC. In August
1996 he was seconded to the Group and headed the MIS department based
in Beijing.

Tan Guan Soon, aged 48, was appointed as the Director of Food and
Beverage Division of the Group since 2014. Mr Tan obtained his Bachelor
of Science in Finance from University of Nebraska - Lincoln, USA and
a Master of Business Administration from Southern Cross University,
Australia. He was appointed as the Financial Controller of the Lion Group's
China Brewing Division in July 1997 before joining the Group in April 2004,

Ong Choo Keng, Daryl, aged 48, is the Director of the Store Planning
Department. Mr Ong holds a Diploma in Architecture from Prime Tech
Institute, Malaysia. He joined The Lion Group's Visual Merchandising
Department in December 1993, and was actively involved in new store
design and remodeling projects. In October 2001, he joined the Retail
Division of the Group and headed the Visual Merchandising Department
based in Shanghai.

He Peng, aged 52, is the General Manager for Information Technology
Department of the Group. Mr He obtained his Master of Applied
Mathematics from Xidian University, PRC. He joined the Group in 2003 as
Information Technology Manager.

Lim Hock Soon, aged 44, was appointed as the General Manager of
Business Development Department of the Group from March 2015. Mr
Lim obtained his Bachelor of Mechanical Engineering from Technological
University of Malaysia. He joined the Group's Engineering Department as
the General Manager of Engineering Department in July 2010.

Wang Xiu Ming, aged 62, was appointed as the Senior Operation Director
since 2014. Ms Wang holds a Bachelor Degree in Business Management
from Beijing Institute of Finance and Commerce Management. Ms Wang
joined the Group in 2000.
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Zhou lJia, aged 44, was appointed as the Senior Operation Director
since 2014. Mr Zhou graduated with a Bachelor Degree in Business
Administration from University of Yuzhou. In 1995, Mr Zhou joined the
Merchandising Department of Chongqing Wanyou Parkson and was
promoted as the General Manager's Assistant of Kunming Parkson in 2002.

Huang Lu, aged 40, has been appointed as the Director of Marketing
Department since 2016. She obtained her Bachelor's Degree of International
Business Management from Oxford Brookes University of the United
Kingdom. Ms Huang worked with Starbucks China and IKEA China as
Marketing Director responsible for marketing and brand building before
joining the Group.

Zhang Ji Ning, aged 42, has been appointed as General Manager of the
Qingdao Lion Mall since 2014. Mr Zhang has more than 20 years of retail
operation experience. He obtained his Master of Arts in International
Relations from Nankai University. The program was a partnership between
the Flinders University from South Australia and Nankai University.

Wang Xing, aged 39, joined the Group in May 2015 as the Supermarket
Department's Eastern Region General Manager. Mr Wang holds a Bachelor
Degree in Industry Foreign Trade from the Zhejiang University of Technology.
He has more than 16 years of supermarket management experience.

Lim Ban Fong, aged 36, was appointed as the Chief Internal Auditor of
the Group since May 2014. Mr Lim holds a Bachelor's Degree in Accounting
from the Multimedia University of Malaysia, and joined the Group in
November 2010. He is a member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Mr Lim has more than 10 years of experience in auditing.

Au Chen Sum, aged 37, was appointed as the Chief Financial Officer of the
Group since 16 May 2014. Mr Au holds a bachelor's degree in accounting
from University of Malaya, and joined the Group in October 2010. He is a
member of the Malaysian Institute of the Certified Public Accountants. He
is also a chartered accountant with the Malaysian Institute of Accountants.
Mr Au has more than 10 years of experience in accounting, auditing and
corporate finance.
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The Company recognizes the importance of good corporate governance
to the Company's healthy growth and has devoted considerable efforts in
identifying and formulating corporate governance practices appropriate
to the Company's records. The Company's corporate governance practices
are based on the principles and code provisions set out in Corporate
Governance Code ("CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules").
In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the code
provisions set out in the CG Code throughout the year under review.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the
"Model Code"). Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and
the Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the standard
set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2015.

The Company has also established written guidelines no less exacting
than the Model Code (the "Employees Written Guidelines") for securities
transactions by employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished
price-sensitive information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by the
employees was noted by the Company.

As of the date of this report, the Board comprises three (3) Executive
Directors namely Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem, Chong Sui Hiong and Juliana
Cheng San San, two (2) Non-executive Directors namely Datuk Lee Kok
Leong and Dato' Dr. Hou Kok Chung and three (3) Independent Non-
executive Directors namely Dato' Fu Ah Kiow, Ko Tak Fai, Desmond and
Yau Ming Kim, Robert.

The Directors' biographical information and the relationships between the
members of the Board are set out in the "Biographies of Directors and
Senior Management” section on pages 21 to 27.
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As of the date of this report, the Chairman of the Company is Tan Sri Cheng
Heng Jem and CEO of the Group is Mr Chong Sui Hiong. The Chairman
provides leadership and is responsible for the effective functioning and
leadership of the Board. The CEO focuses on the Company's business
development and daily management and operations generally.

There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the
CEO to ensure that there is a balance of power and authority. The Chairman
is primarily responsible for the orderly conduct and working of the Board
whilst the CEO is responsible for the overall operations of the Group and
the implementation of the Board's strategies and policies.

Management is responsible for the day-to-day operations of the Group
under the leadership of the Chairman and the CEOQ.

The Company has met the Listing Rules requirements regarding the
sufficient number of Independent Non-executive Directors with one
Independent Non-executive Director with appropriate qualifications. The
Company has received from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation as regards independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the Independent
Non-executive Directors are independent.

Mr Yau Ming Kin, Robert, who is subject to retirement at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting, has been serving as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company for more than 9 years, has confirmed
his independence with reference to the factors set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company considers Mr Yau is still independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules
and will continue to bring valuable business experience, knowledge and
professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.
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Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that Non-executive Directors
shall be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election, whereas code
provision A.4.2 states that all Directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy
shall be subject to election by shareholders at the first general meeting
after appointment and that every Director, including those appointed for
a specific term, shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years.

Each of the Non-executive Directors of the Company is appointed for a
specific term of three years. One-third (1/3) of the Directors shall retire
from their respective office at every annual general meeting and all
Directors (including Non-executive Directors) are subject to retirement by
rotation once every three year in accordance with the Company's Articles
of Association and the CG Code.

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company and
oversees the Group's businesses, strategic decisions and performance and
is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising its affairs. Directors of the Board take decisions
objectively in the interests of the Company.

All Directors, including Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-
executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient
and effective functioning.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company as well as the services and advice from the company secretary
and senior management. The Directors may, upon request, seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company's
expenses for discharging their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held by
them and the Board regularly reviews the contribution required from each
Director to perform his responsibilities to the Company.
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The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy
matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of Directors and other
significant operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities relating
to implementing decisions of the Board, directing and co-ordinating the
daily operation and management of the Company are delegated to the
management.

The Board as a whole is also responsible for reviewing its composition,
developing and formulating the relevant procedures for nomination and
appointment of Directors, monitoring the appointment and succession
planning of Directors and assessing the independence of Independent
Non-executive Directors.

The Board reviewed its own structure, size and composition regularly to
ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience relevant to
the Company's business.

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Board will carry out the selection
process by making reference to the skills, experience, professional
knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of the proposed
candidates, the Company's needs and other relevant statutory requirements
and regulations. An external recruitment agency may be engaged to carry
out the recruitment and selection process when necessary.

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a Director of the Company
and of the conduct, business activities and development of the Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal, comprehensive and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his appointment to ensure
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Company
and full awareness of Director's responsibilities and obligations under the
Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
Internally-facilitated briefings for Directors will be arranged and reading
material on relevant topics will be issued to Directors where appropriate.
All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the
Company's expenses.
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During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Directors have participated
in continuous professional development and received trainings.

Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem had attended trainings and seminars as follows:-

Topics

- Hong Kong Regulatory Requirements
on Directors

- General pillars of ASEAN Economic
Community ("AEC")

- Protection of intellectual property in
view of the AEC Single Market

- World Department Store Forum 2015

Name of Institutions

Minter Ellison

The Lion Group

The Lion Group

International Group of
Department Stores

Chong Sui Hiong had attended trainings and seminars as follows:-

Topics

- Hong Kong Regulatory Requirements
on Directors

- World Department Store Forum 2015

Name of Institutions

Minter Ellison

International Group of
Department Stores

Juliana Cheng San San had attended trainings and seminars as follows:-

Topics

- World Department Store Forum 2015

Name of Institutions

International Group of
Department Stores
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Datuk Lee Kok Leong had attended trainings and seminars as follows:-

Topics Name of Institutions

- Hong Kong Regulatory Requirements Minter Ellison
on Directors
- World Department Store Forum 2015 International Group of
Department Stores

Dato’ Dr. Hou Kok Chung had attended trainings and seminars as follows:-

Topics Name of Institutions

- Hong Kong Regulatory Requirements Minter Ellison
on Directors

Dato' Fu Ah Kiow had attended trainings and seminars as follows:
Topics Name of Institutions

- Hong Kong Regulatory Requirements Minter Ellison
on Directors

- Responsible Business, Responsible Bursa Malaysia
Investing

- New and Revised Auditing Standard Strategy Corporate

Secretarial Sdn. Bhd.

- Sustainability Statement in Annual Strategy Corporate
Report Secretarial Sdn. Bhd.

- Amendments of the Capital Markets Strategy Corporate
and Services Act 2007 Secretarial Sdn. Bhd.

Mr Ko Tak Fai, Desmond had attended trainings and seminars as follows:

Topics Name of Institutions

- Hong Kong Regulatory Requirements Minter Ellison
on Directors
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Mr Yau Ming Kim, Robert had attended trainings and seminars as follows:

Topics Name of Institutions

- Getting Ready for New Competition Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Law

- Hong Kong Regulatory Requirements Minter Ellison

on Directors

- An Asset Manager's View of Corporate
Governance in Hong Kong

PricewaterhouseCoopers

- 'Smart’ Data - Is your board ready to
drive greater value from data to create
and sustain a competitive edge

PricewaterhouseCoopers

In addition, relevant reading materials including legal and regulatory
update have been provided to the Directors for their reference and
studying.

BOARD MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

Board meetings are held at least four (4) times a year with additional
meetings to be convened as and when necessary to determine the overall
strategic directions and objectives of the Group and approve quarterly,
interim and annual results and other significant matters.

During the year under review, six (6) Board meetings were held and the
Directors' attendances are listed below:
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Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem (Chairman) T REER ()
Chong Sui Hiong Rl
Juliana Cheng San San EMm (RS —hF

(appointed on 28 August 2015)

Datuk Lee Kok Leong 2EZHERE
Dato' Dr. Hou Kok Chung 2EMEEET
Dato’ Fu Ah Kiow SEHTH

Ko Tak Fai, Desmond BEE
Yau Ming Kim, Robert 8%
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Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held a meeting
with the Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive
Director) without the presence of Executive Directors during the year.

Code Provision A.6.7 stipulates that Independent Non-executive Directors
and other Non-executive Directors should attend the issuer's general
meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders.

During the year under review, an Annual General Meeting was held on 22
May 2015 and all directors had attended the meeting.

The Company has established an Audit Committee which currently
comprises five (5) members, three (3) of whom are Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely, Dato' Fu Ah Kiow (Chairman of the Audit
Committee), Mr Ko Tak Fai, Desmond and Mr Yau Ming Kim, Robert and
the other two (2) members are Non-executive Directors, namely, Datuk Lee
Kok Leong and Dato' Dr. Hou Kok Chung.

On 29 February 2016, Mr Ko Tak Fai, Desmond, the Chairman of the Audit
Committee of the Company since 22 November 2006, has stepped down
as Chairman and Dato' Fu Ah Kiow has been appointed by the Board as
the Chairman of the Audit Committee. Mr Ko Tak Fai, Desmond remains as
a member of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee is required to advise the Board on the appointment
and retention of external auditor, to review the external auditors'
independence and objectivity, to review quarterly, interim and annual
accounts of the Group, to access the adequacy and effectiveness of
internal control, to review the internal audit function and internal control
procedures.

The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year and the Chief
Financial Officer, Chief Internal Auditor, In-House Counsel, the Compliance
Officer and a representative of the external auditors of the Company shall
normally be invited to attend the meetings. The Company Secretary or her
nominee shall be the secretary of the Audit Committee.
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During the year under review, there were four (4) meetings held by the
Audit Committee and the attendances are listed below:

REEEE  BREARERITNWRE
% HEERIT

Dato’ Fu Ah Kiow SENRGE (RZ2—RF 4 4
(appointed as Chairman on 29 February 2016) “AZHNBEZEAEERE)

Ko Tak Fai, Desmond (ceased as Chairman and SEE (RN-_E—X~E_A 4 4
remains as a member on 29 February 2016) “TAHBTEAEE
BEERKE)
Yau Ming Kim, Robert 8%l 4 4
Datuk Lee Kok Leong 2EFER 4 4
Dato' Dr. Hou Kok Chung SEMEEET 4 4

The Group's results for the year 2015 was reviewed by the Audit Committee.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the requirements of the CG Code, the Company’s Remuneration
Committee consists of three (3) members, two (2) of whom are Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Mr Yau Ming Kim, Robert (Chairman of
the Remuneration Committee) and Mr Ko Tak Fai, Desmond and the other
member is an Executive Director, namely Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible to review and develop the
Group's policy on remuneration for its Directors (including Executive
Directors) so as to ensure that it attracts and retains the Directors needed
to manage the Company and the Group effectively. Directors do not
participate in decisions regarding their own remuneration.
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The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year and at such
other times as its chairman shall require. During the year under review,
the Remuneration Committee had one (1) meeting and the attendances
are listed below:
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Yau Ming Kim, Robert 8%
Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem T REER
Ko Tak Fai, Desmond S1E)

The Remuneration Committee has reviewed the remuneration policy and
the remuneration packages of the Executive Directors and the senior
management for the year under review.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has set up a Nomination Committee consisting of three (3)
members, one (1) of whom is an Executive Director, namely Tan Sri Cheng
Heng Jem (Chairman of the Nomination Committee) and the other two (2)
members are Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr Yau Ming
Kim, Robert and Dato" Fu Ah Kiow.

The Nomination Committee is responsible to review the structure, size,
composition and diversity (including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional and industry experience, skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board and make recommendations to the
Board on appointment of the directors, so as to ensure that all nominations
are fair and transparent.

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy on 16 August 2013
which aims to set out the approach to achieve diversity on the Company's
board of directors. The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of
having a diverse board, and sees diversity at Board level as an essential
element in maintaining a competitive advantage.
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The Nomination Committee shall meet at least once a year and at such
other times as its chairman shall require. During the year under review,
the Nomination Committee had one (1) meeting and the attendances are
listed below:
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Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem T REER
Yau Ming Kim, Robert 8%l
Dato' Fu Ah Kiow FEHER

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Executive Committee was established by the Board for performing the
functions set out in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Executive Committee reviewed the Company's corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management, the Company's policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of
the Model Code and Employees Written Guidelines, and the Company's
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance
Report.

AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the auditors of the Company
received approximately RMB4,995,000 for audit services and RMB597,000
for non-audit services.
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The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Group.

The statement of the auditors on their reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements of the Group is set out in the Auditors' Report on
pages 67 to 68.

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal control
system to safeguard the Company's shareholders’ investments and the
Company's assets, and reviewing the effectiveness of such system on an
annual basis through the Audit Committee.

The Company maintains a tailored governance structure with defined lines
of responsibility and appropriate delegation of responsibility and authority
to the senior management.

The internal auditor, who is independent of the Company's daily operations
and accounting functions, is responsible for establishing the Group's
internal control framework, covering all material controls including
financial, operational and compliance controls. The internal control
framework also provides for identification and management of risk. The
internal auditor formulates the annual internal audit plan and procedures,
conducts periodic independent reviews on the operations of individual
divisions to identify any irregularity and risk, develops action plans and
recommendations to address the identified risks, and reports to the Audit
Committee on any key findings and progress of the internal audit process.
The Audit Committee, in turn, reports to the Board on any material issues
and makes recommendations to the Board.

During the year under review, the Board, through the Audit Committee, has
conducted continuous review of the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Company.

Mrs Seng Sze Ka Mee, Natalia of Tricor Services Limited, external service
provider, has been engaged by the Company as the company secretary. Its
primary contact person at the Company is Mr Au Chen Sum, Chief Financial
Officer of the Company and Ms Yap Choy Yoon, General Manager of Legal
Department of the Company.
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To safequard shareholder interests and rights, a separate resolution is
proposed for each substantially separate issue at shareholder meetings,
including the election of individual Directors. All resolutions put forward
at shareholder meetings will be voted by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules
and poll results will be posted on the websites of the Company and of the
Stock Exchange after each general meeting.

Pursuant to Article 79 of the Company's Articles of Association, the Board
may, whenever it thinks fit, convene an extraordinary general meeting.
General meetings shall also be convened on the written requisition of any
two or more members of the Company deposited at the principal office of
the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have
such a principal office, the registered office specifying the objects of the
meeting and signed by the requisitionists, provided that such requisitionists
held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company. General meetings may also be convened
on the written requisition of any one member of the Company which is
a recognised clearing house (or its nominee(s)) deposited at the principal
office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases
to have such a principal office, the registered office specifying the objects
of the meeting and signed by the requisitionist, provided that such
requisitionist held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company. If the Board does not within 21
days from the date of deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene
the meeting to be held within a further 21 days, the requisitionist(s)
themselves or any of them representing more than one-half of the total
voting rights of all of them, may convene the general meeting in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may be convened
by the Board provided that any meeting so convened shall not be held after
the expiration of three months from the date of deposit of the requisition,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.

Under normal circumstances, the Company will not deal with verbal or
anonymous enquiries.
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Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above to
the following:

Address: 5th Floor, Metro Plaza

No. 555 Loushanguan Road

Changning District

Shanghai 200051

China

(For the attention of Chairman of the Board/
Chief Executive Officer)

Telephone: (8621) 6229-8001

Fax: (8621) 3258-0550

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholders must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as
the case may be) to the above address and provide their full name, contact
details and identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders'
information may be disclosed as required by law.

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding of the
Group's business performance and strategies. The Company endeavours to
maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders and in particular, through
annual general meetings and other general meetings. The Chairman of the
Board, all other members of the Board including Non-executive Directors,
Independent Non-executive Directors, and the Chairmen of all Board
committees (or their delegates) will make themselves available at the
annual general meetings to meet shareholders and answer their enquiries.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any changes to
its Articles of Association. An up to date version of the Company's Articles
of Association is also available on the Company's website and the Stock
Exchange's website.
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The Board of Directors of the Company is pleased to announce the audited
consolidated results of the Company, its subsidiaries, a joint venture entity
and associates for the year ended 31 December 2015.

The Company, incorporated with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on
3 August 2005, acts as an investment company. The principal activities of
the Group are the operation and management of a network of department
stores in the PRC. The activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 1 to the financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of the Group's activities as required
by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“Companies
Ordinance"), including a fair review of the business and a description
of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, particulars of
important events affecting the Group that have occurred since the end
of the financial year 2015, and an indication of likely future development
in the Group's business, can be found in the "Chairman's Statement",
"Summary of Financial Highlights", "Management Discussion and Analysis"
and "Corporate Governance Report" sections of the Annual Report. The
above sections form part of this report.

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 69.

Changes on the Group's fixed assets are disclosed on note 11 of the
financial statements.

The Board of Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend
for the year of 2015 of RMBO0.01 (2014: RMBO0.01) in cash per share.
The Company declared and paid an interim dividend of RMB0.04 (2014:
RMBO0.04) in cash per share. On the assumption that the approval is
obtained during the forthcoming annual general meeting for the payment
of the proposed final dividend, the Company shall be paying full year
dividend of RMBO0.05 (2014: RMBO0.05) in cash per share for the year 2015.
Dividend payout ratio for 2015 is more than 100.0% (2014: 58.9%). The
final dividend will be paid in Hong Kong dollars, such amount is to be
calculated by reference to the middle rate published by People's Bank of
China for the conversion of Renminbi ("RMB") to Hong Kong dollars as at
1 June 2016.

Upon the approval to be obtained from the forthcoming annual general
meeting, the final dividend will be payable on or about 30 June 2016 to
the shareholders whose name appears on the Register of Members of the
Company at the close of business on 30 May 2016.
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Details of movements in the Company's share capital for the year ended 31
December 2015 are set out in note 29 to the financial statements.

The Directors of the Company as at the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem (Chairman)
Chong Sui Hiong
Juliana Cheng San San (appointed on 28 August 2015)

Non-executive Directors

Datuk Lee Kok Leong
Dato' Dr. Hou Kok Chung

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dato' Fu Ah Kiow
Ko Tak Fai, Desmond
Yau Ming Kim, Robert

Details of the profile of each member of the Board are set out in the
"Biographies of Directors and Senior Management" section on pages 21
to 27.

Pursuant to Article 114 of the Company's Articles of Association, Ms Juliana
Cheng San San who was appointed on 28 August 2015, shall hold office
only until the next following annual general meeting and shall then be
eligible for re-election.

Pursuant to Article 130 of the Company's Articles of Association, Tan Sri
Cheng Heng Jem, Dato’ Dr. Hou Kok Chung and Mr Yau Ming Kim, Robert
will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem and Mr Chong Sui Hiong have each entered into
an appointment letter/a service contract with the Company commencing
from 9 November 2014 and 13 November 2014 respectively under which
they agreed to act as Executive Directors for a term of three years. The
appointment may be terminated before such expiry by not less than three
months' written notice. Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem will receive an annual
Director's fee of HK$240,000 under the service contract. Mr Chong Sui
Hiong will receive an annual salary with bonus and incentive payment at
the discretion of the Board and an annual Director's fee of HK$240,000.

Ms Juliana Cheng San San has signed an appointment letter with the
Company commencing from 28 August 2015 under which she agreed to
act as Executive Directors for a term of three years. The appointment may
be terminated before such expiry by not less than three months' written
notice. Ms Juliana Cheng San San will receive an annual Director's fee of
HK$240,000 and an annual salary with bonus and incentive payment at
the discretion of the management as Brand Director of the Group's new
branding division.

Datuk Lee Kok Leong and Dato' Dr. Hou Kok Chung have each signed a letter
of appointment with the Company commencing from 1 September 2014
and 13 November 2014 respectively under which they have agreed to act
as Non-executive Directors for a period of three years and will receive an
annual Director's fee of HK$240,000.

Dato' Fu Ah Kiow has signed a letter of appointment with the Company
commencing from 13 November 2014 under which he agreed to act as an
Independent Non-executive Director for a period of one year which may
only be renewed twice. Mr Ko Tak Fai, Desmond and Mr Yau Ming Kim,
Robert have each signed a letter of appointment with the Company on 13
October 2014 and 16 November 2015 respectively under which they agreed
to act as Independent Non-executive Directors for the period of one year
and shall continue thereafter subject to a maximum of three years unless
terminated in accordance with the terms of the appointment letters. The
annual Director's fee for each Independent Non-executive Director is
HK$240,000.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Director has, nor is it proposed that
any of them will have, a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.

Other than as disclosed under the "Connected Transactions” section below,
no contracts of significance to which the Company, its holding company,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year under review or at any time during that
year.
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As at 31 December 2015, none of the Directors and Directors of the
Company's subsidiaries, or their respective associates had interests in
businesses, other than being a director of the Company and/or its
subsidiaries and their respective associates, which compete or are likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Company
and its subsidiaries as required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing
Rules, except for the interests held by Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem (through
PHB) in 1 Parkson branded department store in the PRC. Details of that
Parkson branded department store are set out in the prospectus of the
Company issued on 17 November 2005. As mentioned earlier, the Company
possessed an option/right of first refusal to acquire that Parkson branded
department store as and when it deems fit.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, a permitted indemnity provision
as defined in the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance was in force for the
benefit of the Directors. The Company has taken out and maintained
appropriate insurance cover in respect of potential losses or liabilities
which the Directors or officers may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of their duties of their office.

As at 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and Chief Executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and/
or debentures (as the case may be) of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
("SFQ")) which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which any such Director or Chief Executive
is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which
were required to be entered into the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 352 of the SFO or which were otherwise required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code, were set out below:
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(a)

Long positions of Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem in the share capital of
the Company:

Corporate interest

NG

Corporate interest

=g

NGIL- 5

NOTES:

PRG Corporation Limited
("PRG Corporation”)

East Crest International East Crest

Limited ("East Crest")

Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem, together with his wife, Puan Sri Chan
Chau Ha alias Chan Chow Har, through their interest and a series
of companies in which they have a substantial interest, are entitled
to exercise or control the exercise of more than one-third of the
voting power at general meetings of PHB. Since PHB is entitled to
exercise or control the exercise of 100% of the voting power at
general meeting of PRG Corporation through East Crest, pursuant
to the SFO, he is deemed to be interested in both the 1,438,300,000
Shares held by PRG Corporation and the 9,970,000 Shares held by
East Crest in the Company.

Based on the issued and paid up capital of the Company as at 31
December 2015.

(a)

PRG Corporation

FHET B EE RN AN R BB A H 4F

PN

B -

MEeE -

1,438,300,000 53.49%
ordinary shares
1,438,300,000
P i AL
9,970,000 0.37%
ordinary shares
9,970,000

B B

NMEEERERAZFENE
BRINERERSNER R ESH
BERERN—RIAQAF] BE
PHBIRR K& E1TE =52 — LA
LREESES L RN
{7 o FRPAPHBIE AEast CrestA R
PRG Corporationflt R K& E17{F
1000075 52 47 sk 12 il |- it % = 9
I Bt BEBEEHFERBER
B+ 4548 A PAPRG CorporationF#¥
N X 7]1,438,300,0008% A% 15 K2 East
CrestFT #%5 78 A 7]9,970,000% % 15
FHEEER -

IWARABRR - ZE—RHF+_-_A=
+—HMBEBRTRARKRAAEE
ﬁo
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(b)  Long positions of Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem in the share capital of (b)) SHIREEZAARATEEEZE (F

the Company's associated corporations (as defined in the SFO):

ERLBHFRBAEHEG) BAF L

B

PHB Beneficial interestand  Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem 654,709,795 60.40%
corporate interest together with his spouse together with his spouse ordinary shares
EREZRAAES  Chan Chau Ha @ Chan Chan Chau Ha @ Chan 654,709,795
Chow Har directly, and Chow Har directly, and IR
through a series of through a series of
controlled corporations controlled corporations
RE2EERERARE NEREERERARE
ENERNEEE Rk RHERMNEER R
BR-ZIXHEE BB RXEEE
East Crest Corporate interest PHB PHB 1 ordinary share 100%
NGl RE Rk
Puncak Pelita Sdn Bhd Corporate interest PHB PHB 2 ordinary shares 100%
NEER WREBR
Parkson Properties Holdings Corporate interest PHB PHB 2 ordinary shares 100%
Co, Ltd. AR WRERER
Parkson Vietnam Investment Corporate interest PHB PHB 2 ordinary shares 100%
Holdings Co,, Ltd NGl WREBER
Prime Yield Holdings Limited Corporate interest PHB PHB 1 ordinary share 100%
RElEm RE Rk
Corporate Code Sdn Bhd Corporate interest PHB PHB 2 ordinary shares 100%
NEER WREBR
PRG Corporation Corporate interest East Crest East Crest 1 ordinary share 100%
NGl REBR
Smart Spectrum Limited Corporate interest East Crest East Crest 1 ordinary share 100%
NalER REEK
Park Avenue Fashion Sdn. Bhd.  Corporate interest East Crest East Crest 250,002 100%
NElER ordinary shares
250,002
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Serbadagang Holdings Sdn. Bhd.  Corporate interest East Crest East Crest 2 ordinary shares 100%
DAlER IREBER

Parkson Retail Asia Limited Beneficial interest and East Crest Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem and 458,433,300 67.68%
corporate interest through East Crest ordinary shares
EnEa RO aEs R EERRRER 458,433,300
Fast Crest Rg@ER

Parkson Properties NDT Corporate interest Parkson Properties Holdings ~ Parkson Properties Holdings 2 ordinary shares 100%
(Emperor) Co, Ltd. NGl 3o Co,, Ltd. Co, Ltd. LB

Parkson Properties Hanoi Corporate interest Parkson Properties Holdings  Parkson Properties Holdings 1 ordinary share 100%
Co, Ltd. NGl 3o Co, Ltd. Co, Ltd. 1REBR

Parkson HCMC Holdings Corporate interest Parkson Vietnam Investment  Parkson Vietnam Investment 2 ordinary shares 100%
Co, Ltd. NGl 3o Holdings Co,, Ltd. Holdings Co,, Ltd. IREBR

Parkson HaiPhong Holdings Corporate interest Parkson Vietnam Investment  Parkson Vietnam Investment 2 ordinary shares 100%
Co, Ltd. RAER Holdings Co., Ltd. Holdings Co. Ltd. WREBR

Parkson TSN Holdings Co., Ltd. ~ Corporate interest Parkson Vietnam Investment  Parkson Vietnam Investment 2 ordinary shares 100%
NGl Holdings Co,, Ltd. Holdings Co., Ltd. WA

Dyna Puncak Sdn Bhd Corporate interest Prime Yield Holdings Limited  Prime Yield Holdings Limited 2 ordinary shares 100%
NAEER WEBR

Gema Binari Sdn. Bhd. Corporate interest Prime Yield Holdings Limited  Prime Yield Holdings Limited 2 ordinary shares 100%
RAER WREBR

Prestasi Serimas Sdn Bhd Corporate interest Prime Yield Holdings Limited ~ Prime Yield Holdings Limited 2,000,000 100%
NElER ordinary shares
2,000,0008% &

Parkson Credit Holdings Corporate interest Prime Yield Holdings Limited ~ Prime Yield Holdings Limited 2 ordinary shares 100%
Sdn Bhd NAEER B ER

AUM Hospitality Sdn Bhd Corporate interest Prime Yield Holdings Limited ~ Prime Yield Holdings Limited 60,000 60%

NG S

ordinary shares
60,0008 & ik



Dalian Tianhe Parkson Shopping  Corporate interest

Centre Co., Ltd.

Centro Retail Pte Ltd.

PT. Tozy Sentosa

Parkson Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Myanmar Co., Pte. Ltd.

Parkson HBT Properties Co., Ltd.

Idaman Erajuta Sdn. Bhd.

Magna Rimbun Sdn Bhd

True Excel Investments Limited

DElELR

Corporate interest
DAlER

Corporate interest
NalEs

Corporate interest
DAlER

Corporate interest
NG5

Corporate interest
nelE

Corporate interest
NEER

Corporate interest
DElEs

Corporate interest
DR
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Serbadagang Holdings
Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Retail Asia Limited

Parkson Retail Asia Limited

Centro Retail Pte Ltd.

Parkson Retail Asia Limited

Parkson Retail Asia Limited

Parkson TSN Holdings Co., Ltd.

Dyna Puncak Sdn Bhd

Dyna Puncak Sdn Bhd

Dyna Puncak Sdn Bhd

Serbadagang Holdings
Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Retail Asia Limited

Parkson Retail Asia Limited

Centro Retail Pte Ltd.

Parkson Retail Asia Limited

Parkson Retail Asia Limited

Parkson TSN Holdings Co., Ltd.

Dyna Puncak Sdn Bhd

Dyna Puncak Sdn Bhd

Dyna Puncak Sdn Bhd

60,000,000
registered capital
(RMB)

AR
60,000,000
(AR%)

2 ordinary shares

WREBR

45,000
ordinary shares
45,000/ & Bk

5,000
ordinary shares
50008 B 1B

50,000,002
ordinary shares
50,000,002
RERR

1 ordinary share

IRERER

2,100,000
capital (USD)
A

2,100,000 ((7)

2 ordinary shares

WREER

2 ordinary shares

WREBR

1 ordinary share

REER

60%

100%

100%
(in aggregate)
100% (A 3F)

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
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Parkson Branding Sdn Bhd Corporate interest Gema Binari Sdn. Bhd. Gema Binari Sdn. Bhd. 7,000,000 100%
NGl ordinary shares
7,000,000

Giftmate Sdn Bhd Corporate interest (Gema Binari Sdn. Bhd. (Gema Binari Sdn. Bhd. 120,000 60%
NGl 3o ordinary shares
120,000

Parkson Credit Sdn Bhd Corporate interest Parkson Credit Holdings Parkson Credit Holdings 30,000,000 100%
NG Sdn Bhd Sdn Bhd ordinary shares
30,000,000
e

Entity A Concepts Sdn Bhd Corporate interest AUM Hospitality Sdn Bhd AUM Hospitality Sdn Bnhd 2,000,000 100%
RNAlER ordinary shares
2,000,000

Entity B Management Sdn Bhd ~ Corporate interest AUM Hospitality Sdn Bhd AUM Hospitality Sdn Bhd 400,000 100%
NalEm ordinary shares
400,000 %

F&tB Essentials Sdn Bhd Corporate interest AUM Hospitality Sdn Bhd AUM Hospitality Sdn Bhd 100,000 100%
NGl ordinary shares
100000k &R

Fantastic Red Sdn Bnd Corporate interest AUM Hospitality Sdn Bhd AUM Hospitality Sdn Bhd 75,000 75%
NEER ordinary shares
75,0000 & Bk

AUM Asiatic Restaurants Corporate interest AUM Hospitality Sdn Bnd AUM Hospitality Sdn Bnhd 187,500 750
Sdn Bhd RAlER ordinary shares
187500 E R

Entity C Sdn Bhd Corporate interest AUM Hospitality Sdn Bhd AUM Hospitality Sdn Bhd 100,000 100%

NalEs

ordinary shares
1000008 & %



Parkson SGN Co,, Ltd.

Parkson Cambodia Holdings
Co., Ltd.

Parkson Edutainment World
Sdn. Bhd.

Super Gem Resources Sdn Bhd

Parkson Lifestyle Sdn Bhd

Kiara Innovasi Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Online Sdn Bhd

Parkson Haiphong Co,, Ltd.

Parkson Unlimited Beauty
Sdn Bhd (formerly known
as Bold Paramount Sdn Bhd)

Corporate interest
NelER

Corporate interest
Nalks

Corporate interest
NSIL 3

Corporate interest
N5

Corporate interest
NG5

Corporate interest
NelE

Corporate interest
NalEs

Corporate interest
DAlER

Corporate interest
NeElER
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Parkson Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn Bhd

Parkson Corporation Sdn Bhd

Parkson Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn Bhd

4,500,000
Capital (USD)
[
4,500,000 1)

1 ordinary share

REER

700,000
ordinary shares
700,000
B

700,000
ordinary shares
700,000
REBR

2 ordinary shares

T ER

3,000,000
ordinary shares
3,000,000
RE B

2,600,000
ordinary shares
2,600,000
R ER

30,000,920
capital (USD)

e

30,000,920 (7T

1,000,000
ordinary shares
1,000,000
REBR

100%

100%

70%

70%

100%

60%

100%

100%

100%
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Perfect Gatelink Sdn Bhd

Parkson Trading (Vietnam)
Company Limited

Solid Gatelink Sdn Bhd

Parkson Vietnam Co,, Ltd.

Parkson Myanmar Investment
Company Pte Ltd.

Festival City Sdn. Bhd.

Megan Mastika Sdn Bhd

True Excel Investments

(Cambodia) Co,, Ltd.

Parkson Fashion Sdn Bhd

Parkson Branding (L) Limited

Corporate interest
NAlER

Corporate interest
Nals

Corporate interest
Rl

Corporate interest
DAlER

Corporate interest
Nal

Corporate interest
NalEs

Corporate interest
DAlER

Corporate interest
Nals

Corporate interest
NelEL

Corporate interest
ReElEs

Parkson Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn Bhd

Parkson Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Myanmar Co., Pte Ltd.

[daman Erajuta Sdn. Bhd.

Magna Rimbun Sdn Bhd

True Excel Investments

Limited

Parkson Branding Sdn Bhd

Parkson Branding Sdn Bhd

Parkson Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn Bhd

Parkson Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Myanmar Co., Pte Ltd.

[daman Erajuta Sdn. Bhd.

Magna Rimbun Sdn Bhd

True Excel Investments

Limited

Parkson Branding Sdn Bhd

Parkson Branding Sdn Bhd

2 ordinary shares

WL BR

300,000
capital (USD)
B

300,000 (:7T)

2 ordinary shares
WREBR

10,340,000
capital (USD)
AR

10,340,000 (1)

2,100,000
ordinary shares
2,100,000
REER

500,000
ordinary shares
500,000 & B

300,000
ordinary shares
300,008 &

1,000
ordinary shares

1000 LM

5,000,000
ordinary shares
5,000,000
REER

300,000
ordinary shares

300,000 & %

100%

100%

100%

100%

70%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%



Business Spirit Sdn Bhd

J Rockets 1 Sdn Bhd

Massive Privilege Sdn Bhd

Urban Palette Sdn Bhd

The Opera Gastroclub Sdn Bhd

Genuine Resources Sdn Bhd

Alunan Omega Sdn Bhd

Ombrello Resources Sdn Bhd

Collective Entity Sdn Bhd

Vertigo Dot My Sdn Bhd

Parkson (Cambodia) Co., Ltd.

Corporate interest
NAlER

Corporate interest

nalEL

Corporate interest
NSIL 3

Corporate interest
Nals

Corporate interest
NalE

Corporate interest
NSIL 3

Corporate interest
DAlER

Corporate interest
DAlER
Corporate interest
NSIL 3
Corporate interest
NElEsR

Corporate interest
NSIL 3

Entity A Concepts Sdn Bhd

Entity A Concepts Sdn Bhd

Entity A Concepts Sdn Bhd

Entity A Concepts Sdn Bhd

Entity A Concepts Sdn Bhd

AUM Asiatic Restaurants

Sdn Bhd

AUM Asiatic Restaurant
Sdn Bhd

Entity C Sdn Bhd

Entity C Sdn Bhd

Entity C Sdn Bhd

Parkson Cambodia Holdings
Co., Ltd.

PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED BEEHFzE£EHTREAT

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Entity A Concepts Sdn Bhd

Entity A Concepts Sdn Bhd

Entity A Concepts Sdn Bhd

Entity A Concepts Sdn Bhd

Entity A Concepts Sdn Bhd

AUM Asiatic Restaurants

Sdn Bhd

AUM Asiatic Restaurant
Sdn Bhd

Entity C Sdn Bhd

Entity C Sdn Bhd

Entity C Sdn Bhd

Parkson Cambodia Holdings

Co,, Ltd.

EXEEREE

2 ordinary shares

WL BR

350,000
ordinary shares
3500008 & B

300,000
ordinary shares
300,0008% B3 A%

720,000
ordinary shares
720,0008% & Mk

2,250,000
ordinary shares
2,250,000
REER

1,000,000
ordinary shares
1,000,000 & R

300,000
ordinary shares
300,000 &

100 ordinary shares

100 E &R

300,000
ordinary shares
300,000 Z M

60,000 ordinary shares
60,000 Z B

1,000
ordinary shares

100008 LA

100%

100%

100%

90%

90%

100%

100%

100%

60%

60%

100%



2015 ANNUAL REPORT | FE##E
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

EXERES

Parkson Vietnam Management
Services Co., Ltd.

Parkson Myanmar Asia Pte. Ltd.

Myanmar Parkson Company
Limited

Dimensi Andaman Sdn Bhd

Ohla Restaurant Sdn Bhd

Providence Club KL Sdn Bhd

Corporate interest
DR

Corporate interest
nals

Corporate interest
nal#s

Corporate interest
NSIL 3

Corporate interest
NAER

Corporate interest
Rl

Parkson Vietnam Co,, Ltd.

Parkson Myanmar Investment
Company Pte. Ltd.

Parkson Myanmar Investment
Company Pte. Ltd.

Parkson Myanmar Asia

Pte. Ltd.

Megan Mastika Sdn Bhd

Vertigo Dot My Sdn Bhd

Vertigo Dot My Sdn Bhd

Parkson Vietnam Co,, Ltd. 100,000
capital (USD)

F& 100,000 7T)

Parkson Myanmar Investment
Company Pte. Ltd.

30,000 ordinary
shares (USD)

1 ordinary share (SGD)
30,0008k B
(%7)

RE @R (3r)

Parkson Myanmar Investment
Company Pte Ltd.

270,000

ordinary shares
270,0008% & Mk
30,000

ordinary shares

30,0008k LM

Parkson Myanmar Asia
Pte. Ltd.

Megan Mastika Sdn Bhd 300,000
ordinary shares
53,719,999
redeemable
convertible
cumulative
preference shares
300,0008%
53,719 999%
ElEERED
ZRELR

Vertigo Dot My Sdn Bhd 100 ordinary shares

100K & @R
Vertigo Dot My Sdn Bhd 500,000
ordinary shares

500,000 & i i

100%

100%

100%
(in aggregate)
100% (&)

100%
(in aggregate)
100% (& 3t)

100%

100%
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(d)

PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED BEEHFzE£EHTREAT E

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

EXEEREE

Short positions of Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem in the share capital of  (c) FHTBEEERR AR RAEER (F
the Company's associated corporations (as defined in the SF0):

PHB

ERLBFRBEGRG) BAS R

B

Corporate interest Tan Sri Cheng Heng  Tan Sri Cheng Heng 40,000,142 3.69%
NEIER Jem together with  Jem together with ordinary shares

his spouse Chan his spouse Chan 40,000,142

Chau Ha @ Chan  Chau Ha @ Chan % 3 A%

Chow Har directly,
and through a
series of controlled
corporations

Chow Har directly,
and through a
series of controlled
corporations

FHEEERER FHEBERER

HEBES 2R
WERE KRB
B— R
£

Long positions of Chong Sui Hiong in the share capital of the
Company:

HRBEFER
WEER  RE
B RFIRRE
9

(d)  SRHENRARRBRAFHLEE

Beneficial interest Chong Sui Hiong Option to subscribe for shares' 375,000 0.01%
Bl R R B AR ordinary shares
375,0000% % i ik
Beneficial interest Chong Sui Hiong Chong Sui Hiong 20,000 Less than
EniEn SR I Rim ordinary shares 0.01%
20,0000% & i % DH0.01%
NOTES: BYEE

—_

I

Offer was made on 27 November 2012 pursuant to the Share Option
Scheme adopted on 9 November 2005.

Based on the issued and paid up share capital of the Company as
at 31 December 2015.

1. BE—ZSZTRAF+—ANLBER
KERETE BER2E—ZF
+—A-t+tBEREL -

2, NARBR -_ZE—HAF+_-_A=
T—HNEETREABRARE
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(e) Long positions of Juliana Cheng San San in the share capital of the  (e) S A R BRI AP AT A
Company:

Beneficial interest Juliana Cheng San San Option to subscribe for shares' 375,000 0.01%
EnfEn BT RERORERE ordinary shares
375,000 & B A
NOTES: BT
1. Offer was made on 27 November 2012 pursuant to the Share Option 1. BRE-ZFTAF T+ ANARMS
Scheme adopted on 9 November 2005. MEBEEE BN ZF

T—AZTEHZEREY -

2. Based on the issued and paid up share capital of the Company as 2. MARRAFRZF-—RAF+=ZA=
at 31 December 2015. T-HNEETREARASE
AE o

i
RES

SIERARBRARR LR

(f) Long positions of Ko Tak Fai, Desmond in the share capital of the  (f)
Company:

Beneficial interest Ko Tak Fai, Desmond Option to subscribe for shares' 75,000 Less than
EnfEn =EE REA D B BB AR E ordinary shares 0.01%
75.0000% % i@k HH0.01%
NOTES: MisE :
1. Offer was made on 27 November 2012 pursuant to the Share Option 1. BE_ZEEAFE+—ANLBER
Scheme adopted on 9 November 2005. HERESE ER - E——F
+—AZ-t++tHBELEL -
2. Based on the issued and paid up share capital of the Company as 2. WARRRR=ZFE—RF+=_A=
at 31 December 2015. T—HMEETREZRAAE

o
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(9) Long positions of Yau Ming Kim, Robert in the share capital of the  (g) EHARKATRATELTE
Company:

Beneficial interest Yau Ming Kim, Robert Option to subscribe for shares' 75,000 Less than
gy oy st R B BB AR ordinary shares 0.01%
75,000% & i@k DH0.01%

NOTES: BHEE
1. Offer was made on 27 November 2012 pursuant to the Share Option 1. BE—_ZETRE+— ANLBEG
Scheme adopted on 9 November 2005. R R ERE—— &

T-AZTEHRZEHEN -

2. Based on the issued and paid up share capital of the Company as 2. DARABTR-_E—RHFE+_-_A=
at 31 December 2015. +—HRNERTREHERASE
M o
pi-

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none of the Directors [ EFXFAEEBEEI  W"-ZE—HFE+ - A
or Chief Executives of the Company had any interests or short positions =+—H KAATEEETHRESTHAE

in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and #IER AR REEEELE (TERFHL
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) Hﬁi‘ﬂlﬂﬁlj%xv%) BN ~ B D M B

which are required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange CEEEAIREE S RHE S EXV
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests 45%7&8 Bt A MG AR F] N B X PR i
or short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such wrE (BREBEES RAERIINZE

provisions of the SFO), or are required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, { ﬁ(f)i%%&*“ Ve 1 AR (B B W 28 50K
to be entered in the register referred to therein, or as otherwise notified to ﬁ) SRIBEFH KB E RO 35216 E 5

the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code. AZIEFENELMANERIRE 3k
RIBAZAE ST RIZB A& AR A) BB S P ) 4
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2015, so far as the Directors are aware, each of the
following persons, not being a Director or Chief Executive of the Company,
had interests and short positions in the Company's shares which falls to
be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

E 2 RRA R AT K AE B R A7 R s I 0K

mp Hi

R-ZE—RAF+_A=+—H8 BEZSF
M UATEALT (WIEARREBTRESTT
BAB) RARBIRMDPHEREEZR AR
AREBEFSFRBAERMEXVIFE 2R FE3D
EBm AN T M B T FE

PHB Long Corporate interest 1,448,270,000 (Note 1) 53.86%
HeE UNEIL 3 (PfF&ED)
Puan Sri Chan Chau Ha alias Long Interest of spouse 1,448,270,000 (Note 2) 53.86%
Chan Chow Har T B (B s GE)
PRG Corporation Long Beneficial interest 1,438,300,000 (Note 1) 53.49%
HeE Enmfgs (f3ET)
Wang Hung Roger Long Beneficial interest, and 244,362,000 (Note 3) 9. 08%
e trustee (P 5E3)
EanEmn kXA
Wang Hsu Vivine H Long Interest of spouse and 244,362,000 (Note 4) 9. 08%
TA beneficiary of a trust (f5E4)
REEERETEZEA
GEICO Holdings Limited Long Corporate Interest 234,082,846 (Note 5) 8.70%
e NRER (M5E5)
Golden Eagle International Retail Long Beneficial interest 234,082,846 (Note 5) 8.70%
Group Limited He B (ff5E5)
Wang Dorothy S L Long Beneficiary of a trust 234,082,846 8.70%
[58=) ErEXmA
Wang Janice S'Y Long Beneficiary of a trust 234,082,846 8.70%
g EEEZEA
Prudential plc Long Corporate interest 170,937,500 (Note 6) 6.35%
[5S=) NRER (Mf3te)



PRG Corporation is a wholly owned subsidiary of East Crest which in turn is
wholly owned by PHB. By virtue of the SFO, PHB is deemed to be interested
in the Shares held by PRG Corporation in the Company.

Puan Sri Chan Chau Ha alias Chan Chow Har is the wife of Tan Sri Cheng
Heng Jem and is deemed to be interested in 1,448,270,000 Shares which
Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem is deemed to be interested in for the purposes of
the SFO.

The capacities of Wang Hung Roger in holding the 244,362,000 Shares (Long
position) were as to 10,279,154 Shares (Long position) as beneficial owner
and 234,082,846 Shares (Long position) as trustee.

Wang Hsu Vivine H is the wife of Wang Hung Roger and is deemed to be
interested in 244,362,000 Shares held by Wang Hung Roger.

Golden Eagle International Retail Group Limited is wholly owned by GEICO
Holdings Limited. By virtue of the SFO, GEICO Holdings Limited is deemed to
be interested in the Shares held by Golden Eagle International Retail Group
Limited in the Company.

The interest of Prudential plc was attributable on account through a number
of its subsidiaries.

PRG Corporations2East Crestf) & &
MiE A 7R] - MEast Crest X APHBE
BHEE - EREFRBER
PHB# 12 fEFAPRG Corporationﬁ$
NRAFBENRD A #EE -

BHBERME AN EEERY
EF ERBEHFRBEKRDY @
BIEGA NI REEIHREE B
B HEZSEN1,448,270,000 8% A% 17 B 4

N9
s o
T

T B AT #5 B #9244,362,0004% f% 17
(4F &) # + 10,279,154 P& 17 (4F
B)UNEHBEAFOREE M
234,082,846 8 It (47 &) AT
AFNEE -

THEBATENET  WHRHE
R T 1B 3% A #9244,362,0000% A% 17
FHEEEL ©

Golden Eagle International Retail
Group Limited HGEICO Holdings
Limited®2 BB A o R E 75 & A
B &) - GEICO Holdings Limited#
18 {E F2Golden Eagle International
Retail Group Limited 3B RIARD
IR A o

Prudential plcyiEz=JyBEME LK
MERRIAR
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As at 31 December 2015, as far as the Directors are aware, each of the
following persons, not being a Director or Chief Executive of the Company,
was directly or indirectly interested in 10% or more of the nominal value
of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances
at general meeting of a member of the Group other than the Company:

Xinjiang Youhao'

g R At

Wuxi Sunan?

5 %R

Chongging Wanyou?
EEER

Guizhou Shengi Enterprise*

M B

Shanghai Nine Sea Industry
FENEEX

Shanghai Nine Sea Industry
FENEEX

Newcore Retail Hong Kong Limited

Mount Earnings Sdn. Bhd.”
Koh Wee Lit
Gee Cher Chiang

Bernice Cheong Nyuk Siew

LA F A3 -

Xinjiang Parkson

HEA R

Wuxi Parkson
w5 E B

Chongging Parkson
BEEAE

Guizhou Parkson
ENEE

Shanghai Lion Property®
RS

Shanghai Nine Sea Parkson®

EBNERERE

Parkson Newcore Retail Shanghai Ltd

BRANRINEENE (L8) AR
NS

Yeehaw Best Practices Sdn. Bhd.

Rite BOS Sdn Bhd

Rite BOS Sdn Bhd

Rite BOS Sdn Bhd

R-ZE—RF+_A=+—H8 BEEF
Mo UTEUAL (WEARARRESSHHES
TBAE) BEESHEEZEFEAEEKERA
(R RAEBRIN) AT EE B AR A (BE M #E R 7]
EEMBER TRIREAE LIKE) FEE10%

499%

400%

30%

400%

71%

29%

51%

300%

23.88%

16.67%

16.67%



1. Xinjiang Friendship (Group) Co., Ltd., owns 49% of the equity interest of
Xinjiang Youhao Parkson Development Co., Ltd. ("Xinjiang Parkson").

2. Wuxi Sunan Investment Guarantee Co., Ltd., owns 40% of the equity interest
of Wuxi Sanyang Parkson Plaza Co., Ltd. ("Wuxi Parkson”).

3. Chongging Wanyou Economic Development Co., Ltd., owns 30% of the
equity interest of Chongqging Wanyou Parkson Plaza Co., Ltd. ("Chongging
Parkson").

4, (i) Guizhou Shengi Enterprise, owns 40% of the equity interest of

Guizhou Parkson.

(ii) Zhang Pei, Zhang Zhi Jun and Zhang Ya, own 30%, 40% and 30%
of the equity interest in Guizhou Shengi Enterprise, respectively,
representing a 12%, 169% and 12% indirect equity interest in
Guizhou Parkson.

5. Shanghai Nine Sea Lion Properties Management Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Lion
Property") is a cooperative joint venture enterprise established under the
laws of the PRC between Shanghai Nine Sea Industry Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai
Nine Sea Industry”) and Exonbury Limited ("Exonbury”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. Shanghai Nine Sea Industry is entitled to 71%
of the voting rights in the board of Shanghai Lion Property and 65% of its
distributable profits. The Group is entitled to 29% of the voting rights in
the board of Shanghai Lion Property and 35% of its distributable profits.

6. Shanghai Nine Sea Parkson Plaza Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Nine Sea Parkson")
is a cooperative joint venture enterprise established under the laws of
the PRC between Shanghai Nine Sea Industry and Exonbury. Shanghai
Nine Sea Industry is entitled to 29% of the voting rights in the board of
Shanghai Nine Sea Parkson and a pre-determined distribution of income
from Shanghai Nine Sea Parkson. The Group is entitled to 71% of the
voting rights in the board of Shanghai Nine Sea Parkson and 100% of its
distributed profit after deducting the aforesaid pre-determined distribution
of income attributable to Shanghai Nine Sea Industry.

7. Gee Cher Chiang and Chia Chong Lun own 60% and 40% of the equity
interest in Mount Earnings Sdn. Bhd. respectively, representing a 18% and
12% indirect equity interest in Yeehaw Best Practices Sdn Bhd.

Save as disclosed above and so far as the Directors are aware, as at 31
December 2015, no other person had an interest or short position in the
Company's shares or underlying shares (as the case may be), which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or was otherwise
directly or indirectly interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of
any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
general meetings of any member of the Group.
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3000 %
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME

On 27 November 2012, a total of 34,171,500 share options representing
Lot 4 and Lot 5 were granted to 642 eligible Directors and employees at nil
consideration and with an exercise price of HK$6.24 per share. 17,085,750
of the share options under Lot 4 were vested on 27 November 2012 and
are exercisable from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2015. The balance
of 17,085,750 share options under Lot 5 are exercisable from 1 January
2014 to 31 December 2016 and require an employee service period until
1 October 2013.

Movement of the options granted under the share option scheme for the
year ended 31 December 2015 is as follows:

B RERE
RZTE——F+—A=++tH AQFMN
EEHARTRe248B THITFEE (WM
HRFERL) MenGEEREEREER
k34,171,500 HE AR #E - O HL R H &Y
17,085,750 BEREE R T —Z_F +—
AZ++tHEBE AR _ZE—=F—H—
BE-ZE—hF+-A=+—8 18T
o B RILIR H 17,085,750 B A% #E 0] 1>
—E-NFE—F—BE-_Z—XR"F+_A
=+ —BI-HETE - WHETEESNRE
BRE-Z—=F+A—HALt-

BHE-_E—RAE+_A=+—BLFE -
IRIEFREA T B LB ENEZ T -

Directors EE
Chong Sui Hiong K i 4 375,000 - - - 375,000 -
5 375,000 - - - - 375,000
Juliana Cheng San San SEH 4 375,000 - - - 375,000 -
5 375,000 - - - - 375,000
Ko Tak Fai, Desmond SEE 4 75,000 - - - 75,000 -
5 75,000 - - - - 75,000
Yau Ming Kim, Robert E#8 4 75,000 - - - 75,000 -
5 75,000 - - - - 75,000
Employees (In aggregate) EE (&3) 4 13,478,750 - - 4378500 9,100,250 -
5 13,488,750 - - 4378500 - 9,110,250
Total &% 28,767,500 - - 8757000 10,000250 10,010,250

NOTE:

Lot 4 and Lot 5 were granted on 27 November 2012. The exercise period for Lot 4 is
1 January 2013 to 31 December 2015 and the exercise period for Lot 5 is 1 January
2014 to 31 December 2016.

Bt &
FEOHEERSER T —F+—HA=-++H
B e EUHITERAH T —=F—F—H
E-T-RE+-A=+—8 FE#HITES
ABE-ZT—NE—A—HE-_T—"F+-A=
+—8-



The fair value of the options granted is estimated at the date of grant
using the binomial option pricing model, taking into accounts the terms
and conditions upon which the options were granted. Details of the fair
value of the options are stipulated in note 31 of the Notes to the Financial
Statements.

The following sets out details of certain connected transactions of the
Group.

Continuing Connected transaction
Deed of Non competition

A deed of non-competition was entered into between Lion Diversified
Holdings Berhad ("LDHB") and the Company on 10 November 2005
(supplemented and amended on 18 September 2007), under which LDHB has
undertaken not to engage, other than through the existing managed stores,
in any business of the retail trade in merchandise in department stores,
supermarkets, hypermarkets, convenience stores, specialty merchandise
stores, supercentres and category killers in the PRC, Hong Kong, Macau and
Taiwan. Pursuant to a reorganization scheme undertaken by LDHB, LDHB
had agreed to consolidate most of its retail business (including most of
its existing managed stores in the PRC) into PHB. In light thereof, PHB has
entered into an identical deed of non-competition with the Company on
18 September 2007 with respect to those managed stores acquired from
LDHB. In conjunction therewith, LDHB has granted an indemnity in favour
of the Company which will be invoked if PHB fails to fulfill its obligation
under the aforesaid deed of non-competition dated 18 September 2007.

The principal businesses of LDHB are manufacturing and selling computer
and related products, developing property, investment holding and other.
The principal business of PHB is operation of department stores and PHB
is a substantial shareholder of the Company and therefore a connected
person of the Company. Both PHB and LDHB are members of The Lion
Group which is ultimately controlled by Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem and
hence, LDHB is a connected person of the Company. Save for Tan Sri
Cheng Heng Jem who has material interest in the aforesaid transaction,
none of the directors have a material interest in the aforesaid transaction
and need to be abstained from voting in respect thereof. Tan Sri Cheng
Heng Jem is deemed interested in the aforesaid transaction and has been
abstained from voting in any of the resolutions in relation to the aforesaid
transaction.
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Trademark license agreement

A trademark license agreement was entered into between Shanghai Lion
Investment (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) and
Parkson Corporation on 9 November 2005, pursuant to which Parkson
Corporation granted to Shanghai Lion Investment an exclusive license
to use certain trademarks, including the "Parkson” and "Xtra" trademarks
for a term of 30 years at the license fee of RMB30,000 per store per
annum. The Trademark was subsequently assigned by Parkson Corporation
to Smart Spectrum Limited on 14 June 2011. All rights, obligation, and
liabilities under the Licence Agreement were therefore novated by Parkson
Corporation to Smart Spectrum Limited on 1 August 2011.

Smart Spectrum Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of PHB (and hence
an associate of PHB) and its principal activity is retail. None of the directors
have a material interest in the aforesaid trademark license agreement and
need to be abstained from voting in respect thereof.

International Master Development Agreement

An international master development agreement was entered into
between Shanghai Lion Parkson Management Consultant Co Ltd "Parkson
Management Consultant” (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) and F&B Essentials Sdn. Bhd. (a fellow subsidiary of the
Company) on 4 March 2015, pursuant to which F&B Essentials Sdn. Bhd.
granted to Parkson Management Consultant an exclusive licence to use “The
Library Coffee Bar" trademarks and proprietary rights for the purposes of
developing outlets in China. A monthly royalty equivalent to 6% of gross
sales is payable in respect of "The Library Coffee Bar" outlets developed
or operated by Parkson Management Consultant and a monthly royalty
equivalent to 3% of gross sales is payable in respect of outlets sub-licensed
by Parkson Management Consultant.

F&B Essentials Sdn. Bhd is an indirect 60% owned subsidiary of PHB (and
hence an associate of PHB) and its principal activity is in the food and
beverage business and possesses the expertise in operating coffee bars, cafe
and outlets. None of the directors have a material interest in the aforesaid
international master development agreement and need to be abstained
from voting in respect thereof. Details of the fees paid by the Group under
this agreement are included in note 36(a)(ii) to the financial statements.
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Master Development Agreement

A master franchise agreement was entered into between Yeehaw Best
Practices Sdn. Bhd., a subsidiary acquired by the Group in 2015 and Entity
B Management Sdn. Bhd., a fellow subsidiary of the Company on 2 January
2015. Pursuant to the master franchise agreement Yeehaw Best Practices
Sdn. Bhd. granted Entity B Management Sdn. Bhd. an exclusive right to
use the "Franco” trademark and proprietary rights for the purposes of
developing outlets in Malaysia. A monthly royalty equivalent to 6% of gross
sales is receivable in respect of Franco outlets developed or operated by
Entity B Management Sdn. Bhd. and a monthly royalty equivalent to 3%
of gross sales is receivable in respect of outlets sub-licensed by Entity B
Management Sdn. Bhd.

Entity B Management Sdn. Bhd. is an indirect 60% owned subsidiary of
PHB (and hence an associate of PHB) and its principal activity is in the
food and beverage business and possesses the expertise in operating coffee
bars, cafe and outlets. None of the directors have a material interest in the
aforesaid master development agreement and need to be abstained from
voting in respect thereof. Details of the fees received by the Group under
this agreement are included in note 36(a)(vi) to the financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company repurchased
61,785,000 shares of its own ordinary shares through the Stock Exchange
at a total consideration of RMB65,542,000 (approximately HK$81,175,000).
Details of the share repurchases by the Company are included in note 29
to the financial statements. Save for the above, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed interest in any of the
Company's listed shares for the year ended 31 December 2015.

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's Articles
of Association although there are no restrictions against such rights under
the laws of the Cayman Islands.

The Group recognises the importance of good relationships with employees.
The remuneration payable to employees includes salaries and allowance/
bonuses.

The Group also has made contributions to the staff related plans or funds
in accordance with the local regulations of the PRC: pension plans, medical
insurance, unemployment insurance, work-related injury insurance and
maternity insurance.

The Group has been advised by its legal advisers on PRC law that the above
arrangements are in compliance with all relevant laws and regulations.
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As the Group is principally engaged in retail sales, none of its customers
and suppliers accounted for more than 5% of its turnover for the year
ended 31 December 2015. None of the Directors or shareholders who owned
5% or more of the issued capital of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2015 or any of their respective associates held any interest in
any of the five largest customers and suppliers of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2015.

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
period from the date of listing of shares to 31 December 2015.

Details of the Company's corporate governance practices are set out in the
"Corporate Governance Report" under this annual report.

Details of the significant events of the Group after the reporting period
are set out in note 41 to the financial statements.

Ernst & Young retire, and being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting to re-appoint Ernst & Young as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Cheng Heng Jem

Executive Director & Chairman
23 February 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

BARZBMBES

Ernst & Young ZKEE RS AT Tel B5E: +852 2846 9888
22/F, CITIC Tower FEREREE 2 Fax {EE: +852 2868 4432
ﬁ i 1 Tim Mei Avenue s RE221E ey.com
7 Central, Hong Kong

To the members of Parkson Retail Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Parkson Retail
Group Limited (the "Company") and its subsidiaries set out on pages 69
to 188, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2015, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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MEMmBEEER -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
BYGHBEARES

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity's preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries as at
31 December 2015, and of their financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirement of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

23 February 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

REVENUE
Other operating revenues

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES

Purchases of goods and changes in inventories
Staff costs

Depreciation and amortisation

Rental expenses

Other operating expenses

Total operating expenses

(LOSS)/PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS

Finance income

Finance costs

Share of (loss)/profit of:
A joint venture
Associates

(LOSS)/PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS BEFORE
INCOME TAX
Income tax expense

(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

Basic

Diluted

mEBRER

Year ended 31 December 2015 HE—ZT—RAF+_A=+—HILtFE

R
RESMEGFEES
BTRA

e RE#H
LR
Hitb&&EMAx

R P S AR
g (F1]),RE

AE A

BE A

fEfs (B1R),/ S -
—RABGE

/NG

BRATISBATAEE
(E518), /7
FRISHiR

FE (BB FE
ANIR B e

BRAEIFEA
IRV P i an

BRARAESFAEA
FE1h B IR A F

BN

Notes

B &E

~

o

10

2015
—EB-HF
RMB'000
AR®T

4,232,621
506,058

4,738,679

(1,409,267)
(688,211)
(405,638)

(1,219,632)

(1,110,403)

(4,833,151)

(94,472)

130,183
(166,297)

24,027
(12,141)

(118,700)
(63,935)

(182,635)

(186,154)
3,519

(182,635)

(RMB0.069)
(AK™0.0697T)

(RMB0.069)
(AE*0.0697T)

2014
— TPy

RMB'000
ARBTT

4,523,729
491,349

5,015,078

(1,413,251)
(617,912)
(404,021)

(1,071,810)

(1,183,128)

(4,690,122)

324,956

170,371
(149,234)

30,795
117

377,005
(131,232)

245,773

235,032
10,741

245,773

RMBO0.085
AR #0.0857C

RMBO0.085
AR #0.0857C
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEEERER

Year ended 31 December 2015 HE-T—RF+-_A=+—HIFE

(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FE (F8E) /78 (182,635) 245,773
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Ht2mEmlA
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified LR BEENIEE

to profit or loss in subsequent periods: BaRnHMEERA
Exchange differences on translation BREFINERRELD

of foreign operations fEH =8 (227,354) (9,582)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR, EEB#EMEEIA

NET OF TAX (227,354) (9,582)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR SFE2HEIWALLE (409,989) 236,191
Attributable to: ATRTE B E(Y

Owners of the parent ISYNEIIZIF=PN (413,508) 225,450

Non-controlling interests FEIE IS RE RS 3,519 10,741

(409,989) 236,191




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mEMBRR K

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Prepaid land lease payments

Intangible assets

Investment in a joint venture

Investments in associates

Prepayment for purchase of land and buildings
Other assets

Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Trade receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

Investments in principal guaranteed deposits
Time deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Dividend receivables

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade payables

Customers' deposits, other payables and accruals

Interest-bearing bank loans
Tax payable

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

FRBEE

WxE - BERERE
BEM=

AR LA E R
BIEE
R—HKAZEEENRE
REFE R AR E
BE I REFIAMR
Hp&EE
BN IR A EE

FRBEERR

RBEE

E3 S

B E 5 508
ANHE - ZER
HoAth & Y 5RO

REGFFIRE

E MK
RBekReEEY

U AR B

MENE B HERR

REBEE
FER B S 50R
BEPES - RfbEN

IR N fEAHIE B
AHRRITEER
JEBBIIR

BB B AR

REBEEFE

REERARBEE

Notes
Bt aE

1
12
13
14
15
16
22
17
19

20
21

22
18
23
23

24

25
26

2015
—E—FHF
RMB'000
ARET T

5,151,089
23,546
434,436
2,224,708
29,056
55,389
404,146
281,958

8,604,328

390,770
61,130

794,828
2,075,120
297,354

980,899
21,122

4,621,223

(1,494,092)

(1,604,341)
(644,186)
(45,434)

(3,788,053)

833,170

9,437,498

31 December 2015 —E—AF+=-A=+—H

2014
—T—puE

RMB'000
ARBT T

3,750,757
25,502
447,749
2,162,617
26,151
2,023
867,840
358,346
213,707

7,854,692

340,564
85,570

773,430
3,532,690

227,626
1,124,312

6,084,192

(1,813,994)

(1,740,485)
(700,077)
(65,196)

(4,319,752)

1,764,440

9,619,132

continued]/...
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mEMBRRE

31 December 2015 —E—AF+-A=+—8H

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES HEERRBEE 9,437,498 9,619,132
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBERF
Bonds % 28 (3.227.112) (3,034,500)
Interest-bearing bank loans s BIRITEE 26 (146,077) =
Long term payables EHfER A 27 (744,576) (655,726)
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIEAE 19 (280,419) (269,988)
Total non-current liabilities R B ERE (4,398,184) (3,960,214)
Net assets EEFE 5,039,314 5,658,918
EQUITY =
Issued capital BEBITIRA 29 56,408 57,862
Treasury shares FETEHR 29 (13,308) (76,148)
Reserves e 31 4,929,168 5,605,238
4,972,268 5,586,952

Non-controlling interests FERERS 67,046 71,966
Total equity W 5,039,314 5,658,918

Chong Sui Hiong Juliana Cheng San San

Director Director

RinE 12 T 3

EF EZE



PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED EEEXEBEERAD

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
meERBEER

Year ended 31 December 2015 HE-ZT—RF+-_A=+—HILFE

At 1 January 2015 RZ3-1%
-R-A 57,862 (76,148) - 279,037 (31,950)* 37,696" 251412 5069,043 5,586,952 71966 5658918
Loss for the year FEER - - - - - - - (186154)  (186,154) 3519 (182635)

Other comprehengive income ¥R BZENA -

for the year:
Bichange differenceson~ BEESN AR
translation o foregn ELNERER

operations - - - - (221354 - - - (227354) - (221.354)
Total comprefersive income. - £EZEMALE
for the year - - - - (221354) - - (186,154)  (413,508) 3519 (409,989)
Purchase of treasuryshares~~ SEERR bil - (65542 - - - - - - (6554) - (6554)
Cancellation of treasury shares 3B R pil (1450) 128382 - - - - - (126928 - - -
Transfer of share option reserve BB BR
upon expiry of share options Bl - - - - - (17322) - 17322 - - -
Transferto the PRCresene.~ EEEFARES
funds - - - 2493 - - - (2,493) - - -
Final 2014 dividend paid BN-R-IE
FHRE - - - - - - - (27341) (27341) - (27341)
Interim 2015 dividend paid ~~ EN=F-RF
FERS 3 - - - - - - - (108,293)  (108,293) - (108,293)
Dividends paid to EFHERRERS
non-controlling shareholders - - - - - - - - - (191200 (19,120)
Capitelcontribution froma R IERIHA
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - 360" 360
Acquiston of asubsidiary ~ KE-FHELRT - - - - - - - - - 10321 10321
At 31 December 2015 R-%F-1F
+-A=t-A 56,408 (13,308) - 281530°  (259,304) 20374 251,412 4635156 4,972,268 67,046 5039314

continued]/...
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

RERRBER

Year ended 31 December 2015 HE-T—RF+-_A=+—HIFE

At 1 January 2014 RZT-ME
o = 58299 (3239) 15,963 205331 (22,368 37,696" 14120 5013177 5,597,187 84814 5,682,001
Profitforthe year B = = = = = . Smm 3 0741 U5TB
Other comprehensie income. AR E
for the year: A
Exchange differences HEENERE
on translation of foreign ELMESZR
operations = = = = (9582) = = = (9,582) = (9582)
Total comprehensive ER2EMNER
income for the year = = = = (9582) = = 235032 225450 10741 236,191
Puchase of teasuryshares.~ BEER 9 s (96,603) s s s s . . (96,603) = (96,603)
Cancellation of treasury HHERR
shares b (#37) 52778 (15963) = = = = (36,378) = = S
Tansfer tothe PRCresene BREFEILES
funds S = = 3706 = = = (3706) = = S
Firal 2013 diidend paid B-5-z£
RERE - - - - - - - ) (raw) - (o)
Interim 2014 dhidend pad B ZF-TF
T 2 - - - - - - - (mas) (e - (ms)
Dividends paid to BRTFHERRR
non-controlling shareholders S S = = = = = = = = (23,589) (23,589)
At 31 December 2014 RIE-ME
t-R=1-H 57862 (76,149) - 279037 (31,950 37,696" 251412 5069043% 5586952 71966 5656918
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Retained earnings have been adjusted for the proposed 2014
dividend in accordance with the current year's presentation,
which is described in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves
of RMB4,929,168,000 (2014: RMB5,605,238,000) in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

On 26 January 2015, the Company through a wholly-owned
subsidiary, Grand Parkson Retail Group Limited ("Grand
Parkson"), entered into a joint venture agreement with AUM
Hospitality Sdn. Bhd. ("AUMH"), to establish a company,
Lion Food and Beverage Ventures Limited (“Lion Food and
Beverage"), for the purpose of developing its food and
beverage business in the People's Republic of China ("PRC").
The paid-up share capital of Lion Food and Beverage is
RMB4 million, and the total share capital contributions
made by Grand Parkson and AUMH are RMB3,640,000 and
RMB360,000, respectively, which are in proportion to their
equity interests of 91% and 9%.

On 5 June 2015, the Company, through a wholly-owned
subsidiary, Grand Parkson, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with Mount Earnings Sdn. Bhd. (“Mount
Earnings") to acquire 70% of the equity interest of Yeehaw
Best Practices Sdn. Bhd. (“YBP") at a total consideration
of RMB24,903,000. YBP engages in the food and beverage
business and operation of restaurants. Details of the
acquisition are set out in note 34.

*%

RERBBER

Year ended 31 December 2015 HE-E—RAF+=-A=+—HILFE

REBANERBEAFE25 —F—WNFEIRKREIE
HAAE - FERMBHKRMT24 -

ZERBRPFAKRGAEVBMRARANREEARE
4,929,168,0007T (= T — U F : A & ¥5,605,238,000
JC) °

RZZE—RF—A=Z+"8 AR RBEBE2EMNBA
A]Grand Parkson Retail Group Limited ([ Grand Parkson|)
EEZAUM Hospitality Sdn. Bhd. ([AUMH ) sTSZ A& AR
A7 Lion Food and Beverage Ventures Limited ([ Lion Food
and Beverage|) ATEHPZEAREFEH ([FH]) #R&
ZBRETE o Lion Food and BeverageMIBI R A B AR
#4,000,0007T * Grand Parkson & AUMHIE B% # Lt 919106
K95 Bl yE B IR A #58 A K #3,640,0007T & A K #
360,0007T °©

RZE-—RAFARAB ARG ERAEEEWES
/X @)Grand ParksonEZMount Earnings Sdn. Bhd. ([ Mount
Earnings)) T B &% - ARBAREE A KK #24,903,000
TeURB& Yeehaw Best Practices Sdn. Bhd. (['YBPJ) 700%0H) 4
o YBPIREEREBLELERE - EHAWENFER
R B HRRM5E34 o



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
SERERER

Year ended 31 December 2015 HZE-F—RAF+=-A=+—HIFE

2015 2014
—E-1fF it Stk
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
BiE AR®T R AREFT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETHNRERE
(Loss)/profit before tax Bian (E518)/ FIE (118,700) 377,005
Adjustments for: BA T RIBEL A
Share of profits and losses of Bh—REELER
a joint venture and associates AP b (11,886) (30,912)
Interest income 2 WA (130,183) (170,371)
Interest expenses MEREX 6 166,297 149,234
Depreciation and amortisation e R 5 405,638 404,021
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEWE  BER
plant and equipment HiEHEE 5 7,479 5,565
Impairment of inventories FERE 20 1,800 -
Impairment of other receivables H e ETE R E 22 11,600 -
Impairment of goodwill EERE 14 - 81,168
332,045 815,710
(Increase)/decrease in other assets Hi&EE (38m),/ md (45,800) 26,587
(Increase)/decrease in inventories =7E (Em),/ md (52,006) 1,120
Decrease in trade receivables W B S5 ER 25,262 7,97
Increase in prepayments, deposits and BNRIE - He REMER
other receivables FIEE N (50,003) (64,315)
Decrease in trade payables e & 5 FIBR (319,929) (143,873)
Decrease in customers' deposits, XPZe - HttERNFRIBER
other payables and accruals fEFTIEE R (208,428) (291,259)
Increase in long term payables R BRI FRIEE N 88,850 173,582
Cash generated from operations REFHEENR S (230,009) 525,523
Income tax paid BRAEH (151,634) (184,343)
Net cash flows(used in)/from operating activities ST E) (FrA)/ BEAR
RETREFHA (381,643) 341,180
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREZENHEFEE
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEWE BENX
plant and equipment REIE B FTE5IE 11,415 2,774
Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment BBE¥E * FE &
SEIER (881,504) (301,998)
Deposit paid for purchase of land and buildings BE L MEFRNRSE - (294,779)
Purchases of items of intangible assets BEEFEERR (23.678) (1,380)
Decrease in an investment in principal RAEGFEZER D
guaranteed deposits 1,457,570 102,613
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE—FXWEA (24,888) -
Investments in associates Ei-a- iAW/ (49,200) -
Dividends received B U B - 43,095
Interest received B KA S 148,653 160,956
Increase in non-pledged time deposits with ﬁ%)\ﬁ—;ﬁﬁ |53 B B8
original maturity of more than three months =18 A Ry EEE 4
when acquired FE BT FUE N (69,728) (84,459)
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities WEEEMES /(FrH)
RemeFaE 568,640 (373,178)
continued]/...

—
=



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
" N é }E ﬁ‘;ﬁ: % 13—%

Year ended 31 December 2015 HE—ZT—RAF+_A=+—HILtFE

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net proceeds from a bank loan

Repayment of a bank loan

Interest paid

Capital contributions from non-controlling interests

Purchase of treasury shares

Dividends paid

Distribution to non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries

Net cash flows (used in)/from financing
activities

NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances

Non-pledged time deposits with original
maturity of less than three months
when acquired

Cash and cash equivalents as stated
in the statement of cash flows

BMETHNRERE

RITE AT HIRFHR

BEBITER
ENERE
FEER R B E

BEBFR

EMERE

DK THB AR
TR B R

MEEE (PAA),/
IS IREREFRR

RERBEEEY
(BD),/ 8 hnFEeE
FONERS LB
FED
EXREF 2 E  FHR

FRORERAE
ZEY

RERBAEEEY
EERD AT

e RIRTTHER
BARRBIHETR
=8 A xR

E HIfF R

RBaREXRMIIRE M
ReFEY

Notes
Bt aE

2015
—E—FHF
RMB'000
ARET T

231,627

(186,490)

(164,898)

360

29 (65,542)
(135,634)

(19,120)

(339.697)

(152,700)

1,124,312
9,287

980,899

23 899,039

81,860

23 980,899

2014
—T—puE

RMB'000
ARBT T

522,190

(142,399)

(96,603)
(139,082)

(23,589)

120,517

88,519

1,035,518
275

1,124,312

1,030,312

94,000

1,124,312
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2015 —E—AF+-A=+—8H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Parkson Retail Group Limited is a limited liability company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 3 August 2005. The Company
has established a principal place of business in Hong Kong in Room
609, 6th Floor, Harcourt House, 39 Gloucestor Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the operation and
management of a network of department stores in the People's
Republic of China (the “PRC").

In the opinion of the directors, the holding company and the
ultimate holding company of the Company is Parkson Holdings
Berhad ("PHB"), which is incorporated in Malaysia and listed on
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows:

ARAIREEER
AREEEEERARANR_ZEZER
FNA-BERSHESFMRINE
RO« KRB BB EZE SN
BB ETELTITERERKNE
61609 ©

FEHRE  AEBEREARAME
(MPE)) BEREREREERLE

EERR ARANERA R K&
44 §% ) &) AParkson Holdings Berhad
(TPHB]) » B— RN H R s A&
SHRE WHRERAEESX SN
Fe

TRNBATNER
ARREEMBRRNFHFNOT

Grand Parkson Retail Group Limited British Virgin Islands HK$0.5 100 - Investment holding
BEARARAR EBELHE 0.5 7T REZR
Parkson Investment Pte Ltd. Singapore $$10,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
MRS MERRERRAA K 10,000,000 REER
H KT
Rosenblum Investment Pte Ltd. Singapore S$2 - 100 Investment holding
MK EAREBR AT 3K 2K T REER
Exonbury Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding
BERRBRENARAR 5 2T REER
Parkson Supplies Pte Ltd. Singapore S$100 = 100 Investment holding
e MARREERAA CSiI1b 1003 A3 T REEKR
Step Summit Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
EBERRQT s 17T REZR
Hong Kong Fen Chai Investment Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
Limited B BT REER

BRBREEARAA
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PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED BEEFzE£EEHREAT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2015 —E—HF+=-A=+—H

NEAREEER (8)
EHEKBARNEN (8)

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) il

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Shanghai Lion Parkson Investment The PRC US$500,000 100  Provision of
Consultant Co., Ltd. * H 500,000 7T consultancy and
LEREBREFAERAR management
services
RHFHAR
EERS
Shanghai Nine Sea Parkson Plaza The PRC US$12,000,000 100  Operation of
Co., Ltd. ** Hf 12,000,000 7T department stores
EBNEEBRBESERAR ReERgEE
Shanghai Honggiao Parkson The PRC RMB 16,800,000 100  Operation of
Development Co., Ltd. * H AR department stores
BB ERREERAR 16,800,0007C REFER
Wuxi Sanyang Parkson Plaza The PRC RMB80,000,000 60  Operation of
Co., Ltd. *** H AR department stores
E =R ERESERAR 80,000,0007C REBEE
Xi'an Lucky King Parkson Plaza The PRC RMB32,500,000 100  Operation of
Co., Ltd. * H AR department stores
ARV EERESERAR 32,500,0007C REBEE
Chongging Wanyou Parkson Plaza The PRC RMB35,000,000 70 Operation of
Co., Ltd. *** ] AR department stores
EEERBRBESERAA 35,000,0007C REBEE
Mianyang Fulin Parkson Plaza The PRC RMB30,000,000 100  Operation of
Co., Ltd. ** H AR department stores
GhERARESERAH 30,000,0007T KEBEIE
Sichuan Shishang Parkson Retail The PRC RMB30,000,000 100  Operation of
Development Co,, Ltd. * i AR department stores
I H AR EERERAA 30,000,0007C KEBRIE
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31 December 2015 —E—AF+-A=+—8H

1.

Hefei Parkson Xiaoyao Plaza Co., Ltd. *

AEEREERSERAR

Anshan Tianxing Parkson Shopping
Centre Co., Ltd. ***
BRIUWRERRBYTOERAF

Guizhou Shengi Parkson Retail
Development Co., Ltd. ***

BN AEBEERARAA

Parkson Investment Holdings Co., Ltd. *

cHARREERAT

Parkson Retail Development Co., Ltd. *

BEAXERARAA

Global Heights Investment Limited
FRREFRAA

Asia Victory International Limited

ZEBRARAR

Shunhe International Investment
Limited
BB E AR AR

Kunming Yun Shun He Retail
Development Co., Ltd. *

EREBENBARERER LA

Creation (Hong Kong) Investment &
Development Limited

fE (BE) REZERBR AR

Creation International Investment &
Development Limited

BIEERRERRERAA

The PRC
A

The PRC
i

The PRC
i

The PRC
H
The PRC

FE

British Virgin Islands
KBRS

British Virgin Islands
RERLEHS

Hong Kong
B0

The PRC
it

Hong Kong
B0

British Virgin Islands
KBRS

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) il

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

RMBS8,000,000
ARE
8,000,0007C

RMB10,000,000
ARE
10,000,0007T

RMB 17,000,000
AR
17,000,0007C

US$30,000,000
30,000,000 7T

US$16,680,000
16,680,000 7T

US$1
1E7T

US$50,000
50,000 7T

HK$10,000
10,0007 7T

RMB30,000,000
AR
30,000,0007T

HK$10,000
10,0007 7T

US$50,000
50,000 7T

NEAREEER (8)
EHEKBARNEN (8)

= 100

= 100

= 100

= 100

= 100

- 100

= 100

= 100

= 100

= 100

Operation of
department stores

ey

Operation of
department stores

REREE

Operation of
department stores

REREE

Investment holding

REER

Operation of
department stores

REREE

Investment holding

AR

Investment holding

AR

Investment holding

Operation of
department stores

KEREE
Investment holding

RERR

Investment holding

REER
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1.  CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1. 2REAREEER (8)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) EEMEBATINER (8)

Golden Village Group Limited British Virgin Islands US$50,000 - 100 Investment holding
EREEERAF RERLHS 50,000 7T REER
Jiangxi Parkson Retail Co., Ltd. * The PRC RMB8,500,000 - 100 Operation of
IHBAEPILRBEERRAR f ARK department stores
8,500,0007T AN
Lung Shing International British Virgin Islands US$50,000 - 100 Investment holding
Investment & Development Co., Ltd. HEBEZES 50,0003 7T REER

BEERREZRER AR

Anshan Lung Shing Property Services  The PRC US$1,050,000 - 100  Property management

Limited * F 1,050,0003 75 MEER
BLEERERBERAA
Xi'an Chang'an Parkson Store The PRC RMB 10,000,000 - 100  Operation of

Co., Ltd. **** H AR department stores
ARRLZARAEERAA 10,000,0007C KEBRIE
Xi'an Shidai Parkson Store Co., Ltd. ****  The PRC RMB15,000,000 - 100  Operation of
ARRKERAEERAA f ARE department stores

15,000,0007C REBRIE

Shanghai Xinzhuang Parkson Retail The PRC RMB20,000,000 - 100 Operation of

Development Co., Ltd. * ] AR department stores
PR AREEERER AT 20,000,0007T REFERE
Nanning Brilliant Parkson Commercial ~ The PRC RMB28,000,000 - 100 Operation of

Co., Ltd. * H AR department stores
HENHEREEERAA 28,000,0007T REBEE
Tianjin Parkson Retail Development The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100 Operation of

Co., Ltd.* H AR department stores

REARAELRRERAR 10,000,0007T KREREE
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NEAREEER (8)
EHEKBARNEN (8)

il CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) il

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Changshu Parkson Retail Development — The PRC RMB15,000,000 - 100 Operation of
Co., Ltd. ** H AR department stores
FRARREEERARAA 15,000,0007C AN
Zunyi Parkson Retail Development The PRC RMB 12,500,000 100 Operation of
Co., Ltd. **** H AR department stores
BNESAREBEERERAA 12,500,0007T AN
Lanzhou Parkson Retail Co., Ltd. * The PRC RMB20,000,000 100  Operation of
AMEREEREERRAR f ARK department stores
20,000,0007T KEBEE
Beijing Huadesheng Property The PRC RMB400,000,000 100  Property management
Management Co., Ltd. **** e AR MEER
T RERENEERERAF 400,000,0007T
Capital Park Development Limited British Virgin Islands US$2 100 Investment holding
KBRS 2ETT REZER
Capital Park (HK) Investment & Hong Kong HK$1 100 Investment holding
Development Limited BB 17T REER
A (FB) REBRRERLA
Malverest Property International British Virgin Islands US$2 100 Investment holding
Limited EBRUES 2ETT REER
Malverest (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 Investment holding
% (BE) BRAF BB BT REZER
Oroleon International Limited British Virgin Islands US$2 100 Investment holding
KBRS 2ET REZR
Oroleon (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 Investment holding
30 18T REER
Releoment International Limited British Virgin Islands US$2 100 Investment holding
REBRUEE 2ETT REER
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NEAREEER (8)
EHEKBARNEN (8)

il CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) il

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Releoment (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
5 1T REER

Leonemas International Limited British Virgin Islands US$2 - 100 Investment holding
RERLES 2ET REER

Leonemas (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
&b BT REZER

Duo Success Investments Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Investment holding
HBRUEE 17T REZER

Huge Return Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$1 = 100 Investment holding

MBEZREBRAF 5 BT RERR

Hanmen Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$1 = 100 Investment holding

HEEEARLA 5 17T REER

Favor Move International Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Investment holding

HHERRARAR KBRS (E REER

Jet East Investments Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Investment holding

BRBREBRAF KBRS EX REER

Victory Hope Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding

HEBEERAF 30 1T REZR

Shaoxing Shishang Parkson Retail The PRC RMB20,000,000 - 100 Operation of

Development Co., Ltd. **** H AR department stores

RENHAEEFERARAA 20,000,0007T KERBE

Shantou Parkson Commercial Co., Ltd. * The PRC RMB8,000,000 - 100 Operation of

SR B EEEERAA f AR department stores

8,000,0007T AN
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NEAREEER (8)
EHEKBARNEN (8)

il CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) il

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Great Dignity Development Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding
REZRBRAT BE 28T REER
Bond Glory Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Investment holding
EY LN EBRUEHS E REER
Choice Link Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Investment holding
HEXARAA RBRZES (E REZR
Kunshan Parkson Retail Development ~ The PRC RMB40,000,000 - 100  Operation of
Co., Ltd. *** i AR department stores
BINHBEEEERAR 40,000,0007T REBEIE
Zigong Parkson Retail Co., Ltd. *** The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100  Operation of
BEEBREEARAR f ARE department stores
10,000,0007C REFEE
Changzhou Shifeng Retail Development The PRC RMB25,000,000 - 100 Sales of apparel
Co., Ltd. ** Hf AR HERE
EMMEREERBRAR 25,000,0007T
Changzhou Lion Food & Beverage The PRC RMB25,000,000 - 100  Food and beverage
Co., Ltd.** H AR management
FNFEERER AR 25,000,0007C services
BERERRY
Zhangjiakou Parkson Shopping Mall The PRC RMB30,000,000 - 100 Operation of
Co., Ltd. *** H AR department stores
RRABRBENESERAT 30,000,0007C KEBEE
Liupanshui Parkson Retail Co., Ltd. ***  The PRC RMB 15,000,000 - 100 Operation of
BEMARKEREEERERAR + ARE department stores
15,000,0007C KERER
Jinan Lion Parkson Consultant The PRC US$5,000,000 - 100 Provision of
Management Co., Ltd H 5,000,000 7T consultancy and
BEEMEEAEEERAR management
services

REEAREERS
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NEAREEER (8)
EHEKBARNEN (8)

il CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) il

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Tianjin Parkson Shopping Mall The PRC RMB500,000,000 - 100 Operation of
Co., Ltd. ** H ARE department stores
AEBREERSAERAR 500,000,0007T and property
management
BEREER
MEER
Shanxi Parkson Retail Development The PRC RMB50,000,000 - 100  Operation of
Co., Ltd.* H AR department stores
I ARARERERAT 50,000,0007T KERBE
Qingdao No.1 Parkson Co., Ltd. *** The PRC RMB233,340,000 - 95.91  Operation of
EEFE—BRARRARA F ARE department stores
233,340,0007C KERBE
Shenyang Parkson Shopping Plaza The PRC RMB40,000,000 - 100 Operation of
Co., Ltd. H AR department stores
B BEENESERAR 40,000,0007T KERBE
Dalian Parkson Retail Development The PRC RMB40,000,000 - 100 Operation of
Ga,, L), = H AR department stores
RERHBRERERARAA 40,000,0007T N
Sea Coral Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100 Investment holding
B 17T REZR
Wide Crest Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Investment holding
HERAHS E REZER
Wide Field International Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding
BE 2B REER
Parkson Venture Pte Ltd. Singapore $$14,800,000 = 100 Investment holding
AN 14,800,000 REER
KT
Victor Crest Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 = 100 Investment holding
RBRIEHE E REER
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il CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) il

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Panzhihua Parkson Retail Development
Co., Ltd. ™
EREARBERRAA

Zhongshan Parkson Retail
Development Co., Ltd. ****

FLUAERFEERAR

Harbin Parkson Retail Development
Co., Ltd. ™
HREBRREERBRAF

Qingdao Lion Plaza Retail Management
Co., Ltd. ™
EREENESHEEREARAT

Qingdao Parkson Beer City Property
Management Co., Ltd. ***

EREARMERYFEEARAA

Qingdao Parkson Shopping Plaza
Co., Ltd. ™
EERRBNESERAR

Shanghai Shijie Fashions Co., Ltd.****
EEMERERRAR

The PRC
i

The PRC
i

The PRC
G

The PRC
i

The PRC
FE

The PRC
G

The PRC
il

RMB20,000,000
ARE
20,000,0007C

RMB30,000,000
AR
30,000,0007C

RMB30,000,000
AR
30,000,0007T

RMB500,000,000
AR
500,000,0007C

RMB10,000,000
AR
10,000,0007T

RMB30,000,000
AR
30,000,0007C

RMB10,000,000
N
10,000,0007C

NEAREEER (8)
EHEKBARNEN (8)

= 100

= 100

= 100

= 100

= 100

= 100

Operation of
department stores

KERER

Operation of
department stores

RERER

Operation of
department stores

KeBaBE

Property management

MEER

Property management

mxEE

Operation of
department stores

RERER

Sale of fashion

HEREK
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Information about subsidiaries (continued)

**

HHH

Qingdao Parkson Retail Development
Co., Ltd. ™
ERARAXEARAR

Shanghai Lion Food and Beverage
Management Co., Ltd. ***

LEBRRERERARAR

Shanghai Lion Parkson Management
Consultant Co., Ltd. ****
LBRRERZAGRAR

Lion Food & Beverage Ventures Limited

Parkson Food & Beverage Ventures

Limited

Yeehaw Best Practices Sdn. Bhd.

The PRC
i

The PRC
i

The PRC
ki

British Virgin Islands

EBRZEHS

Hong Kong
B

Malaysia
BRAE

RMB20,000,000
AR
20,000,0007C

RMB4,000,000
AR
4,000,0007C

RMB 10,000,000
AR
10,000,0007C

RMB4,000,000
AR
4,000,0007C

HK$1
17870

RM100
MERF1007T

registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under PRC law.

registered as a Sino-foreign cooperative joint venture enterprise

under PRC law.

registered as a Sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprise under

PRC law.

%

registered as a limited liability company under PRC law.

During the year, the Group acquired Yeehaw Best Practices Sdn. Bhd.
from an independent third party of the Company. Further details of
this acquisition are included in note 34 to the financial statements.
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= 100

= 100

= 100
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Operation of
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KERERE

Food and beverage
management
services

e R R

Provision of
consultancy and
management
services

Redtih B R R

Food and beverage
operation

REERRE

Food and beverage
operation

REERRE

Food and beverage
operation

REERE

* ERBPEERELRINEEE

®F-

~ ERBEFBEIEZEBEL/TINGE

EEOE -

= ERBPEEREBELA/TINGE

REDRZE -
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NG

FEHE  AEERARBBLES
J7 Wi Yeehaw Best Practices Sdn. Bhd. ©
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These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs") issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (the "IASB"). They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
derivative financial instruments which have been measured at fair
value. These financial statements are presented in Renminbi ("RMB")
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the "Group") for the year ended 31 December 2015. A
subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has
power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting year as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control described in the accounting
policy for subsidiaries below. A change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the
fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus
or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities.

The Group has adopted the following revised standards for the first
time for the current year's financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

PSR M
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The nature and the impact of each amendment is described below:

(a) Amendments to IAS 19 apply to contributions from
employees or third parties to defined benefit plans. The
amendments simplify the accounting for contributions that
are independent of the number of years of employee service,
for example, employee contributions that are calculated
according to a fixed percentage of salary. If the amount
of the contributions is independent of the number of
years of service, an entity is permitted to recognise such
contributions as a reduction of service cost in the period in
which the related service is rendered. The amendments have
had no impact on the Group as the Group does not have
defined benefit plans.

(b) The Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle issued in
December 2013 sets out amendments to a number of IFRSs.
Details of the amendments that are effective for the current
year are as follows:

IFRS 8 Operating Segments: Clarifies that an entity
must disclose the judgements made by management
in applying the aggregation criteria in IFRS 8,
including a brief description of operating segments
that have been aggregated and the economic
characteristics used to assess whether the segments
are similar. The amendments also clarify that a
reconciliation of segment assets to total assets is
only required to be disclosed if the reconciliation is
reported to the chief operating decision maker. The
amendments have had no impact on the Group.

IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38
Intangible Assets: Clarifies the treatment of gross
carrying amount and accumulated depreciation or
amortisation of revalued items of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets. The amendments
have had no impact on the Group as the Group
does not apply the revaluation model for the
measurement of these assets.
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(c)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

° IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures: Clarifies that a
management entity (i.e., an entity that provides key
management personnel services) is a related party
subject to related party disclosure requirements. In
addition, an entity that uses a management entity
is required to disclose the expenses incurred for
management services. The amendment has had no
impact on the Group as the Group does not receive
any management services from other entities.

The Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle issued in
December 2013 sets out amendments to a number of IFRSs.
Details of the amendments that are effective for the current
year are as follows:

° IFRS 3 Business Combinations: Clarifies that joint
arrangements but not joint ventures are outside
the scope of IFRS 3 and the scope exception applies
only to the accounting in the financial statements
of the joint arrangement itself. The amendment is
applied prospectively. The amendment has had no
impact on the Group as the Company is not a joint
arrangement and the Group did not form any joint
arrangement during the year.
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° IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement: Clarifies that the
portfolio exception in IFRS 13 can be applied not
only to financial assets and financial liabilities, but
also to other contracts within the scope of IFRS 9
or IAS 39 as applicable. The amendment is applied
prospectively from the beginning of the annual
period in which IFRS 13 was initially applied. The
amendment has had no impact on the Group as the
Group does not apply the portfolio exception in IFRS
13.

° IAS 40 Investment Property: Clarifies that IFRS 3,
instead of the description of ancillary services in
IAS 40 which differentiates between investment
property and owner-occupied property, is used to
determine if the transaction is a purchase of an
asset or a business combination. The amendment is
applied prospectively for acquisitions of investment
properties. The amendment has had no impact on
the Group.

In addition, the Company has adopted the amendments to the
Listing Rules issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange") relating to the disclosure of financial
information with reference to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) during the current financial year. The main impact to the
financial statements is on the presentation and disclosure of certain
information in the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs,
which are applicable to the Group's operation, that have been issued
but are not yet effective, in these financial statements:

IFRS 9

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

Amendments to IFRS 10
[FRS 12 and IAS 28

Amendments to IFRS 11

IFRS 15

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 7

Amendments to IAS 16
and IAS 38

Amendments to IAS 27

Annual Improvements
2012-20174 Cycle

Financial Instruments?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception’

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations’

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers®

Disclosure Initiative'

Disclosure Initiative?

Clarification of Acceptable Methods
of Depreciation and Amortisation'

Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements'
Amendments to a number of IFRSs'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
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Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is as follows:

In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9, bringing
together all phases of the financial instruments project to replace
IAS 39 and all previous versions of IFRS 9. The standard introduces
new requirements for classification and measurement, impairment
and hedge accounting. The Group expects to adopt IFRS 9 from
1 January 2018. During 2015, the Group performed a high-level
assessment of the impact of the adoption of IFRS 9. This preliminary
assessment is based on currently available information and may
be subject to changes arising from further detailed analyses or
additional reasonable and supportable information being made
available to the Group in the future. The expected impacts arising
from the adoption of IFRS 9 are summarised as follows:

(a) Classification and measurement

The Group does not expect that the adoption of IFRS 9
will have a significant impact on the classification and
measurement of its financial assets. It expects to continue
measuring at fair value all financial assets currently held
at fair value. Equity investments currently held as available
for sale will be measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income as the investments are intended to
be held for the foreseeable future and the Group expects
to apply the option to present fair value changes in other
comprehensive income. Gains and losses recorded in other
comprehensive income for the equity investments cannot
be recycled to profit or loss when the investments are
derecognised.
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(b)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Impairment

IFRS 9 requires an impairment on debt instruments
recorded at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, lease receivables, loan commitments
and financial guarantee contracts that are not accounted
for at fair value through profit or loss under IFRS 9, to be
recorded based on an expected credit loss model either
on a twelve-month basis or a lifetime basis. The Group
expects to apply the simplified approach and record lifetime
expected losses that are estimated based on the present
value of all cash shortfalls over the remaining life of all
of its trade and other receivables. The Group will perform
a more detailed analysis which considers all reasonable
and supportable information, including forward-looking
elements, for estimation of expected credit losses on its
trade and other receivables upon the adoption of IFRS 9.

The amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an inconsistency
between the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and
its associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full
recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture
constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets that
do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the
transaction is recognised in the investor's profit or loss only to the
extent of the unrelated investor's interest in that associate or joint
venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively.
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The amendments to IFRS 11 require that an acquirer of an interest
in a joint operation in which the activity of the joint operation
constitutes a business must apply the relevant principles for
business combinations in IFRS 3. The amendments also clarify that
a previously held interest in a joint operation is not remeasured on
the acquisition of an additional interest in the same joint operation
while joint control is retained. In addition, a scope exclusion
has been added to IFRS 11 to specify that the amendments do
not apply when the parties sharing joint control, including the
reporting entity, are under common control of the same ultimate
controlling party. The amendments apply to both the acquisition of
the initial interest in a joint operation and the acquisition of any
additional interests in the same joint operation. The amendments
are not expected to have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group upon adoption on 1 January 2016.

IFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account for revenue
arising from contracts with customers. Under IFRS 15, revenue is
recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which
an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods
or services to a customer. The principles in IFRS 15 provide a more
structured approach for measuring and recognising revenue. The
standard also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in contract
asset and liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The standard will supersede all current
revenue recognition requirements under IFRSs. The Group expects
to adopt IFRS 15 on 1 January 2018. In 2015, the IASB issued
an amendment to IFRS 15 regarding a one-year deferral of the
mandatory effective date of IFRS 15 to 1 January 2018. The Group
expects to adopt IFRS 15 on 1 January 2018 and is currently
assessing the impact of IFRS 15 upon adoption.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Amendments to IAS 1 include narrow-focus improvements in
respect of the presentation and disclosure in financial statements.
The amendments clarify:

(

) the materiality requirements in IAS 1;

(i) that specific line items in the statement of profit or loss and
the statement of financial position may be disaggregated;

(i) that entities have flexibility as to the order in which they
present the notes to financial statements; and

(iv) that the share of other comprehensive income of associates
and joint ventures accounted for using the equity method
must be presented in aggregate as a single line item, and
classified between those items that will or will not be
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

Furthermore, the amendments clarify the requirements that apply
when additional subtotals are presented in the statement of
financial position and the statement of profit or loss. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments from 1 January 2016. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 clarify the principle in IAS 16
and IAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattern of economic benefits that
are generated from operating a business (of which the asset is part)
rather than the economic benefits that are consumed through the
use of the asset. As a result, a revenue-based method cannot be
used to depreciate property, plant and equipment and may only be
used in very limited circumstances to amortise intangible assets.
The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The amendments
are not expected to have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group upon adoption on 1 January 2016 as the
Group has not used a revenue-based method for the calculation of
depreciation of its non-current assets.
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Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity, in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights
and over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the
net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group's investments in associates and joint ventures are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at the Group's
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less
any impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into line any
dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures is included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
other comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when there
has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate
or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes,
when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associates or joint ventures are eliminated to
the extent of the Group's investments in the associates or joint
ventures, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included as part of the
Group's investments in associates or joint ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under the
equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence
over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group
measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value.
Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control
and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Investments in associates and joint ventures (continued)

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture is classified
as held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5
Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition
date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values
of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group
to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For
each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair value or at
the proportionate share of the acquiree's identifiable net assets. All
other components of non-controlling interests are measured at fair
value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition
date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.
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Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group's
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the
net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised
in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment,
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each
of the Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of
the Group are assigned to those units or group of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units),
to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is
less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.

E¥asthEE (8)
BEEMEAATE EEEN
{8 - SHERIEER L M A KB STA]
FrA MR BEL BEN TR AR EE
ABEE - R PR AT R B B E
PIAERENZRE - MAREBEREM
HEERRFAEBEEFENAAE
B RHEREZFHNBRAER
REEWE R -

RYITHERR - BERRANER I
ZETREBENE - BESFETR
BAR  EESMHRBERBCETE
EEAELRRE - HSETERR
RERAH - AEERSFNT A=
T BEEEETRERR - BRE
ARNBEOME - REFSORIE
MEEEREEEDEKEANRETR
R B aERAaFHRMENTREE
EBENSSERSELEURN - &R
AEEREMEESREBERENREZ
FBs—HEERA -

BEDBRAFGEERENREES
B (—HERSELEM) A k@
THETE WEREELEN (—4A
ReEAEMN) MRIKE S EEREK
H{E - RIFERRERE - BENDHE
RBEBETSEERMEED -

MEBELIKEREELEM (H—
MRSELEN)  MEMANEED
EHORKHE AT LS8
SEER - B HEXBKHERNERE
TIEt AR EBHIFREE - ERLFIBER
THENHEDRED HEXBHS
MR EENMARER S EEEME

N
DETE o



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments and equity
investments at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market
for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by
the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest
and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable
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Fair value measurement (continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end
of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
financial assets, investment properties, goodwill and non-current
assets), the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's or cash-generating
unit's value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and
is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy
for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not
to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset
is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

(b)

the party is a person or a close member of that person's
family and that person

(i)

(i)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(1)

(i)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is
a part, provides key management personnel services
to the group or to the parent of the Group.
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Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs
of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciates them accordingly.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure that the
fair value of a revalued asset does not differ materially from its
carrying amount. Changes in the values of property, plant and
equipment are dealt with as movements in the asset revaluation
reserve. If the total of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit,
on an individual asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged
to the statement of profit or loss. Any subsequent revaluation
surplus is credited to the statement of profit or loss to the extent
of the deficit previously charged. An annual transfer from the asset
revaluation reserve to retained earnings is made for the difference
between the depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount
of an asset and the depreciation based on the asset's original cost.
On disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of the asset
revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is
transferred to retained earnings as a movement in reserves.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal estimated useful
lives for this purpose are as follows:

Land and buildings 38 - 45 years
Leasehold improvements 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Equipment and fixtures 5 - 10 years
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected to arise from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in
the statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents stores and storage facilities
under construction or renovation works in progress which are
stated at cost less any impairment losses, and are not depreciated.
Cost comprises development and construction expenditures
incurred and other direct costs attributable to the development
less any accumulated impairment losses. Construction in progress
is reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment or investment properties when completed and ready
for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held to
earn rental income andfor for capital appreciation, rather than
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business.

Investment properties are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and provision for any impairment in value. Depreciation
is calculated on the straight-line basis over the expected useful life.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year of the retirement of disposal.
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Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for intangible assets with a finite useful life are reviewed at least
at each financial year end. The principal estimated useful lives for
this purpose are as follows:

Computer software 5 years
License 10 -14 years
Franchise agreement 10 years
Trademark 10 years

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash-generating
unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life
of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually
to determine whether the indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Prepaid land lease payments

Prepaid land lease payments represent land use rights paid to the
PRC government authorities. Land use rights are carried at cost and
are charged to the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line
basis over the respective periods of the rights ranging from 42 to
45 years. When the prepaid land lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and buildings elements, the entire
prepaid land lease payments are included in the cost of the land
and buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and equipment.

BLEE (BERMD)

ST ET EER VP HERRIR
ARG 8 o MERS A OF8F P B T
BEMNKARZEERKERHNA
RIEE - |BLEER AL A F G
RERNER - FHERNEFLEE
BER A AIE A E A E S - W aY
MEREEAPRBRZELEER B
BRE - IERFHERNELEE
HY B H S R M S A E DR E TR
FERRA—R - T2EFHEBFH
e

ERGE T 54
KrathE 10E 145
TR E R 105
[k 105

NHETE RI £ A S HA RV B T B E FE (B B
HIRR G EE BT FEEITRE
B - ZEBETEETNTHE - TE
EFHzBREEERFHESF
EITIRE NETE TEE F R GRS
AEAERT 1T o AT > RIRIERFH
ZAHE R ERETE < BB IR TR
RETHE -

B LEER

FAN £ 3 HH B AR R P B BT R S
1< B 1 65 PR - £ 3 AR AR IR K
AR - WREBERIT F426E45
FOERPAREREN B RAT
B - RN T BEFTREELIR
BFEE ZEAIEENE - A2 EE
N ERSERYE - BE MR
B BERE RN L RIBFK
ARIEFR e



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect the
purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under finance leases,
are included in property, plant and equipment, and depreciated
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives
of the assets. The finance costs of such leases are charged to the
statement of profit or loss so as to provide a constant periodic rate
of charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing
nature are accounted for as finance leases, but are depreciated over
their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group
under operating leases are included in non-current assets, and
rentals receivable under the operating leases are credited to the
statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under
operating leases are charged to the statement of profit or loss on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.
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Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables,
held-to-maturity investments and available-for-sale financial
assets, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in
an effective hedge, as appropriate. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction
costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets,
except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through
profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of sale in the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments as defined by IAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with positive net
changes in fair value presented as other operating revenues and
negative net changes in fair value presented as other operating
expenses in the statement of profit or loss. These net fair value
changes do not include any dividends or interest earned on these
financial assets, which are recognised in accordance with the
policies set out for "Revenue recognition” below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria in IAS 39 are satisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as
separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the
host contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading or
designated as at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Reassessment only
occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract
that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise
be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair
value through profit or loss category.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less
any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes
fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included in other
operating revenues in the statement of profit or loss. The loss
arising from impairment is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss in finance costs for loans and in other operating expenses
for receivables.

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturity are classified as held to maturity when the
Group has the positive intention and ability to hold them to
maturity. Held-to-maturity investments are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance income
in the statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss in other operating
expenses.
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Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial
assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and debt securities.
Equity investments classified as available for sale are those which
are neither classified as held for trading nor designated as at fair
value through profit or loss. Debt securities in this category are
those which are intended to be held for an indefinite period of
time and which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in
response to changes in market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments are
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
recognised as other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised,
at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in other operating revenues, or until
the investment is determined to be impaired, when the cumulative
gain or loss is reclassified from the available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve to the statement of profit or loss in other
operating revenues. Interest and dividends earned whilst holding
the available-for-sale financial investments are reported as interest
income and dividend income, respectively and are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss as other operating revenues in
accordance with the policies set out for "Revenue recognition”
below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that investment
or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates within the range
cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value,
such investments are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell
its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still
appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable to
trade these financial assets due to inactive markets, the Group may
elect to reclassify these financial assets if management has the
ability and intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future
or until maturity.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale category,
the fair value carrying amount at the date of reclassification
becomes its new amortised cost and any previous gain or loss on
that asset that has been recognised in equity is amortised to profit
or loss over the remaining life of the investment using the effective
interest rate. Any difference between the new amortised cost and
the maturity amount is also amortised over the remaining life of the
asset using the effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently
determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is
reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group's consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or
° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from

the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party
under a "pass-through" arrangement; and either (a) the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk and rewards
of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group's continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that
the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.
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Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that a
debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial assets
that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets
that are not individually significant. If the Group determines that
no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes
the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets
that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not included
in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the loss is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans
and receivables together with any associated allowance are written
off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all
collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account.
If a write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to other
operating expenses in the statement of profit or loss.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at
fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or on
a derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled by delivery
of such an unquoted equity instrument, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Impairment losses on these assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at
the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence
that an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and
amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of an investment below its cost. "Significant"
is evaluated against the original cost of the investment and
"prolonged” against the period in which the fair value has been
below its original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the
cumulative loss measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
investment previously recognised in the statement of profit or
loss is removed from other comprehensive income and recognised
in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity
instruments classified as available for sale are not reversed through
the statement of profit or loss. Increases in their fair value after
impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
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Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

The determination of what is “significant” or "prolonged" requires
judgement. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates, among
other factors, the duration or extent to which the fair value of an
investment is less than its cost.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available for sale,
impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as financial
assets carried at amortised cost. However, the amount recorded
for impairment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference
between the amortised cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Future interest income continues to be
accrued based on the reduced carrying amount of the asset and
is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The
interest income is recorded as part of finance income. Impairment
losses on debt instruments are reversed through the statement
of profit or loss if the subsequent increase in fair value of the
instruments can be objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade payables, customers'
deposits, other payables and accruals, interest-bearing bank loans,
and bonds.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial liabilities (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit
or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This
category includes derivative financial instruments entered into by
the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by IAS 39. Separated embedded derivatives
are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for
trading are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The net
fair value gain or loss recognised in the statement of profit or loss
does not include any interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria in IAS 39 are satisfied.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there is
a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired and held by the
Company or the Group (treasury shares) are recognised directly
in equity at cost. No gain or loss is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Group's own equity instruments.

Inventories

Inventories comprise merchandise purchased for resale and
consumables and are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. The cost of merchandise is determined on the weighted
average basis. Net realisable value is determined based on estimated
selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to disposal.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables, which generally have credit terms of less than
180 days, are recognised and carried at the original invoice amounts
less allowances for any uncollectible amounts.

Other receivables are recognised and carried at cost less an
allowance for any uncollectible amounts.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within
three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's
cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which
are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.

Provisions for product warranties granted by the Group on certain
products are recognised based on sales volume and past experience
of the level of repairs and returns, discounted to their present
values as appropriate.

Coupon liabilities

Coupon liabilities are recognised as a reduction in revenues upon
granting of bonus points to customers in accordance with the
announced bonus points scheme. The Group estimates future
redemption of bonus points based on its historical experiences.
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Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised, to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Income tax (continued)

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable
entity and the same taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair values where there
is reasonable assurance that the grants will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to compensate,
are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to the statement of profit
or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal
annual instalments or deducted from the carrying amount of the
asset and released to the statement of profit or loss by way of a
reduced depreciation charge.
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Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

° revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over the
goods sold;

° commissions from concessionaire sales are recognised upon
the sale of goods by the relevant stores;

° promotion income and minimum guaranteed sales
commissions are recognised according to the underlying
contract terms with concessionaires and as these services
have been provided in accordance therewith;

° interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of
the financial instrument or a short period, when appropriate,
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset;

o consultancy and management service fees, credit card
handling fees, administration fees and service fees are
recognised when the relevant services are rendered;

° rental income, display space leasing fees and equipment
leasing income are recognised on a time proportion basis
over the lease terms;

° dividend income, when the shareholders' right to receive
payment has been established; and

° income from restaurant operations, when the catering
services have been provided to customers.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contributes to the success of the Group's operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form
of share-based payments, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions").

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants
after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to the fair value
at the date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined
by an external valuer using a binomial option pricing model.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit
or loss for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but
the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the
Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within
the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award,
but without an associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an
award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market condition
or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial
to the employee as measured at the date of modification.
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Share-based payments (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled
and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the
original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

Other employee benefits

Pursuant to the relevant PRC laws and regulations, each of the PRC
subsidiaries of the Group is required to participate in a retirement
benefit scheme organised by the local municipal government
whereby the Group is required to contribute a certain percentage of
the salaries of its employees to the retirement benefit scheme. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
scheme is to pay the ongoing required contributions. Contributions
made to the defined contribution retirement benefit scheme are
charged to the statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed
in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist
of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with
the borrowing of funds.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. In prior years, final
dividends proposed by the directors were classified as a separate
allocation of retained earnings within the equity section of the
statement of financial position, until they have been approved by
the shareholders in a general meeting. Following the implementation
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), proposed final
dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company's memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi, which
is different from the functional currency of the Company of
the United States dollar. The Company's consolidated financial
statements are presented in Renminbi because management
considers that a substantial majority of the group companies
are in the PRC and the Group primarily generates and expends
cash in Renminbi. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are
initially recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation
of monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss with the exception
of monetary items that are designated as part of the hedge of the
Group's net investment of a foreign operation. These are recognised
in other comprehensive income until the net investment is disposed
of, at which time the cumulative amount is reclassified to the
statement of profit or loss. Tax charges and credits attributable to
exchange differences on those monetary items are also recorded in
other comprehensive income.
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Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The gain or
loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at
fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or
loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference
on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of the
entities in the Group are translated into the presentation currency
of the Company at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are translated
into Renminbi at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange reserve.
On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and
any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Renminbi
at the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into Renminbi at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments - the Group as lessee

The Group has entered into commercial property leases for its
department stores business. The Group has determined, based on
an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, that
the lessor retains all the significant risks and rewards of relevant
properties and so accounts for them as operating leases.

Tax provisions

Determining tax provisions involves judgement on the future tax
treatment of certain transactions. The Group carefully evaluates
tax implications of transactions and tax provisions are set up
accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions is assessed
periodically to take into account all the changes in tax legislation
and practices.

Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied
properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment
property, and has developed criteria in making that judgement.
Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of the other
assets held by the Group. Some properties comprise a portion that
is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another
portion that is held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes. If these portions could be
sold separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions could
not be sold separately, the property is an investment property only
if an insignificant portion is held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes. Judgement is
made on an individual property basis to determine whether ancillary
services are so significant that a property does not qualify as an
investment property.
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Estimates uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets at the end of each reporting period.
Indefinite life intangibles are tested for impairment annually and
at other times when such indicators exist. Other non-financial
assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators that
the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair
value less costs of disposal is based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm's length transaction of similar asset or
observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken, management
must estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or
cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating units and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31
December 2015 was RMB2,158,716,000 (2014: RMB2,157,896,000).
Further details of impairment testing of goodwill are given in note
14 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Estimates uncertainty (continued)
Provision against obsolete and slow-moving inventories

Management reviews the condition of inventories of the Group
and makes provision against obsolete and slow-moving inventory
items which are identified as no longer suitable for sale or use.
Management estimates the net realisable value for such inventories
based primarily on the latest invoice prices and current market
conditions. The Group carries out an inventory review at the end
of each reporting period and makes provision against obsolete and
slow-moving items. Management reassesses the estimation by the
end of each reporting period.

Provision for impairment of other receivables

The policy for provision for impairment of other receivables
of the Group is based on the evaluation of collectability and
ageing analysis of accounts and on management's estimation. A
considerable amount of estimation is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each debtor. If
the financial conditions of debtors are to deteriorate, resulting in an
impairment of their ability to make payments, additional allowances
may be required.

Fair value of financial instruments

Where the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded in the statement of financial position cannot be derived
from active markets, they are determined using valuation techniques
including the discounted cash flow model. The inputs to these
models are taken from observable markets where possible, but
where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in
establishing fair values. The judgements include considerations of
inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in
assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value
of financial instruments.
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Estimates uncertainty (continued)
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax assets relating to
recognised tax losses at 31 December 2015 was RMB90,805,000
(2014: RMB48,579,000). The amount of unrecognised tax losses at
31 December 2015 was RMB262,116,000 (2014: RMB180,691,000).
Further details are given in note 19 to the financial statements.

Depreciation

The Group has estimated the useful lives of the property, plant
and equipment and investment properties as 5 to 45 years, after
taking into account their estimated residual values, as set out
in the principal accounting policies above. Depreciation of items
of property, plant and equipment and investment properties is
calculated on the straight-line basis over their expected useful
lives. The carrying amounts of items of property, plant and
equipment and investment properties as at 31 December 2015 were
RMB5,151,089,000 (2014: RMB3,750,757,000) and RMB23,546,000
(2014: RMB25,502,000), respectively. Further details are given in
note 11 and note 12 to the financial statements, respectively.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE AND OTHER OPERATING REVENUES
Revenue

Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, mainly represents the
net amount received and receivable for the goods sold by the Group
to outside customers, less returns and allowances, commissions
from concessionaire sales, consultancy and management service
fees, and gross rental income.

An analysis of revenue is presented below:
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e 3%

Wzt (MBIAKENERE) TRE
AEEHINEEFHEEDMD KR
FEMRH)HERR - RRE RATE - BAFE

BHERS HAMEERBELA
BRA -

Was DT FIRAT

Sale of goods - direct sales HEST — HENE 1,638,052 1,645,004
Commissions from concessionaire sales (Note) HFeFEBHEME (ML) 2,255,298 2,555,035
Consultancy and management service fees BAREERGE 11,998 14,675
Gross rental income e A 327,273 309,015

4,232,621 4,523,729

Note:
The commissions from concessionaire sales are analysed as follows:

CEE
HHEERE AN

Gross revenue from concessionaire sales FRr EMEEE AR 13,109,347 14,281,837
Commissions from concessionaire sales HHEEHEERE 2,255,298 2,555,035
Segment information DEER
For management purposes, the Group has a single operating and HEERHK  AEEREA—ELE
reportable segment - the operation and management of department WEDH - EPELEREERE

stores in the PRC. All revenues from external customers are
generated in the PRC and all significant operating assets of the
Group are located in the PRC.
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4.

REVENUE AND OTHER OPERATING REVENUES
(continued)

Other operating revenues

4.

WEREMKE WS (5)

Hp & Wz

Credit card handling fees ZERRFESE 80,702 94,156
Promotion income {23 A 92,647 109,870
Administration fees THEHR 54,870 51,948
Display space and equipment leasing income R $535 1 & SR EAE KA 48,752 49,695
Service fees AR75 & A 26,768 28,004
Government grants (Note) e (MizE) 2,996 10,527
Other income HaA 199,323 147,149

506,058 491,349

Note: M=E :

Various local government grants have been granted to reward the Group for
its contributions to the local economy. There were no unfulfilled conditions
or contingencies attached to these government grants.
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5.  (LOSS)/PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS 5. K& (FR)/AE
The Group's (loss)/profit from operations is arrived at after charging/ AREBRKEE (BE),/ FIET&EN
(crediting): B (Gt A) THITEBZEL

Cost of inventories recognised as expenses &R A X HFE KA 1,409,267 1,413,251
Staff costs excluding directors' and BIXA (TEEEEN
chief executive's remuneration (note 7): BT ASESE)
(P&E7) -
Wages, salaries and bonuses I8 - e &t 503,986 460,535
Pension scheme contributions RIREEHEIMER 70,599 61,627
Social welfare and other costs e RA R EAM A 107,445 91,416
682,030 613,578
Depreciation and amortisation e s 405,638 404,021
Impairment of inventories FERE 20 1,800 -
Impairment of other receivables H4th fE UG IR R B 22 11,600 -
Impairment of goodwill *** R E 14 - 81,168
Operating lease rentals in respect of EAEEMER
leased properties: KEHOES
Minimum lease payments * HIERE* 1,056,073 896,724
Contingent lease payments ** FAEE 163,559 175,086
1,219,632 1,071,810
Loss on disposal of items of property, TLEME BEK
plant and equipment BAEH B 1B 7,479 5,565
Auditors' remuneration ZE AN BN & 5,592 5,059
Gross rental income in respect of KEMENHESBKA
investment properties (6,483) (5,964)
Sub-letting of properties: DIEME
Minimum lease payments * =IEHEe (224,286) (181,891)
Contingent lease payments ** HAREE (96,504) (121,160)
(320,790) (303,051)
Total gross rental income ErtE B A (327,273) (309,015)
Direct operating expenses arising on IR EMERS

rental-earning investment properties EXNEELERY 698 735
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5 (LOSS)/PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS (continued)

*

Minimum lease payments of the Group include pre-determined
rental payments and minimum guaranteed rental payments for
lease agreements with contingent rental payments.

- Contingent lease payments are calculated based on a percentage
of the relevant performance of the tenants pursuant to the rental
agreements.

o The impairment is included in "Other operating expenses” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

6. FINANCE INCOME/COSTS

e (

*%

BiR), 7@ (&)
AEEREHSOERTHSR
RIETEE 1 3% S AT S B
REHS -

FAREE HREBEEBENOE
ERKEREAERKES -

WMERGABERINEIEMBE
BRI -

MEWRA A

Finance income: mEUWA :
Bank interest income ERITF B UL A 130,183 170,371
Finance costs: BB ¢
Bonds B (146,006) (144,409)
Interest-bearing bank loans FTEIRITIEE (20,291) (4,825)

(166,297) (149,234)
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DIRECTORS', CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND SENIOR 7. EE - BSTHRABRSHRITH
EXECUTIVES' EMOLUMENTS AEME

Directors' and chief executive's remuneration for the year, disclosed BREBEHERZFMABR R FE?
pursuant to the Rules Governing The Listing of Securities on the EmBRA (T EmHA]) - FEERA
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules"), 383(1) 16 51 85383(1)(a) ~ (0) * () (A B A
(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part A (WEESFEER) BHIFE 230
2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of BENEENESTHAEFENE N
Directors) Regulation, is as follows: T~

Fees we 1,534 868
Other emoluments: HMme
Salaries, allowances, bonuses and T o~ BBL - AN
other benefits H b a5 4,514 3,210
Pension scheme contributions BREFTEMER 133 256
4,647 3,466
6,181 4334
(a) Independent non-executive directors () BIAIXEBTES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during FRMABILIFATES M
the year were as follows: MEWT

Mr Dato’ Fu Ah Kiow SEMREREE
(appointed on 13 November 2014) (R=—=Z=—mE+—A
T=BEREZE) 209 23
Mr Werner Josef Studer Werner Josef Studert 4
(resigned on 15 August 2014) (R=—=—mmE
NA+HAEE) - 102
Mr Ko Tak Fai, Desmond SEEL A 209 165
Mr Yau Ming Kim, Robert F8eltsE 209 165
627 455
There were no other emoluments payable to the independent 2T -RAFT-_A=1—
non-executive directors for the year ended 31 December HIEFENW &AM ERN TEL
2015 (2014: Nil). EMITEFOME (ZT—H

FE)
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7.  DIRECTORS', CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND SENIOR 7. EBEE -BETBRABRSHRITH
EXECUTIVES' EMOLUMENTS (continued) AEME (8)

(b)  Executive directors, non-executive directors and the (b) BITEE IHTEERES
chief executive THAER

2015 —Z—1F
Executive directors: WITES !
Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem FHnBEER 209 - - 209
Mr Chong Sui Hiong oI LA 209 - - 209
Ms Juliana Cheng San San St
(appointed on 28 August 2015) (R=Z—RENA
Z+N\BEZE) 71 1,850 - 1,921
489 1,850 - 2,339
Non-executive directors: FRTES :
Datuk Lee Kok Leong 2EZER 209 - - 209
Dato' Dr. Hou Kok Chung eEmMEAEL 209 - - 209
418 - - 418
Chief executive: BRI THAS :
Mr Chong Sui Hiong oRImbE ST A - 2,664 133 2,797
- 2,664 133 2,797

907 4,514 133 5,554
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DIRECTORS', CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND SENIOR 7. EE BRETHAERSRITH
EXECUTIVES' EMOLUMENTS (continued) AEME (8)
(b)  Executive directors, non-executive directors and the (b) BITEE IHTEERES

TBRAR (&)

chief executive (continued)

2014 —E-mE
Executive directors: HITES
Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem TR ERR 165 - - 165
Mr Chong Sui Hiong Rl % A
(appointed on (RZZ—ImF
13 November 2014) +—AT=BEZH) 23 - - 23
Mr Tan Hun Meng RERLE
(resigned on 1 March 2014) (R=ZF—Mm%F
ZA—BEff) 28 - - 28
216 - - 216
Non-executive directors: FITES
Datuk Cheng Yoong Choong SEERRE
(retired on 16 May 2014) (R=Z—MmF
R A+AHET) 63 - - 63
Mr Tan Hun Meng BER%
(re-designated on (R=Z—Mm4F
1 March 2014 and resigned ZA—BHTK
on 13 November 2014) RZE—[F
+—A+=H§&f) 55 - - 55
Datuk Lee Kok Leong 2EZER
(appointed on (R=Z—MF
1 September 2014) NA—BEZE) 56 - - 56
Dato’ Dr. Hou Kok Chung 2EMEREL
(appointed on (R=Z—F
13 November 2014) +—A+=REZT) 23 - - 23
197 - - 197
Chief executives: BE{IHMAR
Mr Tan Hun Meng RERTE
(resigned on 1 March 2014) (R=F—m4F
= A—BEF) - 1,302 151 1,453
Mr Chong Sui Hiong Rinlk e
(appointed on 1 March 2014) (R=ZT—MmF
—A—BEZMT) - 1,908 105 2,013
- 3,210 256 3,466
413 3,210 256 3,879

There was no arrangement under which any directors or the
chief executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration

during the year.

FARERTAEZTHRSIT
B B 7R 3k R B D AL fa] A
EMEHERZHE
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7. DIRECTORS', CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND SENIOR 7. EE - BETHRABRSHITH
EXECUTIVES' EMOLUMENTS (continued) AEME (48)
()  Five highest paid employees () HEBRSFHES
The five highest paid employees during the year included $W£%§->{_%MME§ E%ﬁﬁ
two executive directors appointed from 28 August 2015, and BPTES DHEZF—

FANAZTNBER =T~ P_TI¢
A BREEZRE(ZT—
F:—REF HFA-F

from 1 March 2014, respectively (2014: one director who
was also the chief executive from 1 March 2014), details

of whose remuneration are set out above. Details of the mE=g— Ei%%%ﬁﬁ/\
remuneration for the year of the remaining three (2014: 2) HBjo S %ZEAJ:Y
four) highest paid employees who are neither a director nor RNEEESHNE (ZE—

chief executive of the Company are as follows: £:ME) 2= FHES (TBZ

%E%3F$/RET§$ MRS
TBAR) MBS FIRMT ¢

Salaries, allowances, bonuses and Fre o RBL - TEA K
other benefits HinEH 6,342 7,067
Pension scheme contributions RKEETEIHER 321 404
6,663 7,471
The number of non-director and non-chief executive B4 LA T & E ) &= 5N
highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within the BE (WIFEF - MIERET
following bands is as follows: HAR) ABIT :

HK$1,500,000 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,000/ 7T £2,000,00078 7T
(equivalent to RMB1,181,325 to (FHEERAR®1,181325TF
RMB1,575,100) AR #1,5751007T) = -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001, 7T 22,500,000 7T
(equivalent to RMB1,575,101 to (FBERAR®E1,575101 TR
RMB1,968,875) ANR#1,968,8757T) - 3
HK$2,500,000 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,000/ 7T £ 3,000,0007 7T
(equivalent to RMB1,968,875 to (HHERAR1,968,875TE
RMB2,362,650) AR #2,362,6507T) 3 1
3 4
In the opinion of the directors, the Group has no key EERR REXHAEENE
management personnel (as defined in IAS 24, Related Party %&ﬂ% = %@HEE\M\ 'R
Disclosures) other than the directors and the five highest SELEEAAMEREEA

8 (EEAEKRESFERISE24
SRETEL HRE) -

paid employees as disclosed above.
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The PRC subsidiaries of the Group are required to participate in
the employee retirement benefit scheme operated by the relevant
local government authorities in the PRC. The PRC government is
responsible for the pension liability to the retired employees. The
Group was required to make contributions for those employees who
are registered as permanent residents in the PRC and are within the
scope of the relevant PRC regulations at rates ranging from 20%
to 22% of the employees' salaries for the years ended 31 December
2015 and 2014.

The Group's contributions to pension costs for the year ended 31
December 2015 amounted to approximately RMB70,732,000 (2014:
RMB61,883,000).

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on the profit
arising in or derived from the tax jurisdictions in which members
of the Group are domiciled and operate.

During the year, six (2014: six) PRC entities of the Group have
obtained approval from the relevant PRC tax authorities and were
subject to preferential corporate income tax rates or corporate
income tax exemptions. Under the relevant PRC income tax law,
except for certain preferential treatments available to certain PRC
subsidiaries and the joint venture of the Group, the PRC entities
of the Group are subject to corporate income tax at a rate of 25%
(2014: 25%) on their respective taxable income.

An analysis of the provision for tax in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss is as follows:

REAFT1S T

Current income tax
Deferred income tax (note 19)

EEFSH (FHEE19)

PSR M

31 December 2015 —E—AF+-A=+—8H

AEENTPRMMB ARG ELEFPE
TR 5 BT # R E (ER) (B B iR IKTR
FEtE - FEBMNEERZEDRIK
EBESNERKE - HE_T—HEK
—E-NFE+-_A=+—HIFE "
AEBALAEELKRAETBEXAER
MEBHRBERMRENZERE IR
BB #H & N F2000% 22001 2 # tb 5
R o

HE-_ZT—RF+_-_A=+—HIF
B AEBERBARENAERHAR
#70,732000C (ZZE—ME: AR
#61,883,0007T ) °

AEBBZEREENREIREAR
BR8N BIFTEE K 8 & PR B %
BLAHE R B M BB -

FRAAEBHNARFRAR] (ZT—
M NR) CEEBET RIS
HEREBRCEMSHEAT N ER
REEMGH - BIERBTREAEH
% BRAEEETHBRMBARRA
SHENZHEETEERFBIN A&
B REBYARKESS 8MNER
FRULA IR 2500 (—Z—PO4F : 2500) %
KRB -

/7

R BRER AR EN DTN

T -
2015 2014

—E-HF —THEF
RMB'000 RMB'000

AR® TR AR®TR

131,860 173,486
(67,925) (42,254)

63,935 131,232
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9.  INCOME TAX (continued) 9. FIBH (&)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to (loss)/profit before AR E RE KA M B QR E
tax at the statutory rates for the countries (or jurisdictions) in which FIEBR (hRlERER) /AR ERE
the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to ATEMKRBA (BB FEzEA
the tax expense at the effective tax rates, and a reconciliation of HIERY @ BREERRAENTE
the applicable rates (i.e., the statutory tax rates) to the effective xR URERABE (ALEE
tax rates, are as follows: FRE) BERREOEIRNOT ¢

2015 —E—-HEF

(Loss)profit from Rt ERA

operations before fae (58)/

income tax i) (52) (682) (175,598) (13,307) (1,752) 72,691 (118,700)
Tax at the statutory RETHEHE

tax rate RI5E (9) 17.3 (116) 17.0 - - - - (438) 250 18173 250 17,610 (149)
Taxeffect of preferential ~ BERXH)

tax rates it - - - - - - - - - - (33,586) (46.2)  (33,586) 28.3
Profits and losses —HAELER

attributable to  joint BENAEE

venture and associates MERES (13) 250 - - - - - - - - (3367) (46) (3380 2.8
Tax losses not recognised AR

HEFR 2 (423) 16 (17.0) - - - - - - 65325 899 65463 (55.1)

Tax losses previously THRIM

recognised, REREY

now reversed HERSE - - - - - =T - - f030 142 10320 (87)
Expenses not deductible R BEEHN

for ta BENEY - - - - - - - - - - 9,839 135 9,839 (8.3)

Effect of witfiholding REED
taxon the distributable ~ HEAA
profits of the Group's AAEHES

PRC subsdares ERyE - - - - - - .- - - (6000) (83)  (6000) S
Adjustments in respect ~ FLBEEIRIRNE
of current tax of TORfELS
previous periods Ets - - - - - - - - - - 3669 50 3669 (3.1)

Tax charge for the year  AEEFRIELH - - - - - - - (438) 250 64373 885 63935 (53.9)
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9.  INCOME TAX (continued) 9. FTBH (8)
2014 —E—mF

Profit/(loss) from operations KatBiEHA

before income tax g@%ﬂ}j/(%ﬁ) (81,112) (699) (156,635) (1,574) 617,025 377,005
Tax at the statutory tax rate WEEHESENRE (13383 165 (ng) 170 = < - - A6 B0 14074 373
Tax effect of preferential tax rates  BEHEMHET L = - = = = = - - (64920) (105 (64920) (172
Profits and losses attributable ~ —HAEAER

o a joint venture and BEAT

an associate EEHERES 19 - = = = = - - e () g Qo)
Tax losses not recognised HARRNHESE 9 - ny - (120) > o - - M 13 4T 120
Tax losses previously recognised, & ATEAMBED A

now reversed HEER = = = < - - - - e 33 Ngn 55
Expenses not deductile for tax ~ ARIBEEABENRR 13393 (165 s e - - - - B9 14 136 59

Effect of withholding tax on AEEPERELT
the distributable profits of AR

the Group's PRC subsidiaries kil - - - - - - - - (o) (8 (M0 (0
Adjustments in respect of current LB EIRRENEAR B
tax of previous periods {EHRAE 1787 22) = = = = = = = = 1787 05
Tax losses previously not BRI A
recognised, now recognised KEAHEER - - = = = - - S 57 8 (15721 (4)
Tax charge for the year MEERETH 1787 (22 = - - - s - 19445 210 131232 348
The share of tax attributable to the joint venture and associates AEPENBERTEGHEBEI A
amounting to RMB4,193,000 (2014: RMB5,850,000) and AR ®4,193,0000T (ZF—MHF : A
RMB(3,492,000) (2014: RMB43,000), respectively, is included in R ¥5,850,00070) & AR ¥ (3,492,000)
"Share of (loss)/profit of a joint venture and associates” in the T (ZZE—NF: AR #430007T)
consolidated statement of profit or loss. ERGERRRANEBHEELER

BEnE (B8R, FE] A -




@ 2015 ANNUAL REPORT | FE#R&

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 7% SR By

31 December 2015 —E—AF+-A=+—8H

10.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based on
the (loss)/profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
of 2,705,494,000 (2014: 2,776,805,000) in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amounts is based
on the (loss)/profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year, as used in the basic earnings per
share calculation, and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares assumed to have been issued at no consideration on the
deemed exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares into ordinary shares.

No adjustment had been made to the basic earnings per share
amount presented for the years ended 31 December 2015 and
2014 in respect of a dilution as the impact of the share options
outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic earnings per
share amount presented.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based
on:

&7
ARNFTESRERR

Earnings

(Loss)/profit attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent,
used in the basic and diluted
earnings per share calculations

10.

BERNNERREBK
REFE ARG (B1R), A8

BAREEREZEEAEGS
% 2 F
BEREABANIREFAG QA
TEREZTEARMG (BB,
FIEARFEANCS 3T B INE
SE 15 802,705,494,0000% (= ZF — P4 :
2,776,805,0000% ) 5t &

SREERNIRBEFAS QA ER
iR E ARG (BE),FIEIA
RERBETERRINEFHE (20
REERERBNNETR) ML
PRAEEE R B BRER TR
BHROSTBRENERERITNER
Bt F I EEtE -

E_T-RAFER-FT-MOF+ A
=+—HLEFE  AREARTTENE
BHEAFT 25| SRERRF S HE
BEREEER  BLENZIEAZ
SR EREARBNELEERE -

TH BRI ESRERRE TR
HBUR

(186,154) 235,032

Shares dvi)

Weighted average number of ordinary RrEsTESREREFH
shares in issue during the year used in FAEBITEBE
the basic earnings per share calculation IREFHE

2,705,494

2,776,805
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11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 11. Y% BERRKE

At 1 January 2014, net of accumulated  RZE-ME-F—§

depreciation and impairment BB EHERAE 2,117,999 739,657 10376 188,880 772805 3829717
Additions NE 9,034 192,136 3982 38,084 62,528 305,764
Transfer from investment properties REMEES 10,693 = = = = 10,693
Transfers from construction in progress MR TIZEA 4,465 36,753 = 3,158 (44,376) =
Disposals e (172) (5,118) (594) (2,455) - (8:339)
Depreciation charged during the year — ERFEIH (58,589) (284,136) (2976) (#1,377) - (387078)
At 31 December 2014 and RZZ-ME+ZA

1 January 2015, net of accumulated “+-RER-E-1f

depreciation and impairment —B—B - @k Eat

FEREA 2,083,430 679,292 10,788 186,290 790,957 3,750,757
Additions NE - 166,294 2223 39411 1,607,211 1,815,139
Acquisition of a subsidiary KE-ZHELR - - - 60 - 60
Transfer from investment properties REMERA 1,258 = = = = 1,258
Transfers from construction in progress MR TIZEA - 87912 - 13,680 (101,592) =
Disposals e - (6311) (929) (11,654) - (18,894)
Depreciation charged during the year  ERITEXH (56,149) (294,189) (2964) (41,929) - (397.231)
At 31 December 2015, net of R-E-RE+-A
accumulated depreciation and =+—A - &k

impairment LIHMERE 2,026,539 632,998 9,118 185858 2296576 5151089
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11.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 1. YE- - BERKE (B)

At 1 January 2014 RZE-EF—-A—H
Cost B 2,445,001 1,714,368 23,189 490,326 773,181 5,446,065
Accumulated depreciation and Nk 25T E R E
impairment (327,002) (974711) (12,813) (301,446) (376)  (1,616,348)
Net carrying amount EEEE 2,117,999 739,657 10,376 188,880 772,805 3829717
At 31 December 2014 R=ZE-MmE+=A
=t+-H
Cost A 2,470,212 1877,641 25,330 513,915 791333 5,678,431
Accumulated depreciation and R 25T E R E
impairment (386,782) (1,198,349) (14,542) (327,625) (376)  (1,927,674)
et carrying amount BEE 2083430 679,292 10,788 186290 790957 3750757
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-H%+tZA
=1-H
Cost R 2,471,538 2,044,642 25,221 555,412 2296952 7,393,765
Accumulated depreciation and R 25T E R E
impairment (444999)  (1411644) (16703 (369,554 (376)  (2,242,676)
Net carrying amount REFE 2,026,539 632,998 9118 185858 2,296576 5,151,089
All of the Group's land and buildings are located in the PRC, and AREB A T MEFIHM AR E -

the land is held under a medium term lease. mE i Ty HIRR LA -
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12. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 12. BREYE

At 31 December Rn+=—A=+—8”

Cost BN 26,460 27,717

Accumulated depreciation KMk 25T E (2,914) (2,215)

Net carrying amount BREFE 23,546 25,502
A reconciliation of the net carrying amount of investment properties FRERNKEDENREFES
at the beginning and end of the year is as follows: BRI -

Net carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BMEmFE 25,502 36,930
Depreciation e (698) (735)

Transfer to owner-occupied property EEEET(EAME (M)

(note 11) (1,258) (10,693)
Net carrying amount at 31 December RT-_A=+—HEEFE 23,546 25,502
The Group's investment properties were revalued at RMB89,081,000 AEBENREMERLIEERIRN -
on an open market, existing use basis on 31 December 2015 by T-AF+_A=+—H®WARAM
the Group. The investment properties are situated in the PRC and % BERAZEEEBRRARE
leased to third parties under medium term operating leases, further 89,081,0007T ° & E M EH L
summary details of which are included in note 35 to the financial RBEFHEERNEETE=F -
statements. HFBRERNUBHRKRW S -
13.  PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 13. FANL#HHEERK
Prepaid land lease payments represent land use rights paid to TEA T b8 & 5 M B B A =2
the PRC governmental authorities and are amortised on the e TR - WIREFENE#

straight-line basis over the respective lease agreement periods. T E R BRTE SN o
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14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The movements of intangible assets are as follows:

At 1 January 2014, net of accumulated

HoE-mE-A—8

14.

R AE
W EENEBOT -

amortisation and impairment NG 25T HORE
2,239,064 6,237 - - - 2245301

Additions NE - 1,380 - - - 1,380
Amortisation provided during the year — FREEZE = (2,896) = = = (2,896)
Impairment during the year ERNFEE (81,168) = = = = (81,168)
At 31 December 2014 and RZE-MF

1 January 2015, +ZA=+-Ak

net of accumulated “Z-1F-f-R"

amortisation and impairment ENG2GTEEIRE 215789 4721 - - - 2162617
Additions NE = 684 24,627 = = 2531
Acquisition of a subsidiary it NG 820 - s 6,177 36,009 43,006
Amortisation provided during the year — ARFER MR = (3,138) (1372) (257) (1,459) (6,226)
At 31 December 2015, RZZE-1%F

net of accumulated +-A=+-8"

amortisation and impairment EHRZGTEHEIAE 2158716 2,267 23,255 5920 34550 2,224,708
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BEEE (8)

14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 14.

At 1 January 2014 RZE-NE—-A—H
Cost A 2,239,064 14,056 = = - 2,253,120
Accumulated amortisation and RIS L RE
impairment = (7.819) = = = (7.819)
Net carrying amount EEFE 2,239,064 6,237 = = - 2245300
At 31 December 2014 and R-ZE—mE
1 January 2015 +TZA=+—-HBR
—2-h%-A-H
Cost A 2,239,064 15,436 = = - 2,254,500
Accumulated amortisation and KB LRE
impairment (81,168) (10,715) = = = (91,883)
Net carrying amount REFEE 2,157,896 4721 = = - 2162617
At 31 December 2015 RZE—FhF
t-A=t-R
Cost AN 2,239,884 16,120 24,627 6,177 36009 2322817
Accumulated amortisation and 2 BELRE
impairment (81,168) (13,853) (1372) (257) (1,459) (98,109)
Net carrying amount FmFE 2,158,716 2,267 23,255 5920 34,550 2,224,708

* R-ZZE—AF=F  KXRAREB
FERREEERNEBRAA DA
E2Johnny Rockets Licensing LLC

In March 2015, the Company, through Shanghai Lion Parkson
Management Consultant Co., Ltd., entered into agreements to
acquire the license rights of "Johnny Rockets", "Quiznos" and

**

"The Library Coffee Bar" with Johnny Rockets Licensing LLC, QFA
Royalties LLC, and F&B Essentials Sdn. Bhd., respectively, for a
period of 10 to 14 years. The amount represents the purchase price
and non-refundable taxes.

A subsidiary newly acquired by the Group during the year has
entered into a franchise agreement for granting an exclusive right
and license to develop the licensed restaurant by a licensee, for a
period of 10 years commencing from 2015. The amount represents
the fair value of the franchise agreement acquired by the Group.

A subsidiary newly acquired by the Group during the year owns the
trademark of "Franco” with an expected useful life of 10 years. The
amount represents the fair value of the trademark acquired by the
Group.

QFA Royalties LLCJ2F&B Essentials
Sdn. Bhd. &7 3215 + BA 9 Bl K
B [Johnny Rockets], [Quiznos]
K [The Library Coffee Bar] H/EF&F
- REHTETNF - ZSBEAR
BEERRTARERE -

* AR ER B F R W BB RO — ST B
RECFI LRI E S - U
BB R IR RS R AT A
EREFEE B_Z—LFE
RYTE - ZTBER/AKEMK
BRETEEBENAAEE -

e AEEBRFAFTBEN—RWB
NAEA [Franco| BREIZ - FBHA
ARFHAETF - ZeEALE
BT ERIZM AR EE -
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Impairment testing of goodwill

The carrying amount of goodwill has been allocated to the following

cash-generating units:

AR R
HENEEERSRETIREES
B -

2015 2014
—E-HF —TF
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
B 5E AR¥TR AR%ETT
Xi'an Lucky King Parkson Plaza Co., Ltd. PA& L HEES
BRA R (@) 111,104 111,104
Parkson Retail Development Co., Ltd. ERGE YN (i) (o) 297,097 297,097
Chongging Wanyou Parkson Plaza EEBERBRES
Co., Ltd. BRAT ()(c) 2,712 2,712
Shanghai Lion Parkson Investment LM BREHN
Consultant Co., Ltd. BRAA] (1)(d) 9,343 9,343
Asia Victory International Limited FEZEHERER A A (i)(e) 315,225 315,225
Anshan Tianxing Parkson Shopping gL REEHREYH L
Centre Co., Ltd. BRRAT (i)(f) 272,743 272,743
Jiangxi Parkson Retail Co., Ltd. IEBaEFYLHEE
BRAR] ()(g) 508,909 508,909
Mianyang Fulin Parkson Plaza Co., Ltd. #R3[5 2 e B KX ES
BRAT] (i)(h) 91,478 91,478
Nanning Brilliant Parkson Commercial — mgZEAREE B B i 2
Co., Ltd. BRAT 010 155,066 155,066
Lung Shing International Investment & [&B BRI E ZEE
Development Company Limited BRAR] 1G) 59,003 59,003
Xi'an Chang'an Parkson Store Co., Ltd. PALZEZAEAE
BERATR] (k) 54,672 54,672
Xi'an Shidai Parkson Store Co., Ltd. ALHREREE
ERE AT Hm 137,317 137,317
Shantou Parkson Commercial Co., Ltd.  SIUSEH B EER A T (i)(m) 70,736 70,736
Shenyang Parkson Shopping Plaza ES A RBYES
Co., Ltd. BR AT (i)(n) 72,491 72,491
Yeehaw Best Practices Sdn. Bhd. Yeehaw Best Practices
Sdn. Bhd. (o) 820 -
2,158,716 2,157,896

(i)(a)  Xi'an Lucky King Parkson Plaza Co., Ltd. principally engages in the

operation of two department stores in Xi'an, the PRC.

(i)(b)  Parkson Retail Development Co., Ltd. principally engages in the

operation of six department stores in Beijing, Zhengzhou, Harbin

and Xinjiang, the PRC.

(i)(c)  Chongging Wanyou Parkson Plaza Co., Ltd. principally engages in

the operation of three department stores in Chongging, the PRC.

(Ja) ALRVEHEBRESERAFEE
R BEARELEMEAERE °

(b) BEHREEBHRERATEER®
B4R - M A FE A
BAREEE -

() EEERBRESERARAEE
RHBEERLE=RAEE -
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Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

()(d)  Shanghai Lion Parkson Investment Consultant Co., Ltd. principally
engages in the provision of consultancy and management services
in Shanghai, the PRC.

(i)(e)  Asia Victory International Limited and its subsidiaries principally
engage in the operation of two department stores in Kunming, the
PRC.

(i)(f)  Anshan Tianxing Parkson Shopping Centre Co., Ltd. principally
engages in the operation of a department store in Anshan, the PRC.

(i)(g)  Jiangxi Parkson Retail Co., Ltd. principally engages in the operation
of a department store in Nanchang, the PRC.

(i)(h)  Mianyang Fulin Parkson Plaza Co., Ltd. principally engages in the
operation of a department store in Mianyang, the PRC.

(i)())  Nanning Brilliant Parkson Commercial Co., Ltd. principally engages
in the operation of three department stores in Nanning, the PRC.

()  Lung Shing International Investment & Development Company
Limited and its subsidiary principally engage in property investment
and holding in Anshan, the PRC.

(i)(k)  Xi'an Chang'an Parkson Store Co., Ltd. principally engages in the
operation of a department store in Xi'an, the PRC.

010 Xi'an Shidai Parkson Store Co., Ltd. principally engages in the
operation of a department store in Xi'an, the PRC.

(i)(m)  Shantou Parkson Commercial Co., Ltd. principally engages in the
operation of a department store in Shantou, the PRC.

(i)(n)  Shenyang Parkson Shopping Plaza Co., Ltd. principally engages in
the operation of a department store in Shenyang, the PRC.

(i)(0)  Yeehaw Best Practices Sdn. Bhd. principally engages in the food
and beverage business and operation of restaurants in the PRC and
Malaysia.

The recoverable amount of each cash-generating unit has been
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year period
approved by the executive directors. Apart from Yeehaw Best
Practices Sdn. Bhd., a newly acquired subsidiary in 2015, the
pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 4.6%
(2014: 6.3%). The pre-tax discount rates applied to the cash flow
projections for Yeehaw Best Practices Sdn. Bhd's business operations
in the PRC and Malaysia are 16.5% and 17.0%, respectively.

PSR M
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BENERENR (8)
()d) LEMBEREXABRARIE
PR B S R R s S B IR AR

()e) EEERAERARRELNERF
ITERNTERRALEEMRBERS °

0NH BUREARBYHLERAF
TERNPEBLEE-RBERE -

(o) IFBEEPLUNEEAERAAE
BRPEBSEE—RE L -

) REEEARESERARIE
RPBEREEE—FKBERE °

i) FEENEARBEARARIE
RHBEEELE=Ra"E -

) BEEREFRKEZERARABLEE
MEAREENTEERLUEEY
ERE -

k) ALXRZABREERRAFREE
RPBEAREE—FKBERE °

0N AXEREREERERAFREE
RPEAREE—FKBERE °

(m) SUEAPEREZERAFAEER
ELTEE R —RE S -

n) EEERBYWESERQAREE
R BEIEGEE —KBEE °

()(0)  Yeehaw Best Practices Sdn. Bhd. =
ERFRERERADRELERE
RIS EEEE -

EReELBEMMAIYE B HIRE
FREERRSRERIETE  Be
MEEADNBRENTESCORERS
H TR RTFEEEDL © BRYeehaw
Best Practices Sdn. Bhd. (—XKR ==
—RFEHRENHRBAR) I RE
it = T8 R &3 A B AT 9T 3R X B4.6%
(ZZ — P4 : 6.3%) ° Yeehaw Best
Practices Sdn. Bhd. FAFR B & &5 2K Fh an
REFEENRSRETERAEB
AIHTIRZE 5 Bl 4316.5005%.17.0% ©
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Key assumptions used in the value in use calculation

The following describes the key assumptions of the cash flow

projections:

Store revenue:

Gross margins:

Operating expenses:

Discount rates:

For the cash-generating unit, which
engaged in the operation of department
stores, the bases used to determine the
future earnings are historical sales and
average expected growth rates of the retail
market in the PRC.

For the cash-generating unit, which
engaged in the food and beverage business
and the operation of restaurants, the bases
used to determine the future earnings are
store opening plan in the PRC and Malaysia
markets, and expected annual income
per store, and the terms of the franchise
agreement.

Gross margins are based on the average
gross margins achieved in the past two
years immediately before the budget
year, increased for expected efficiency
improvements, and expected market
development.

The bases used to determine the values
assigned are the cost of inventories
purchased for resale, staff costs,
depreciation and amortisation, rental
expenses and other operating expenses.
The value assigned to the key assumption
reflects past experience and management's
commitment to maintain the operating
expenses to an acceptable level.

Discount rates reflect management's
estimate of specific risks relating to the
relevant units.

ARGEEREENEZERR

AT Rt IR

BEEWES

EFE ;

REFX

R

HEmETElREE/MK

RRBELETEEN
REeEABMME -
FAREERREFE
ERBEHEELHEIA
NAETE iGN
HTEHE R E o

B EBRET

MRS BEENREE
EBUME @ ARE
EARRBFNELEBR
RN SRR TS
WPFIERZETE - &
TEHERMENFE
WA - ARASFFTFEE
o MR o

EMRTIRIEEERTA
HEERMERTER
R FHEMEGFE -
RFEHIR R M TR
HImi5BRRMIER -

AREERTEEEDN
HEEQHEEMBA
MTFERA - BT
A rENEH M
TR REMBEERFH
X o AEFEBENEE
fRER IR BR B 1 A B I
BEE/HR LR
Fr AT R KT
g

FRERMEERER
BB E BN
#Tﬁ}—ll Mﬁlﬂﬁﬁ
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

With regard to the assessment of values in use of the respective
department store cash-generating units and the consultancy and
management services cash-generating unit and food and beverage
business cash-generating units, management believes that no
reasonably possible change in any of the above key assumptions
would cause the carrying amounts, including goodwill, of the
relevant units to materially exceed their recoverable amounts.

INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE

31 December 2015 —E—AF+=—A=+—H

BREE (B)
BREBBHHBRE

HFEEREEREELEMNEN
REBRBREELE u&éﬁ)\ﬁ
BReELEUNERERTH
EEE*HVJ:LEHEEK{E E&I?ﬁ\éﬁ
RELIREE) - BEAMENKEE
(’Tﬁfﬁéﬁ%) EBRE AR -

R-REEEENRE

Share of net assets EILEEFE 29,056 26,151
Particulars of the Group's joint venture are as follows: REEXTESEMENT ¢

Xinjiang Youhao Parkson Development RMB20,000,000 The PRC
Co., Ltd. ("Xinjiang Parkson") AR A
NERRAREEERERAT 20,000,0007C

(r#hEmal)

Although the Group has ownership of more than half of the voting
power of the subject entity, the joint venture agreement establishes
joint control over the subject entity. The joint venture agreement
ensures that no single venture is in a position to control the
activities of the entity unilaterally.

Xinjiang Parkson is considered as a material joint venture of the
Group, and is accounted for using the equity method.

51 Operation of
department stores

KreEREE
%ﬁ$¢l%ﬁﬁﬁ T B HRFEUR
;‘E_EEE ’ TﬁJ /A/\|—H Hl'ﬁl HTT

‘”‘f“‘“;!h Tﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁl B8R
HRATE S HEGIEREEEE -

[I

%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁw%ﬁ%%ﬂi%@—ﬂigm
BELE  UEDAETEERE -
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The following table illustrates the summarised financial information
in respect of Xinjiang Parkson adjusted for any differences in
accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in the
financial statements:

TRBAEREFEFENMEER -
ER S BER A Z RIEL FHBIA
REREPEHRERARNREE

2015 2014
—®-HE C"T-MF
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR AR¥ETT

Cash and cash equivalents R4 NIBESZEEY 18,625 42,612
Other current assets HEMneEE 192,747 161,458
Current assets REEE 211,372 204,070
Non-current assets IEREEE 19,558 13,115
Financial liabilities, excluding trade and cRaE BHhEM

other payables JE I SRIEBR HN (86,748) (76,687)
Other current liabilities HEMrRsaE (84,345) (86,598)
Current liabilities nRBRIE (171,093) (163,285)
Non-current financial liabilities, FRBeHmAT BHSK

excluding trade and other payables and i i A5 FRIB S B B O

provisions (2,865) (2,623)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (2,865) (2,623)
Net assets BEFHE 56,972 51,277
Reconciliation to the Group's interest REBREEDERN

in the joint venture: MR ETER ¢

Proportion of the Group's ownership NEE T A RELL 51% 51%

Group's share of net assets of AEEELEELETFEE

the joint venture 29,056 26,151

Revenue Wz 159,034 182,805
Purchases of goods and changes in REEMRGFEE S

inventories (41,653) (50,465)
Depreciation and amortisation e R (3.460) (3,393)
Operating expenses SBH Y (66,899) (67,335)
Finance income & WA 8,312 10,241
Tax IR (8.222) (11,471)
Profit and total comprehensive FAMNEREEBALLRE

income for the year 47,112 60,382
Share of profit of a joint venture Bl —XREEERNE 24,027 30,795
Dividends received BB - 42,963
Share of tax attributable to a joint venture JE{H—RE S EMIE (4,193) (5,850)
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FEIhEEFE

Share of net assets

The Group has a 35% equity interest in Shanghai Nine Sea Lion
Properties Management Co., Ltd.("Shanghai Nine Sea Lion"),
which engages in providing property management and real estate
consulting services.

On 21 July 2015, the Company has through a wholly-owned
subsidiary, Shanghai Honggiao Parkson Development Co., Ltd.
("Shanghai Honggiao Parkson"), entered into a joint venture
agreement with Newcore Retail Hong Kong Limited (“Eland") to
establish Parkson Newcore Retail Shanghai Ltd. in Shanghai for
the purpose of operating and managing outlet stores, under which
Shanghai Honggiao Parkson and Eland agreed to make capital
injections of RMB39,200,000 and RMB40,800,000, respectively,
which are in proportion to their equity interests of 49% and 519%.

On 28 August 2015, the Company has through a wholly-owned
subsidiary, Grand Parkson Retail Group Limited ("Grand Parkson"),
entered into a subscription and shareholders agreement with Koh
Wee Lit, Gee Cher Chiang, Bernice Cheong Nyuk Siew, Le Thienan
and Rite Bos Sdn. Bhd., under which the Group agreed to acquire
from Koh Wee Lit 10,000 shares at a consideration of US$600,000
and subscribe for 50,000 new shares in Rite Bos Sdn. Bhd. at a
consideration of US$3,400,000. After the share purchase and share
subscription, Grand Parkson holds 60,000 shares in Rite Bos Sdn.
Bhd., which represents 40% of the equity interest.

PSR M

31 December 2015 —E—AF+-A=+—8H

2015 2014
—EF-1% —T0OF
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  AR®TR
55,389 2,023

AEBR EBENEBSRMEEERER
RAEA(TEBNEESE]) FEA35%K
gD RARNFRHEDEETER
P IR s RS

RZEBE—FAFE+AHA=-+—H KQA
BEEBHEEENBAR L/SIBAR
BEARAR ([LBIBHEEK] -
E2Newcore Retail Hong Kong Limited
([Eland]) RT3 & & hrE © AR EE
Y BEAr BinEmE (E8) 8
RAF  BELE REIEBEHT -
Bt - EBIE B K KEandBE D
BE & A R %39,200,0007T & A R ¥
40,800,0007T + £ 1% 55 # 2= B949% K&
510043 Bl A EL B o

RZZE—RFENAZ+NB  &KXAF
EEBREZEWNBARAREEER
naEl ([BEmEE]) - BKoh Wee Lit »
Gee Cher Chiang * Bernice Cheong Nyuk
Siew * Le Thienan MRite Bos Sdn. Bhd.
RV WEERRRHE - Bl ARE
7] = LA {B600,0003 JT[AKoh Wee Lit
Uz 8% 10,0000% A% 17 & LA X {83,400,000
ZE T2 850,000% 7 Rite Bos Sdn. Bhd.
RFTRR (D - RIRD B E R RE
% - B BXEEEF Rite Bos Sdn. Bhd.#F
B 60,0000% 1D » 16 #E 2= #9400 ©
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16. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 16. REEQTNRE (8)
Particulars of the material associates are as follows: EEBLENAINFBOT

Shanghai Nine Sea Lion Properties US$365,000 The PRC 35 Property management
Management Co., Ltd. 365,000 7T es and real estate
EBNEESHMEEREBRAR consulting services
MEEEREME
H AR
Parkson Newcore Retail Shanghai Ltd. RMB80,000,000 The PRC 49  Operation of outlet
BRATRREEE (L) ARE i stores
ARR7] 80,000,0007T R B EHR
Rite Bos Sdn. Bhd. RM150,000 Malaysia 40  Operation of computer
MR HF150,0007C P i software development
and maintenance
BT FRE R
Shanghai Nine Sea Lion Properties Management Co., Ltd., Parkson EBRBSMYEERERAR B
Newcore Retail Shanghai Ltd. and Rite Bos Sdn. Bhd. are considered BATRIREEE (L8 BRAR
material associates of the Group and are accounted for using the KRite Bos Sdn. Bhd. ¥R A= AEE
equity method. BEBRERA  UEREETERE

b
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16. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 16. REEQATHRE (B)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information
in respect of Shanghai Nine Sea Lion Properties Management Co.,
Ltd., Parkson Newcore Retail Shanghai Ltd. and Rite Bos Sdn. Bhd.
adjusted for any differences in accounting policies and reconciled
to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements:

TRELEHELESNESHYEEE
ERAR BRATBEEEE (£
8 ) B R AR KRite Bos Sdn. Bhd. &I Ef
BER  ERSHBRNERNERE
HABUARAHELRE T BRERAL

fREfE :

Current assets REEE 12,195 116,466 6,653 135,314 10,327
Non-current assets ERsBE 140 76,531 56,412 133,083 192
Current liabilities nEAE (6,329) (132,218) (1.448)  (139,995) (4,740)
Non-current liabilities E LI - (2:330) - (2,330) =
Net assets BEFE 6,006 58,449 61,617 126,072 5779
Net assets, excluding goodwil BEFE - HERI 6,006 58,449 5,914 70,369 5,779
Proportion of the Group's ownership KEBMBRELH 350 49% 40% - 3500
Group's share of net assets of AEBEEHENREE
the associate, excluding goodwill BE - BERIH 2,102 28,640 2,366 33,108 2,023
Goodwill on acquisition WEMELENHE - - 22,281 22,281 =
Carrying amount of the investment REANERE 2,102 28,640 24,647 55,389 2,023
Revenues Wz 27,095 51,223 267 78,585 27,564
Profit and total comprehensive income for  FRFEREZERAEE
the year 225 (21,551) (4,150) (25,476) 335
Share of (loss)profit of the associates il NG|
(BB)/ 8 79 (10560)  (1,660)  (12,141) n7
Dividends received BURE - - - - 122
Share of tax attributable to the associates ELBEARRE (28) 3,520 - 3,492 (43)
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17. OTHER ASSETS 17. H#EE

Lease prepayments (Note) EAES () 404,146 358,346
Note: M et :
This represents the long term portion of lease prepayments. ZIEBEENESNRBAES -

18. INVESTMENTS IN PRINCIPAL GUARANTEED DEPOSITS 18. RAEAFEREE

Investments in principal guaranteed deposits T H1 B35 8 88 1T B (R 2N

in licensed banks in the PRC (Note) FEIEE (k) 2,075,120 3,532,690
Note: Bt aE
These investments in principal guaranteed deposits have terms of less RERKTEFRRENPR IR —F - &
than one year and have expected annual rates of return of 2.78% (2014: a2 FEHRE T AE278% (ZF — M
3.78%) in average. Pursuant to the underlying contracts or notices, the F :3.78%) o RIFB@EESHZBA - RAE
investments in principal guaranteed deposits are capital guaranteed upon FREENARENEIE A 2 ERE -

the maturity date.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group's investments in principal guaranteed RZE-—RFE+A=+—0 KxEEH
deposits with a carrying amount of RMB816 million (2014: RMB725.8 RATF RILE R E A A R 816,000,000
million) were pledged to secure the interest-bearing bank loans as detailed 7T (ZZF—MU4F : AR725800,0007T) &
in note 26. BEERITEENER  FHERWE

26 °
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19. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 19. EEHREBELEERESE

Deferred tax assets: BEERBEE
Depreciation nE 3,107 - (311) 2,796
Accrued other expenses HioEE Y 1,359 - 2,276 3,635
Accrued rental expenses E:tiSHY 142,921 - 24,652 167,573
Accrued coupon provision EitEE5EE 17,141 - (592) 17,149
Tax losses HEER (i) 48,579 - 42,226 90,805
213,707 - 68,251 281,958

Deferred tax liabilities: EREREEE
Depreciation ik (18,093) - 1,931 (16,162)

Fair value adjustments arising from KRB L RIME £

acquisition of a subsidiary RRBEAE (245,895) (10,105) 1,183 (254,817)
Compensation for policy-based relocation BRERBRES - - (9,440) (9,440)
Withholding taxes EMHE (i (6,000) - 6,000 -
(269,988) (10,105) (326) (280,419)

(56,281) (10,105) 67,925 1,539
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19. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)

19. EEMRBEERESE (B)

Deferred tax assets: BRHEAE
Depreciation nE 3,185 = (78) 3,107
Accrued other expenses Ef RS 10,261 - (8,902) 1359
Accrued rental expenses EstS % 103,478 = 39,443 142,921
Accrued coupon provision T EEARE 19,963 - (2,222) 17,741
Tax losses BBEER (i) 48,568 S i 48,579
185,455 - 28,252 213,707

Deferred tax liabilties: BEREAE -
Depreciation piig (20,083) = 1990 (18,093)

Fair value adjustments arising from WE-RHBARRELN
acquisition of a subsidiary RrBERE (246,657) - 762 (245,895)
Withholding taxes EHE (i (17,250) - 11,250 (6,000)
(283,990) - 14,002 (269,988)
(98,535) - 42,254 (56,281)
Notes: MiEE :

(1)

(if)

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of tax
losses arising from overseas subsidiaries of RMB816,000 (2014:
RMB755,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting against
future taxable profits, or tax losses from the PRC subsidiaries of
RMB261,300,000 (2014: RMB179,936,000) that will expire within
one to five years, as it was not considered probable at 31 December
2015 that taxable profits would be available against which such tax
losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from
the foreign investment enterprises established in the PRC.
The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies
to earnings after 31 December 2007. The Group is liable for
withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries
established in the PRC in respect of earnings generated from 1
January 2008.

(i)

(i)

AR AEERAN _E—AF+
TA=t+—BTAAEEESAA
PIEEHEEENERRFE
M AR BEBINHT B AR E AR
A 4 PR R K 5 R 2R B RR B A
R B IE B 1B A R #816,0007T (=
T — 04 : AR #7550007T)
SRR FE TR I8 A B LA Kk 7E o B
BRAELEEN —ERAFAREH
K 18 & 18 A R #261,300,0007T
(ZZ—O4 : AR%179,936,000
7)) HERIELEHRBEE -

BIBEPBECEMERE RPE
A AR ST B9 SN R I A 1 ZE ) SN EY
EETIRKE G AN100H T8
M- Z|MEA_ZSTN\F—A
—HRAER BEAR_ZZTLF
+ - A=+—BZRELENR
Ko REBAEIHPBE A
YHZEHBRAR-_ESTNE
—A—HBERELNAFFDIELN
i B4 IBRL
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20. INVENTORIES 20. F&

Merchandise [ 366,149 307,892
Consumables SEFE G 26,421 32,672
Impairment RIE (1,800) -
390,770 340,564
The movements in provision for impairment of inventories are as FERERENESHNT :
follows:

At the beginning of the year F4) - -
Impairment losses recognised BB EER 1,800 =
1,800 -
Included in the above provision for impairment of inventories ST L1 BRI E B & H RIE R E
is the provision for individually impaired inventories of AITF &R E A K #1,800,0007T #) #
RMB 1,800,000 (2014: Nil) with a carrying amount before provision —E-NEFE T EEEHNREE
of RMB4,993,000. A AR #4,993,0007T ©
21. TRADE RECEIVABLES 21. BREFZRE
Trade receivables mainly arise from purchases by customers with EWESFEETEREBAEHARMNK
credit card payments. The Group normally allows a credit period WEF - AEE—RRAHERERR
of not more than 30 days from the end of each financial year RERTEVBRFELERETHERB=
regarding its credit card receivables. A provision for doubtful debts T+ HARERE - AKEREBLE S
is made when it is considered that the trade receivables may not FEMGRIA ] e AU ] - A= IRRER
be recoverable. The Group's trade receivables relate to a number of REE - ANEBZEKRESRIBEH
diversified customers and there is no significant concentration of ETTRAER  ARASEERREILE
credit risk. The trade receivables are interest-free. BESFHEERR - ZFEYIE

RRB -
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21.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the payment due date, is as follows:

FEWE S FIE (&)
RI|EHR - AAFE BB REES
FEME B IEN R DM AT

Within 3 months =EmAR 60,943 85,298
3 to 12 months =Z=+=—@A 184 269
Over 1 year —FLE 3 3

61,130 85,570

Included in the balance as at 31 December 2015 are trade receivables
from the joint venture of RMB1,445,000 (2014: RMB1,408,000)
which are attributable to the consultancy fee income of the Group
as disclosed in note 36(a)(ii). These balances are unsecured and
interest-free.

The aged analysis of trade receivables that are not considered to
be impaired is as follows:

R-ZZE-—RE+-A=1+—08 " &%
BREASEZABRAEGRESE
EAEWE 5 FIE AR 1,445,000
T (ZZF—MmF: AR 1,408,000
TT) » BRI EE36() ()M E - ZE
EHBEEELES -

REBBEREKE 5 RIBRER DT
o

Neither past due nor impaired I fE B HA RORE 60,943 85,298
Over 3 months past due BH=EAN L 187 272
61,130 85,570

Receivables that were past due but not impaired mainly related to
receivables from fellow subsidiaries and corporate customers which
have a long business relationship with the Group. Based on past
experience, the directors are of the opinion that no provision for
impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality of the individual
debtors and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over these balances.

EBMERBENBUGKIATERK
BREMBARREASEEERY
RGERNAREFHEKFIA - R
FEERR  EFRA - ARERE
BANGEERRL BEREL - &R
AR AREEEIRE - BERMERHAE
HRERE  AEEYESEREE
SHEERERR - TEEMNREER

HHE ©
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22. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. FEFIE - #EREMEWFEIE

Current BIER
Lease prepayments FERHEE 325,580 307,135
Utilities and rental deposits KEERERZS 128,357 129,430
Advances to suppliers A JE P B K 103,687 74,682
Prepaid tax BNTE 23,959 50,667
Interest receivables FEUF B 13,647 32,117
Other prepayments HAhFERT IR 49,892 40,075
Deposits for purchase of land and building  B& B+ REFIES 61,161 61,161
Compensation receivables EYmES 9,287 -
Other receivables e WGRIR 90,858 78,163
806,428 773,430
Impairment RE (11,600) -
794,828 773,430
Non-current JEBD R
Prepayment for purchase of land and BB i REFEMNK
buildings - 867,840
The movements in provision for impairment of prepayments, FEN I -« Re R E M EWRIERE
deposits and other receivables are as follows: BEREEWT

At the beginning of the year FH) - 351
Impairment losses recognised BRI E R 18 11,600 -
Impairment losses reversed ER LR EEE - (351)
At the end of the year FR 11,600 =
Included in the above provision for impairment of prepayments, FAMFENFRIE - B e &H M YUK
deposits and other receivables is a provision for individually TE R (B 2 4 89 5K IR B 5 E Bl T8 5 3R
impaired prepayments, deposits and other receivables of B RekEMERZIEBEREAR
RMB 11,600,000 (2014: Nil) with a carrying amount before provision #11,600,0007T B B & (= & — Y
of RMB30,923,000. F:Z) HEBEGIREAERARYE

30,923,0007T °
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23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND TIME DEPOSITS 23. BERBSEEBYREHER

Cash and bank balances RE NIRTT4E 899,039 1,030,312
Short term deposits RHEITFER 379,214 321,626
1,278,253 1,351,938
Less: Non-pledged time deposits with original 3 : B AR RA R H1 B
maturity of more than HBid=E A
three months when acquired AR T B fF N (297,354) (227,626)
Cash and cash equivalents HWENIREEEY 980,899 1,124,312
The cash and bank balances and short term deposits of the Group RZZE—RAF+-A=+—H " &&
denominated in Renminbi amounted to RMB1,149,668,000 as at EHIR S RIRTTEHRUA R ETFRA
31 December 2015 (2014: RMB1,163,156,000), which is not freely 53 %1,149,668,0007713 (ZZ=E— I F:
convertible in the international market. The remittance of funds A R #1,163,156,0007T) A A R ¥ 5t
out of the PRC is subject to the exchange restrictions imposed by B MARETENBEERETS E8A
the PRC government. Hih o i858 8 H A BAS P EET
E A INEE BIFTIRR o
24. TRADE PAYABLES 24, ENEZFIE
An aged analysis of the trade payables is as follows: BB SRIEMREKDITNT ¢

Within 3 months =EmAR 1,382,122 1,670,614
3 to 12 months =Z=+=—{@A 76,193 99,808
Over 1 year —FLE 35,777 43,572

1,494,092 1,813,994
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CUSTOMERS' DEPOSITS, OTHER PAYABLES AND 25. BEF&E - HMENSFERES
ACCRUALS 15 H

Customers' deposits BFE&® 784,788 968,730
Rental payables ERES 167,433 150,382
Other tax payables H b pEA R I8 42,220 83,663
Deposits from suppliers HEREE 139,910 131,422
Provision for coupon liabilities (Note) EBEASEEERE (M) 70,159 72,745
Construction fee payables JENEREE 136,389 69,183
Accrued salaries and bonuses e & R IEAL 35,509 37,868
Accrued interest FEET I B 24,069 22,670
Other payables and accruals HE eI R EETIEE 203,864 203,822
1,604,341 1,740,485
Note: MEeE -
A reconciliation of the provision for coupon liabilities is as follows: BERFBERENYERNT :
At 1 January »w—HA—H 72,745 88,590
Arising during the year FREE 103,824 77,808
Revenue recognised on utilised points EERES RO = (64,148) (65,654)
Revenue recognised on expired points B E| BB S R M Y = (42,262) (27,999)
At 31 December R+—-—A=+—8 70,159 72,745
The provision for coupon liabilities is estimated based on the amount BEAFBEREDRBEN RS HAREDR
of bonus points outstanding as at the end of the reporting period REIBRTERINRERED S BEMET -
that are expected to be redeemed before expiry. The outstanding REEFATESD AR RS HIR A 0 T i Bf
bonus points are redeemable in the next two financial years from BEFEEEE

the end of the reporting period.
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26.

27.

28.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS

26.

SFERBRITRE

Analysed into: DHTIAT
Bank loans denominated in LA HARR FE R 3 TT
US$ repayable: FHEMIRITEE
Within one year —FR 146,077 198,929
Over one year —&F A 146,077 -
Bank loans denominated in LA T EARR FE 3L B T
HK$ repayable: FHEMRITEE
Within one year —F R 498,109 501,148
No Change
790,263 mEE

The bank loans are secured by the Group's investments in principal
guaranteed deposits amounting to RMB816 million as at 31
December 2015 (2014: RMB725.8 million). Bank loans denominated
in US$ bear floating interest rates ranging from 1.7% to 2.5% per
annum over LIBOR and bank loans denominated in HK$ bear a
floating interest rate of 1.6% per annum over HIBOR.

LONG TERM PAYABLES

The long term payables represent the long term portion of accrued
rental expenses.

BONDS

Bonds B

R-_ZE—AFE+-_A=+—8 &&
B LR A TF R 31% & A R #816,000,000
7T (ZZF—M4F : A R#725800,000
70) tEBIRITERIRTE ° IRETLFE
RERTTE SR AR BER 1T R 47 8.0
R A F1.75 250000 )% &) F =R 5t
B MRAB T ENRITERUES
%g@%ﬁﬁm¢ﬂ$m%mﬁﬁﬂ

R PE A 30E

R N ORI A S P R
B

(=€

3,227,112 3,034,500

On 3 May 2013, the Company issued the 4.5% bonds due 2018
(the "Bonds") with an aggregate principal amount of US$500
million, which were listed on the Stock Exchange. The net proceeds
excluding direct transaction costs were US$494.3 million (equivalent
to approximately RMB3,070,295,000).

The Bonds bear a fixed coupon rate at 4.5% per annum, payable
semi-annually in arrears on 3 May and 3 November in each year and
commencing on 3 November 2013. The maturity date is 3 May 2018.

R-ZE—=FRA=R - XQTFBET
A @EREFEITL ' BE B4R
T-N\FRHPENES ([EF]) I
ERBREM -BREEEXSHK
XY T 15 5RIA 5 58 £5494,300,0003 7T
(#)E M AR %3,070,295,0007T) ©

BEMETEBLR A450  F|B57BEH
TE-=F+—-A=BEREEHN
AA=BRkt+—A=HEXFIN—
o EBmBAMA-—TE—N\ERA=
E o
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29. SHARE CAPITAL AND TREASURY SHARES 29. BEREFR

Authorised: ERE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each AR HEE0.0278 TTHY
T A 7,500,000 150,000 156,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITREAR
At 1 January 2015 R-E—RF—HA—H 2,734,061 54,680 57,862
At 31 December 2015 RZE—RF+=H
S9=E 2,672,276 53,444 56,408
A summary of movements in the Company's issued share capital RARBBITRAREGFRE S B4
and treasury shares is as follows: m

At 1 January 2014 R-E—WFE—H—H 2,790,050 58,299 (32,323)
Purchase of treasury shares B8 B ETER (55,989) = (96,603)
Cancellation of treasury shares EEFR = (437) 52,778
At 31 December 2014 and N-_E—NFE+—HA
1 January 2015 =+t—AK

—E-RAF—H—H 2,734,061 57,862 (76,148)
Purchase of treasury shares (Note) EEEBEFKR (M) (61,785) = (65,542)
Cancellation of treasury shares (Note) SEEHEENR (BEE) = (1,454) 128,382
At 31 December 2015 R-_E—AF+_-A

=+—H 2,672,276 56,408 (13,308)
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29. SHARE CAPITAL AND TREASURY SHARES (continued)

Note:

During the year, pursuant to the general mandate given to the Company,
the Company repurchased its own shares through the Stock Exchange as
follows:

28):

BARERR (8)
MiaE -
FRN - REBTAARN—REM - K
REBBHRABEEAFORAWT :

January 2015 —E—hHF—A 5,000,000 2.05 1.95 10,100 7,977
March 2015 —T—RHF=A 18,732,000 1.65 1.55 29,873 23,699
April 2015 —ET—RFWMA 3,000,000 1.66 1.66 5,001 3,962
August 2015 —ZFT—HF)\A 4,805,000 1.11 1.07 5,301 4,376
September 2015 —T—RAFNA 12,500,000 1.11 1.03 13,269 10,913
October 2015 —ZE—RF+A 1,500,000 1.07 1.05 1,593 1,307
December 2015 —E—hF+=A 16,248,000 1.02 0.96 16,038 13,308

61,785,000 81,175 65,542

91,009,000 (2014: 27,517,500) shares repurchased in 2014 and 2015 with a
carrying amount of RMB 128,382,000 were subsequently cancelled in 2015.
This cancellation resulted in the decrease of the issued share capital of
RMB 1,454,000 and retained earnings of RMB126,928,000.

As at 31 December 2015, the Company held a total of 73,944,000 treasury
shares, which represented approximately 2.77% of its shares in issue.

ARARARZ_ZZE—NER_ZT—HF
BB R mEEA AR 1283820007 #Y
91,009,0008% (== —PO4F : 27,517,5008%)
? ZEBRNR T —RFEHE - It
FEIHEHE BITIRA TR AREE1,454,000
TC AR B F T B AR 126,928,0007T °

Bz

R-ZE—RAF+_A=+—H  XA7A
A A $£73,944,0000% BE1F A% - £9(E AR
RIEEITARD%)2.77% ©
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The Company operates a share option scheme (the "Scheme") for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group's operations. Eligible
participants of the Scheme include the Company's directors,
including independent non-executive directors, other employees,
of the Group, suppliers of goods or services to the Group, customers
of the Group, the Company's shareholders, and any non-controlling
shareholder in the Company's subsidiaries. The Scheme became
effective on 9 November 2005 and is valid and effective for a period
of 10 years up to 8 November 2015, after which no further share
options will be granted but the provisions of the Scheme shall
remain in full force and effect in all other respects.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount equivalent,
upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the Company on 9
November 2005. The maximum number of shares issuable under
share options to each eligible participant in the Scheme within any
12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of
this limit is subject to shareholders' approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to substantial shareholders, independent
non-executive directors, or any of their associates (including a
discretionary trust whose discretionary objects include a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director or a company
beneficially owned by any substantial shareholder or independent
non-executive director of the Company) in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate
value in excess of HK$5,000,000, within any 12-month period, are
subject to shareholders' approval in advance in a general meeting.

Options granted must be taken up within the time limit specified
in the offer letter. Options may be exercised at any time during
a period commencing on or after the date to be notified by the
board of directors to each grantee provided that the period shall
commence not less than one year and not to exceed 10 years from
the date of grant of the relevant option. No consideration is payable
upon acceptance of the option by the grantee.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the directors,
but must not be less than the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company's shares on the date of offer of the
share options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the
Company's shares for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company's
share.

PSR M
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Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or
to vote at shareholders' meetings.

On 10 January 2007, a total of 40,944,750 share options (as
adjusted for the effect of subdivision of shares) were granted to
482 eligible employees, including directors and chief executives,
of the Company at nil consideration and with an exercise price of
HK$7.35 per share pursuant to the Scheme.

The 29,778,000 share options (as adjusted for the effect of
subdivision of shares) granted under Lot 1 were exercisable from
24 January 2007 to 23 January 2010 and had no other vesting
conditions. The 11,166,750 share options (as adjusted for the effect
of subdivision of shares) granted under Lot 2 were exercisable from
2 January 2008 to 1 January 2011 and required an employee service
period until 2 January 2008.

On 1 March 2010, a total of 15,821,000 share options under Lot
3 were granted to 544 eligible employees of the Company at nil
consideration and with an exercise price of HK$12.44 per share
under the Scheme. Total share options were vested on 1 March
2010. The expiration date for the share options was three years
from 1 April 2010.

On 27 November 2012, a total of 34,171,500 share options were
granted to 642 eligible employees, including directors and a chief
executive, of the Company at nil consideration and with an exercise
price of HK$6.24 per share under the Scheme.

Among the share options granted on 27 November 2012, a total
of 17,085,750 share options granted under Lot 4 were vested on
27 November 2012 and are exercisable from 1 January 2013 to 31
December 2015. A total of 17,085,750 share options granted under
Lot 5 required an employee service period until 1 October 2013 and
are exercisable from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2016.

PR A A BREEIRA S SN AR

REEIRE -

RZZBEZ+F—A+H  ARaRE
BN ERERITEEERTIE
TR T2 A EKNER (BEE
ERESITHAE) $£40,944,750(9
BERRAE (ERRMDIFAMmARE) o

% — 3L 1% B #929,778,00017 B A%
(EBEHIFAMARE) IR _EF
F—A-+MWBEE-_ZT—TF—A
T+=HHETEREEEMEBKF
o 5B Z#ER T AY11,166,75017 BE A%
B (ERHDIFAMAE) IR _ZEF
NF—AZHE-Z——F—HA—H
HARITE - MEERENREFHES
“EZNEFE—H_-_BAIL -

R-Z—ZTFE=FA—H  AQaRE
ZATEIUNERERITEEER1244
BB EREEREE=
T A 315,821,000 B - FT B
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RSB BREAMHA=F BT
—ZFEP A —HFBAER -

RZE——F+—A=-++tH &
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 30.

The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme
during the year:

31 December 2015 —E—AF+-A=+—8H

WA B ()
) IR B R AT B AR AR
mF :

At 1 January n—A—H 6.24 28,767,500 6.24 32,406,500
Lapsed during the year FRERK 6.24 (8,757,000) 6.24 (3,639,000)
Expired during the year FRAEm 6.24 (10,000,250) - -
At 31 December Rt+=—A=+—H 10,010,250 28,767,500

The Group recognised a share option expense of nil (2014: Nil)
during the current year.

The fair value of the options granted was estimated as at the
date of grant using the binomial option pricing model, taking into
accounts the terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted. The following table lists the inputs to the model used:

Dividend yield (%) A& & (%) 3.54 3.54
Expected volatility (%) TEEHREE (%) 39.01 45.40
Risk-free interest rate (90) EERFE (o) 0.181 0.234
Expected life of options (year) AR ETE TR ER () 3.09 4.09
Weighted average share price (HK$ per share) — INi#EFHRE (BT %) 6.24 6.24

The expected life of the options is the contractual life of the options
and is not necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns that may
occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the
historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also
not necessarily be the actual outcome.

AEERAFERRBRENLAT
—EE:E) -

ERLBRENDABEINEEA
AR REEER GG
B & BT h R R AV IR B AR A
TR FE AR B AR

BRERTFHRBRENSOF
Hi o RO RBURKAIRE IR AT
N o FRAHR IR TR E LR E A AR

BORKIBE - ZRR IR BB
RAAFT ©
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No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the
measurement of the fair value.

As at 31 December 2015, the Company had 10,010,250 share
options with an exercise price of HK$6.24 per share outstanding
under the Scheme. The exercise in full of the outstanding share
options would, under the present capital structure of the Company,
result in the issue of 10,010,250 additional ordinary shares of the
Company and additional share capital of HK$200,205 (equivalent
to RMB168,000) and share premium of HK$62,264,000 (equivalent
to RMB52,165,000) (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company
had 10,010,250 share options outstanding under the Scheme, which
represented approximately 0.37% of the Company's shares in issue
as at that date.

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 7 to 9 of the financial
statements.

(i) PRC reserve funds

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for
Sino-foreign joint venture enterprises, a portion of the
profits of the Group's joint ventures which are established
in the PRC has been transferred to reserve funds which are
restricted as to use.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC laws and regulations,
Sino-foreign joint venture companies registered in the PRC
are required to transfer a certain percentage, as approved
by the board of directors, of their profit after income tax,
as determined in accordance with PRC accounting rules and
regulations, to the reserve fund, the enterprise expansion
fund and the employee bonus and welfare fund. These funds
are restricted as to use.

AELAAREBERIARFTABTBEERY
RN EMRE -

NR-ZE—RAE+-_A=+—H K
N AR 5% &1 2 78 710,010,250 &
R ERITE  SFRITEE6.245
Lo RBEARAIRBEAREE &
HITERTERESERARRE
HNEE7710,010,250A% L@ AR - T A4
B8 HNPIE A8200,2057 0 (FEE R AR
#168,0007T) & % 17 )& 1862,264,000
70 (M8 & K A R #52,165,0007T)
(RIOBREETTHZ) ©

PHEF SRR BH - AAFR&ZE
2|78 T~ £ 510,010,25017 B A% #E i &
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15 490.37% ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRC reserve funds (continued)

Pursuant to the relevant PRC laws and regulations, each of
the wholly-owned foreign enterprises (“WOFEs") registered
in the PRC is required to transfer not less than 10% of its
profit after tax, as determined in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles in the PRC ("PRC GAAP"), to
the reserve funds, until the balance of the funds reaches
50% of the registered capital of that company. WOFEs
registered in the PRC are required to transfer a certain
percentage, as approved by the board of directors, of their
profit after income tax to the employee bonus and welfare
fund. These funds are restricted as to use.

In accordance with the relevant PRC laws and regulations,
PRC domestic companies are required to transfer 109% of
their profit after income tax, as determined in accordance
with PRC GAAP, to the statutory common reserve, until the
balance of the fund reaches 509% of their registered capital.
Subject to certain restrictions as set out in the relevant PRC
regulations, the statutory common reserve may be used to
offset against the accumulated losses, if any.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the
difference between the nominal value of the share capital
of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group's
reorganisation in year 2005 and the nominal value of the
shares of the Company issued in exchange therefor.

Asset revaluation reserve

The asset revaluation reserve represented the fair value
adjustments to the property, plant and equipment,
investment properties and lease prepayments which
were already owned by the Group before the acquisition
of the remaining 44% equity interest in Parkson Retail
Development Co., Ltd. in 2006.

()

(ii)

(iii)
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2015 2014
—B-HF ZT-MmF
RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARETRT

Interim - RMB0.04 (2014: RMB0.04)
per ordinary share

FEf — BT AR

AR¥0.047T

(ZE—m%F :

AR#0.0470) 108,293 111,181
BORAKE — SR @A

AR#0.017T

(ZF—mF:

AR®0.017T) 26,723 27,341

Proposed final - RMB0.01 (2014: RMBO0.01)
per ordinary share

The proposed final dividend for the year (not recognised as a
liability as at 31 December 2015) is subject to the approval of the
Company's shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

A subsidiary of the Group located in the PRC is a plaintiff in a
lawsuit whereby the subsidiary has raised objection to a claim
brought by a third party claiming that the lease contract had
expired and the subsidiary should vacate the premises. The third
party later filed a counterclaim against the subsidiary, alleging
the subsidiary to vacate the premises and bear a certain amount
of occupying penalty. The directors, based on the advice from the
legal counsel, believe that the subsidiary has a valid defence against
the allegation.

On 5 June 2015, the Group, through a wholly-owned subsidiary,
Grand Parkson, entered into a sale and purchase agreement ("SE&P
Agreement”) with Mount Earnings Sdn. Bhd. ("Mount Earnings")
to acquire 709% of the equity interest of Yeehaw Best Practices
Sdn. Bhd. ("YBP"). The acquisition was made as part of the Group's
strategy to create synergies to the Company's existing food and
beverage networks and at the same time provides a new business
and income stream for the Company. The purchase consideration
was RMB24,903,000 (equivalent to Ringgit Malaysia (“RM")
15,000,000).

YBP engages in the food and beverage business and operation of
restaurants.

135,016 138,522

FRAREKAARE (R_T—AF+
“A=t—HEABI/EE) AR
ARAERP A ETORRBFA
SHUER - HAHEE ©

AEE-—HHEMBAREBR R R
RBNRE - ZHMBAREHE=7
EREEARBHLMBARAERL
MERLTR - E=FHERHEMBA
ARERER  BRHMNBLARARL
MEFAEETHRIIE - REERE
BRENER  EZRAZNBARIA
BHIRENA NIFRIERE ©

RZZE—RAFANARA AEEE
BHEHE2ENE ARG EEEEMount
Earnings Sdn. Bhd. ([ Mount Earnings )
FIVEEmMZ(EEHZ]) - N
s B Yeehaw Best Practices Sdn. Bhd.
([YBP]) 700/ iz - W EIH AR
SERBHN—Hn MARARFIRA
BHBBEERRNE - RAKALRA
AIREIESRBARIR - BERE
A A R #24903,0007C (BBERME
B ([MFEHE]) 15,000,0007T) °

YBPREFBERRH LKL EEE
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34. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 34.

The Group has elected to measure the non-controlling interest in
YBP at the non-controlling interest's proportionate share of YBP's
identifiable net assets.

YBPR U IE R AR AT BRI EE M B E
MAaREEWT :

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of YBP as at
the date of acquisition were as follows:

Property, plant and equipment Y% -~ BB MR 60
Intangible assets mRAE 42,186
Trade receivables FEWE 5 7R 822
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FENMFE e Rk

H fth pE Y R IE 1,465
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEY 15
Trade payables e B S FIA (27)
Tax payable JE @A 18 (12)
Deferred tax liabilities BEBIEAE 19 (10,1085)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BAREBEH

BEFERRE 34,404
Non-controlling interests FEPER R = (10,321)
Goodwill on acquisition WHEFTE £ PS8 14 820
Satisfied by cash AR S A 24,903

R ULEE B BRA R IR E 5 B LA A
HIE - RekEMBERRENAR
BE (REH28) DRlAARK
822,0007T &2 A R #51,456,0007T @ TEHP
HaJ (e o

The fair values, which are also the gross contractual amounts, of
trade receivables and prepayments, deposits and other receivables
as at the date of the acquisition amounted to RMB822,000 and
RMB1,456,000, respectively, and all of which are expected to be
collectible.
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An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of a
subsidiary is as follows:

WE—XMBARNERERED TN
S ¢

RMB'000

AR®T R

Cash consideration REeRE (24,903)

Cash and cash equivalents acquired EWIER e KA EEEY 15
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents FFARERESMSHEeERENRE R

included in cash flows from investing activities ReESBY R 58 (24,888)

Since the acquisition, YBP contributed RMB310,000 to the Group's
revenue and RMB1,331,000 to the consolidated loss for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

Had the above combination taken place at the beginning of the
year, the revenue of the Group and the loss of the Group for the
year would have been RMB4,233,961,000 and RMB171,036,000. The
pro forma information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had the acquisition
been completed at the beginning of the year, nor it is intended to
be a projection of its future results.

BWREEERL  RNEE_ZT—AF+
ZRA=+—HILFE  YBPEAKHE
R A R ¥8310,0000T FY WS 0 A K
AR ®1,331,000TCH4RE & 1B ©

i i & PFEFHHETT - AFEAE
ERmkAEEEBRUISAARE
4,233,961,0007T & A & 171,036,000
TC o WiEEERMEHRKBERE - BT
—EAWBBEERFTY TR AEE
EREREER NN ML EENIE
2 NEEEARREENTER -
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Operating lease arrangements
As lessee
The Group leases certain of its properties under operating
lease arrangements. Majority of these leases have
non-cancellable lease terms ranging from 15 to 20 years
and there are no restrictions placed upon the Group by
entering into these lease agreements.
As at 31 December 2015, the Group had total future
minimum lease payables under non-cancellable operating
leases with its tenants falling due as follows:
Within one year —FNR
In the second to fifth years, inclusive

RF%

After five years

A lease that is cancellable only upon the occurrence of
some remote contingencies is a non-cancellable operating
lease as defined under IFRSs. Pursuant to the relevant
lease agreements, the Group is entitled to terminate the
underlying lease agreement if the attributable department
store business has incurred losses in excess of a prescribed
amount or any department store will not be in a position to
continue its business because of the losses.

In addition to the above, the annual contingent rental
amount is chargeable at a percentage of the turnover of
the respective stores.

EEFRF
(BEEEMRT)

()
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REHENZHE

fERAFAA
AEBIRBEEEHOLTHREA
ETHME - KBHZERHOH
A HEEBN T+ RE =
FrzME BASEHMERTIY
ZEHEHZEMZIEME
il o

AEBR-_ZE—RHF+_-_A=
+—HRBREEB PRI
BUH QS HA R R R R &K
He@zEmT

2015 2014
—B-RHf _—T—NmF
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRE ARETT
1,123,131 1,124,076
4,448,020 4,545,033
7,428,130 8,735,812
12,999,281 14,404,921

EriEBELEE T ERHAER
RAENEE RBEBRMBHRE
# RI| 57 TE B 1 AT AR Tl
o REEEEERZ WA
BEEBELBTREHEDN
EERER A EERERME
EREREEY  AAKEA
R tEEE R

BRIA LRS- FRSEAE S
BERBEENEEENRX—7
DA e
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35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS AND
COMMITMENTS (continued)

0]

(i)

Operating lease arrangements (continued)
As lessor
The Group leases out certain of its properties under operating

leases. These leases have remaining non-cancellable lease
terms ranging from 1 to 10 years.

At 31 December 2015, the Group had total future minimum
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases
with its tenants falling due as follows:

REBHZHEREE (B)

() REBEORH (A
TERHEA
AEERBEEHEOBEET
MR o ZFHEABR TN A
HEEMN T —E+F1F -

AEER-_ZT—HF+=-A=
+—BEREBEEBL T ARA
BSH A E A K B IR R &I
M BEWAT -

Within one year —FR 225,855 164,176
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FE-EERE

(BIEEEREME) 534,377 379,661

After five years AF% 361,441 86,930

1,121,673 630,767

In addition to the above, the annual contingent rental BrLA EFraiish - FESAESZEAE

amount is calculated on a percentage of the turnover of
the respective tenants.

In addition to the operating lease arrangements above, the
Group had the following capital commitments at the end
of the reporting period:

FRZEXBENR—ADLIE -

(i) BREMKEHOLHEIN - NE
ERmEBRRE AT E RN
b

Contracted, but not provided for: BEIA) - BARBE
Leasehold improvements HEWEEE 51,959 21,176
Purchase of land and buildings (Note) BE T RETE (M) 112,345 554,480

164,304 575,656
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OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS AND
COMMITMENTS (continued)

(i)

(continued)

Note:

The amount represented the commitment for the purchase of a
land use right and construction of a new shopping mall. According
to the sales and purchase agreement dated 29 December 2014 in
relation to Qingdao Beer City Mall, the total consideration was
RMB1.42 billion. Furthermore, as a result of the implementation
of Management Rules of the Land Use Right of the Underground
State-Owned Land of the State-Owned Land Resources and Housing
Management Authority of Qingdao ((FEEBRTERMEEE
B R T =EEE 2R AU EREERIVE) ), the Group is
expected to enter into a supplementary agreement with the vendor
to pay additional land premium of RMB112,345,000.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

The Group had the following significant transactions with
related parties during the year:

31 December 2015 —E—HF+=-A=+—H

35, K&

(i)

MR RERE (B)

(%8)

MiEE
ZeHEABELWERERE
REAMEYMES A ERE - BIEA
AT NEF+=-—A=+nh
H RABESTSEEMF O
MEEH®E RELBAARKE
1,420,000,0007T ° Lo - BRAKE
ERLERNEEEE B TE
B A 2% A b A R
E) B WASBEEHGEE
FEI M U ARE
112,345,0007C A BESMHB(E ©

36. BEFRS

(a)

FAREEHRBESETHE
ARBUWT :

Royalty fee expenses HIrETRERY (i) 1,488 1,495
Trademark fee expenses HEERY (i) 3,132 =
Consultancy fee income RABUWA (iii) 1,907 3,518
Property management fee expenses BB B X (iv) 9,133 9,952
Rental fee income AEBRA (v) 19,533 =
Royalty fee income B EERBIA (vi) 314 =
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(a)

(continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

(vi)

The royalty fee expenses are paid or payable to Smart
Spectrum Limited, a fellow subsidiary of the Company, for
the Group's entitlement to use the “Parkson” trademark in
the PRC.

Trademark fee expenses are paid or payable to F&B
Essentials Sdn. Bhd, a fellow subsidiary of the Company,
for the Group's entitlement to use "The Library Coffee Bar"
trademark in the PRC. The trademark fee includes one-off
initial term fee of USD500,000 (2014:Nil) and royalty fee
of RMB23,000 (2014:Nil), which was charged based on
the agreed rate predetermined in accordance with the
underlying contract signed in 2015.

The consultancy fee income is received or receivable from
a joint venture of the Group of RMB1,907,000 (2014:
RMB3,518,000). The consultancy fees are determined
according to the underlying contracts.

The property management fee expenses are payable to
Shanghai Nine Sea Lion Properties Management Co., Ltd.,
an associate of the Company. The property management
fee of RMB9,133,000 (2014: RMB9,952,000) per annum was
charged according to the underlying contract.

The rental fee income is received or receivable from
Parkson Newcore Retail Shanghai Ltd., an associate of the
Company. The rental fee income is determined according
to the underlying contracts signed in 2015.

The royalty fee income is received or receivable from
Entity B Management Sdn. Bhd., a fellow subsidiary of
the Company, for the franchise of the "Franco" trademark,
which includes one-off brand license fee of RMB93,000
(2014: Nil) and royalty fee of RMB221,000 (2014: Nil),
which was charged based on the agreed rate predetermined
in accordance with the underlying contract signed in 2015.

(a)

(&)

(ii)

(1ii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

HirRERERXERE
ERFEERIER] &
T N = R N NYNEC]
— R [E Z KB 2 FlSmart
Spectrum Limited ¥ 7K 8 o

EIZERAS R ARNEBERF
B{#E F [The Library Coffee
Bar] PHIZ M X ff 3k & +F
ARA—RARHE AT
F&tB Essentials Sdn. Bhd#)3X
BHe@miZBaEE—AME
Hi & F500,000FE T (=&
—E:T) RIS
& A R #23,0007T (=
T—NMF:T) ERIE
R —RFEFTNIEH
AHFMBEENHEEER
B o

MAEBE —RAEEDLE
U B 3k B Uk B9 75 R B Uk
A5 Rl A AR #1,907,000
T(ZE—WF: ARE
3,518,0007T) ° A AE JIIR
BHEAYET -

MEEBREBRSIEEMNT
YNNI IE o)X R/NET M i s
BEMYEESEER AR
FRIE - MEERBETF
A K #9,133,0007T (= &
—POF : AR %9952000
JC) JHIR AR A HUUER o

HEBRABRRRRK
B2 N A B B AR RT B B A
mE (L8 ARARNK
M ERHHRIE - e B
WATIREBR —ZT—HF
FAIMHBA A METE -

HHEERBRA RS
&% [Franco] FEIZ M M A
N A) B — KB & A BlEntity
B Management Sdn. Bhd.4%
Bk WA IE - EBE
—RMEREETEARK
93,0007C (= & — PO 4 ¢
T)RBEAEEAEAR
#221,000C (= T — M
F:2) ERER-Z
—RFFFTNHEBE DM
TETE 8 1% 7€ B LN o



(a)

(b)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

The royalty fee expenses, trademark fee expenses and the
royalty fee income generated from fellow subsidiaries of
the Group constitute connected transactions and apart
from the one-off transaction disclosed above, the royalty
fee expenses, trademark fee expenses and the royalty fee
income generated from fellow subsidiaries of the Group also
constituted continuing connected transactions, as defined
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. However, as these
connected transactions represent less than 0.1% of the
relevant percentage ratios, pursuant to paragraph 14A.76(1)
(a) of the Listing Rules, these connected transactions are
exempted from the reporting, annual review, announcement
and independent shareholders' approval requirements.

The consultancy fee income generated from the joint
venture of the Group, the property management fee expense
payable to an associate of the Group and the rental fee
income generated from an associate of the Group do not
constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Details of the Group's outstanding balances with the
related parties are disclosed in note 21 to these financial
statements. The balances with related parties are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

Compensation of key management personnel (as defined
under IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures) of the Company:

Fees we
Other emoluments: Efi< :
Salaries, allowances, bonuses and
other benefits
Pension scheme contributions

Further details of directors' and the chief executive's
emoluments are included in note 7 to the financial
statements.

e 2B TEAK
H ftb 4% 7
BN FTEI R
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FHIEI R 5 R Y £ 21 IR o
HEETNERREER - 2
BREREEETE -

(b) ZARAEIEEEAR (ERR
BIPR & 5T R 55245 BE 7 I
) FE

2015 2014
—2-Hf TWF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR  ARETT
1,534 868
4,514 3,210

133 256

6,181 4,334
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 37. @I AESE
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial ZHESMT ANREISRNEREEN
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: T

Financial assets PREE
Loans and receivables: Bk ERFIE
Trade receivables FEWE 5 5IA 61,130 85,570
Financial assets included in prepayments, s AFER FOE -
deposits and other receivables Re N CH R
HEAN T RVEE 91,510 114,682
Investments in principal guaranteed deposits RAFZRE 2,075,120 3,532,690
Time deposits E T 297,354 227,626
Cash and cash equivalents HENIBEEEBY 980,899 1,124,312
Dividend receivables FE UL RS B, 21,122 -

3,627,135 5,084,880

Financial liabilities TRAE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: 1R SR ARSI BR Y
THEE:
Trade payables e S FIA 1,494,092 1,813,994
Financial liabilities included in customers’ FARERS -
deposits, other payables and accruals At T FRIE K2
FEETIE B AHY
SRIBE 326,066 269,503
Interest-bearing bank loans FHERITEER 790,263 700,077
Bonds &5 3,227,112 3,034,500

5,837,533 5,818,074
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The carrying amounts of the Group's financial instruments are
reasonably approximate to fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, time deposits, investments in principal guaranteed
deposits, financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables, trade receivables, trade payables and financial
liabilities included in customers' deposits, other payables and
accruals approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the
short term maturities of these instruments.

The Group's finance department headed by the chief financial
officer is responsible for determining the policies and procedures
for the fair value measurement of financial instruments. The chief
financial officer reports directly to the audit committee. At each
reporting date, the finance manager analyses the movements in the
values of financial instruments and determines the major inputs
applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved
by the chief financial officer.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced
or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were
used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of interest-bearing
bank loans and the Bonds have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using rates currently available for
instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.
The Group's own non-performance risk for interest-bearing bank
loans and the Bonds as at 31 December 2015 was assessed to be
insignificant.

The Group did not have any financial assets or liabilities measured
at fair value as at 31 December 2015.

PSR M
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The Group's principal financial instruments, other than derivatives,
comprise the Bonds, interest-bearing bank loans, investments in
principal guaranteed deposits, time deposits and cash and cash
equivalents. The main purpose of these financial instruments is
to raise finance for the Group's operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as prepayments, deposits
and other receivables and trade receivables, which arise directly
from its operations.

It is, and has been throughout the year under review, the Group's
policy that no trading in financial instruments shall be undertaken.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group's interest-bearing bank loans (note
26) with floating interest rates. Since the Group's Bonds (note 28)
bear a fixed interest rate at 4.5% per annum, no interest rate risk
is associated with the Bonds.

AEENTESHMTAE (FTETAR
HN) BIEES  FFEBITEE - RAE
BFREE  THEAREREMRESE
BY - ZELRITANTERARNA
AEENEBEESEES -  ASEHES
AR RIE « Re R E M EUGRIE K E
WESRBEZHEENRNEEELN
TREE -

AR ER IR B R O ] [ B F FE Y BKUR
RTEESHMTA -

AEEXRETRIAENTEZRRBH
Rk - SNERRR - EERR MRS
Bohk  EFTSFEMLREZEHE
BEREROER - SRR
T o

=k
AEEEBEOMSNERARES T
ERASENFBN RS RRTE
& (KfFE26) - HRAEEES (K
28) #R[E|E & M K4.5005t B - B &
B ERA R R =@ o
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group's loss after tax and equity through the
impact on interest-bearing bank loans with floating interest rates.

2015 —E-hF

HK$ bank loans BITRITTER
HK$ bank loans BILIRITER
US$ bank loans ETLIRITER
US$ bank loans ETTIRITER
2014 —E—NNF

HK$ bank loans BILIRITER
HK$ bank loans BITRITE R
US$ bank loans ETLIRITERK
US$ bank loans ETLRITER

Foreign currency risk

The Group's exposure to foreign currency risk mainly arise from
the Group's debt financings denominated in HK$ and US$ which
were borrowed by the Group with the functional currency of US$,
while the Group's presentation currency of the financial statements
is RMB.

Since the Group mainly engages in the operation of department
stores in the PRC, transactional currency exposure arising from sales
or purchases in currencies other RMB has an immaterial impact on
the Group's after tax profit and equity.

S8
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BHEMREEEEREEK (8)

F=mb (&)

TREJMEMAFTERTE A%
B RFBF RET BIRITERTE
FBR B 12 8518 e a1 R R 5 FE A]

100 (4,981) (4,981)
(100) 4,981 4,981

100 (2,922) (2.922)
(100) 2,922 2,922

100 (5,011) (5,011)
(100) 5,011 5,011

100 (1,989) (1,989)
(100) 1,989 1,989

IR BR

AEEHEERAINE R E BRI
EREEXITREANAIEEBITMET
MEBRE - MAKERMBEHRRD
ENEEB/ARE -

AEETZNELLEHENBESE
ERARBUINEENR HER - B
HAKBEBREMNERERFETA
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 39. BiIEMEEEERBE (8)
POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued) SR (%)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity as at 31 December TR MEMERERTE RN
2015 to a reasonably possible change in the HK$ and US$ exchange E-—RFE+-_A=+t—HBAEEKH
rates, with all other variables held constant, of the Group's profit BRI R ESEE T R ETTEERR ]
after tax and the equity (due to translation of the operating results REABEEZHNHRE (AREXRWEB
and financial position of each subsidiary with functional currencies NRAMEEEB RV EROA
other than RMB into the presentation currency of RMB used for the REAIINNEEKEIRAREBLRE
consolidated financial statements of the Group). MBEHmERZIFANARE) -

2015 —T—RHF
RMB strengthens against US$ AR S ETHE 5 33 33
RMB weakens against US$ AR ETEE (5) (33) (33)
2014 —T-mF
RMB strengthens against US$ AR ETLHE 5 415 415
RMB weakens against US$ AREHRETRE (5) (415) (415)

2015 —T—RF
RMB strengthens against HK$ AR H BT E 5 2 2
RMB weakens against HK$ ARESBTLZE (5) (2) (2)
2014 —E-mEF
RMB strengthens against HK$ ARERABTHE 5 64 64
RMB weakens against HK$ AR BTRE (5) (64) (64)

Excluding retained earnings * NEEREEF
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Credit risk

The Group trades on credit only with third parties who have an
established trading history with the Group and have no history of
default. It is the Group's policy that new customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis and the Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant. The
maximum exposure is the carrying amount as disclosed in note 21
to the financial statements.

The credit risk of the Group's other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, time deposits, investments
in principal guaranteed deposits, and prepayments, deposits and
other receivables, arising from default of the counterparty, with
a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral. Concentrations
of credit risk are managed by analysis by customer/counterparty.
There are no significant concentrations of credit risk within the
Group as the customer bases of the Group's trade receivables are
widely dispersed.

Liquidity risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity
of funding and flexibility through the use of the Bonds and other
interest-bearing bank loans. 19% of the Group's debts would
mature in less than one year as at 31 December 2015 (2014: 20%)
based on the carrying value of borrowings reflected in the financial
statements. The directors have reviewed the Group's liquidity
position, working capital and capital expenditure requirements and
determined that the Group has no significant liquidity risk.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 39. HI¥EREEEEZERBEK (8B)

POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the
end of the reporting period, based on contractual undiscounted
payments, is as follows:

RBESEE (8)
AREERHERRNERABERS
KRR BN RBEMEHBENT

BE—F-—HFE+-_A=1—HIFE

Year ended 31 December 2015

Trade payables fENE 5708 1,494,092 - - 1,494,092

Financial liabilities included AP RE -
in customers' deposits, other H A R RIE R

payables and accruals FETIE R A

TRAE 326,066 - - 326,066

Interest-bearing bank loans STERITEE 657,574 147,959 - 805,533

Bonds &% 146,106 146,106 3,319,853 3,612,065

2,623,838 294,065 3,319,853 6,237,756

BE_T—FEF—F=+—HIFE

Year ended 31 December 2014

Trade payables N8 SzE 1,813,994 = = = 1,813,994

Financial liabilities included in SARPRS -
customers' deposits, other HibERFIER

payables and accruals JEETIE B A

SRAE 269,503 - - - 269,503

Interest-bearing bank loans SERTEE 712,280 = = = 712,280

Bonds B 137,180 137,180 137,180 3,117,040 3,528,580

2932957 137,180 137,180 3,117,040 6,324,357
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Capital management

The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to
ensure that it maintains the Group's stability and growth.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure
and makes adjustments to it taking into consideration changes in
economic conditions, future capital requirements of the Group,
prevailing and projected profitability and operating cash flows,
projected capital expenditures and projected strategic investment
opportunities.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
adjusted debt divided by the capital plus net adjusted debt. Net
adjusted debt includes the Bonds, interest-bearing bank loans,
long term payables, trade payables, and customers' deposits, other
payables and accruals less cash and cash equivalents, time deposits
and investments in principal guaranteed deposits. The gearing ratios
as at the end of the reporting periods were as follows:
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ErEE
AEBERAEENTIZRERRES
FAKENRERER -
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AEBREAABLREIFHEN -
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RAEFEHE - KRBEFEHE
®BES  STERTTRE - REENR
B EBNESHREREFPES - Hit
BNFENMEAREARRERAEE
EY  EREAREFAERRE - R
BEHRNERAELTWT

Bonds &%

Interest-bearing bank loans HBERITEE
Long term payables EHIFE A
Trade payables FETE 508

Customers' deposits, other payables and
accruals
Less: Cash and cash equivalents

BEFPES  RftENRIER

fERT IR B

o ReMIREFEY

Time deposits EEER
Investments in principal guaranteed RAFERIRE
deposits
Net adjusted debt KRBFER

Capital: equity attributable to owners of
the parent

Capital and net adjusted debt

Gearing ratio

BN §RBAA
iy

BN RERS

EARE

.

EfasES

2015 2014
—E—-HEF —ZE—FE
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR® T AREETIT
3,227,112 3,034,500
790,263 700,077
744,756 655,726
1,494,092 1,813,994
1,604,341 1,740,485
(980,899) (1,124,312)
(297,354) (227,626)
(2,075,120) (3,532,690
4,507,191 3,060,154
4,972,268 5,586,952
9,479,459 8,647,106
48% 35%
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40.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 40.
COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

QT IR &

AR AR ARE BB KA
AT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHTE A RIHRE 3,423,260 3,546,418
Total non-current assets RN EELE 3,423,260 3,546,418
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  JB{FUIE « 7&K

H b W FRIA 3,420 4,599
Cash and cash equivalents HWE RIREZEEY 52,501 38,747
Total current assets mENVE EMAE 55,921 43,346
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Accruals fEZTIE B (26,045) (24,011)
Interest-bearing bank loans FFERITER (384,530) (455,518)
Total current liabilities mEAERE (410,575) (479,529)
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEETFE (354,654) (436,183)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES HWEERRBERE 3,068,606 3,110,235
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Bonds (e (3,227,112) (3,034,500)
Interest-bearing bank loans STRIRITER (146,077) =
Total non-current liabilities B A ERE (3.373,189) (3,034,500)
Net assets BEFE (304,583) 75,735
EQUITY DR
Issued capital B3 ITAR AN 56,408 57,862
Treasury shares BIEMK (13,308) (76,148)
Reserves (note)* HE (Mfsx) * (347.683) 94,021
Total equity B (304,583) 75,735
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 40. AAFHBEMRRE (B)
COMPANY (continued)

Note: MEE -

A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: RABHEERZNAT ¢

At 1 January 2014 R-ZZE—HF—H—H 263,801 (354,227) 37,696 8,736 (43,994)

Total comprehensive income FE2EB AL

for the year - (852) - 302,389 301,537
Cancellation of treasury shares i #HE 7R (52,341) - - - (52,341)
Interim 2014 dividend paid 2= —mE

FHARR B - - = (111,181)  (111,181)
At 31 December 2014 R-_Z—N&E+_—A

=E=E 211,460 (355,079) 37,696 199,944 94,021
Final 2014 dividend paid BN —mE

REIR R - - = (27,341) (27,341)
Total comprehensive income FRAEEBALZTE

for the year = (45,572) = (133,570) (179,142)
Cancellation of treasury shares 3T #H/EFAL (126,928) = = = (126,928)

Transfer of share option reserve & IR fE i 14 48 15

upon the expiry of BB
share options = = (17,322) 17,322 =
Interim 2015 dividend paid BENZZ—REF
AR B, (84,532) - - (23,761)  (108,293)
At 31 December 2015 R=ZZ—HF+=A
=t+—H - (400,651) 20,374 32,594 (347,683)
9 Retained earnings have been adjusted for the proposed 2014 9 RIR IS R MY sE2.4F ik - (R
dividend in accordance with the current year's presentation, which BRUFERFEH2 WA AL

is described in note 2.4 to the financial statements. “E-NFEIRRBIELAE -
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In light of the implementation of the Management Rules on the ER(EEMBETERMEEEERR
Land Use Right of the Underground State-owned Land of the T ZEREBRBREZAMEAEE RN
State-owned Land Resources and Housing Management Authority EYHEMW KRR —FKHEBARTE
of Qingdao ( ( EEMRA T ERMNEEEE Bt T=HBEARER HIKEBE S LMtz URE
FAH0 6 FREE IR 35K ) ), a subsidiary of the Company is expected (o) WBARWERIERmER
to enter into a supplemental agreement with the vendor to provide EHNBESEYP O TE —ERA
for, among other things, the subsidiary's acquisition of the title to DERE  UARIHMENRERRIE -
the commercial portion of the first basement floor of the Qingdao ENTERD K Bt i & A A R % 112,345,000
Shopping Mall which is for commercial use, and the payment of T °

the land premium and relevant taxes, duties and surcharges in the
amount of RMB112,345,000.

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform ETHBRESBEEENDEUFERE
with the current year's presentation. BEVEE Y
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue BEEGERT—R"F-A=-+=H

by the board of directors on 23 February 2016. BUE R TIBI BHEK -
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